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Resigned as an non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 31 October 2024.

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effective from 28 May 2024,
and re-designated as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee with effect from 23 September 2024.
Appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 September
2024 and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 31
October 2024.

Retired as an independent non-executive Director and ceased to be
the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from
23 September 2024.

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28 May 2024.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

At 31 March 2025, Arta Techfin Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) had
total assets, net current assets and net assets of approximately
HK$102 million (2024: HK$131 million), approximately HK$0.7
million (2024: HK$88 million) and approximately HK$29
million (2024: HK$77 million) respectively, and cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$55 million (2024: HK$90
million). The current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was
1 (2024: 7.46). The Group had unsecured convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$40 million (“Convertible Bonds”) at
31 March 2025 (2024: HK$40 million), which were fully seftled
subsequent to the reporting period. Gearing ratio, calculated on
the basis of the Group’s borrowings divided by total equity was
135.5% at 31 March 2025 (2024: 49.3%).

For the year ended 31 March 2025, borrowing costs amounted
to approximately HK$6 million, including approximately HK$5
million on issuance of the Convertible Bonds, approximately
HK$1 million on the interest arising from the new lease
agreements entered during the year. Total finance costs for the
year decreased by 24.7% or approximately HK$2 million as
compared to the corresponding period in 2024. The Group's
funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a diversified
and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the Hong Kong dollar and
US dollar. As Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar, the
foreign exchange risk exposures are considered limited. The
Group did not have any financial instruments used for hedging
purpose.
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Financial Performance BMERE
Increase/
For the year ended 31 March BE=A=t—-HL=EE 2025 2024  (decrease)
—E-RF ZE-OWFE E£N08D)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Consolidated turnover REEHEEE 63,846 23,329 174%
Operating expenses BERX 105,611 78,417 35%
Consolidated net loss HAEREE 47,485 62,921 (25%)

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s consolidated
revenue increased to approximately HK$64 million as a result
of the significant improved performance of insurance brokerage
business, investment business and wealth management and
consultancy services business.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Financial Performance (Continued)

Operating expenses, amounted to approximately HK$106
million, increased by 35% (2024: HK$78 million) as compared
to the corresponding period in 2024. Total employee benefit
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) amounted to
approximately HK$32 million for the year ended 31 March
2025 (2024: HK$39 million). Consultancy, legal and
professional fees amounted to approximately HK$18 million
(2024: HK$8 million). The increase of the expenses incurred
for the year mainly due to partnership with external consultants
to expand businesses and operations in relation to insurance
brokerage, wealth management and consulting services business.

The Group recorded a consolidated net loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the year
ended 31 March 2025 of approximately HK$52 million (2024:
HK$64 million), primarily due to the combined effect of, inter
alia, (i) increase in revenue and other income by approximately
HK$42 million; (ii) decrease of employee benefit expenses
by approximately HK$7 million; (iii) decrease of information
technology and maintenance expenses by approximately
HK$13 million. The above favourable effect was partially set
off by (iv) increase in consultancy, legal and professional fees
by approximately HK$10 million; (v) increase in share of results
of associates by approximately HK$4 million and (vi) increase
in other operating expenses by approximately HK$35 million.
Basic and diluted loss per share were approximately HKO.3 cents
(2024: HKO.3 cents).

The Group had no capital commitment at 31 March 2025 (2024:
nil). In light of the amount of liquid assets on hand, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) are of the view that the Group
has sufficient financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
requirements. At 31 March 2025, the Group had shareholders’
funds of approximately HK$29 million (2024: HK$77 million).
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Business Review

Our business is organised into five segments: (1) global markets
business, which includes securities and futures brokerage and
investment banking businesses; (2) asset management business;
(3) insurance brokerage business; (4) investment business; and (5)
wealth management and consultancy services business. During
the year ended 31 March 2025, despite the unstable global
macro environment and weak sentiment in Hong Kong securities
market, the Group achieved improvements in its overall operating
performance by formulating new business strategies, proactively
seizing market opportunities and continuing stringent cost control
efforts. The momentum of the Group’s various businesses has
been accelerated with renewed impetus and we are confident in
our prospects given the added talents, newly developed clientele,
expanded products, and an increasing project pipeline.
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(Decrease)/
For the year ended 31 March BE=A=+—HLEE 2025 2024 increase
Segmental revenue 2 EBULA ZECRF ZEZNFE GRS g
HK$'000  HK$'000
BET T BET T
Global markets business 2RISR 3,328 9,967 (67 %)
Asset management business EESIBER 9,938 12,265 (19%)
Insurance brokerage business (R AR 4D 27 18,777 1,097 1612%
Investment business BB K 3,834 - N/AREH
Wealth management and consultancy HEEER 27,969 - N/ATER
services business R EE S
Total revenue U 63,846 23,329 174%
Global Markets Business ERMISER

Our global markets business offers investment banking services,
(including but not limited to mergers and acquisitions advisory,
financial advisory, placing and underwriting business and
structured financing) and execution and prime brokerage services
in both digital and traditional assets. During the year ended
31 March 2025, its revenue decreased by approximately 67%
to approximately HK$3.3 million from approximately HK$10
million in 2024 due to the weak sentiment in Hong Kong
securities market.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Global Markets Business (Continued)

The Group continued its expansion into regulated businesses
involving digital assets. We successfully developed a new
line of financial products that are linked to digital assets and
settled in cash. These products include futures, options, and
structured products. Additionally, the Group acted as the
exclusive distributor of digital asset-structured products offered by
Enhanced Digital Group UK Limited in Hong Kong.

Asset Management Business

Our asset management business offers a full spectrum of asset
management products and services, including investment
advisory, portfolio management, and transaction execution, to
professional and institutional investors. During the year ended 31
March 2025, our asset management business revenue decreased
by 19% to approximately HK$9.9 million from approximately
HK$12.3 million in 2024. The asset management business was
effected by the unstable global macro environment. However,
the business actively expanded its product offerings, especially
in alternative assets, and the diversity of investment solutions
significantly increased.

Due to the close connection between Hong Kong and Mainland
China, the Group has been expanding its clientele and business
in China. The management of the Company is of the view
that Mainland China presents a sizeable market and range of
opportunities for asset managers in Hong Kong with China’s
vast and growing middle class driving demand for wealth
management and investment products. Throughout the year,
the Group organised various client engagement events and
roadshows in Hong Kong aimed at presenting our distinctive and
innovative investment solutions and capabilities to prospective
institutional and high-networth clients. Our alternative investment
strategies such as supply chain financing and Japanese real
estate have gained traction among investors, and we foresee
tremendous potential in clientele and assets under management
growth in the near future.

Additionally, the Group has been providing fund incubation
services through strategic partnerships with prestigious industry
veterans and organisations. We aim to build a dynamic
ecosystem that empowers our partners to launch their own funds
while providing clients with access to high-quality investment
opportunities.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Brokerage Business

Our insurance brokerage business engages in the distribution
of insurance products to corporate and individual clients and
the provision of wealth management planning and related
services. During the year ended 31 March 2025, our insurance
brokerage business revenue surged by approximately 1612%
to approximately HK$18.8 million from approximately HK$1.1
million in 2024 as a result of the increasing demand of insurance
products that provide several benefits to clients to build a sound
investment portfolio amid ever-changing market conditions and
minimise the risk with diversified asset allocation.

Investment Business

The Group established its investment business during the year
ended 31 March 2025. Revenue from our investment business
was approximately HK$3.8 million, derived from inferest income
from our low-risk and high liquidity investment portfolio.

Wealth Management and Consultancy Services Business

The Group established its wealth management and consultancy
services business during the year ended 31 March 2025. We
adopted a customer-centric approach, tailoring our services and
offering an all-in-one solution to meet the unique needs of each
client, including but not limited to family offices, institutional
investors, and ultra-high-net-worth individuals. The Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$28 million from the
wealth management and consultancy services business for the
year ended 31 March 2025.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS

At 31 March 2025, the Group had a non-current financial asset
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
of approximately HK$0.3 million (2024: HK$0.3 million). The

above asset carries value less than 5% of the total assets of the

Group at 31 March 2025.

Financial Asset at FVOCI

At 31 March 2025, the Group had a non-current financial
asset at FVOCI of approximately HK$0.3 million, representing
a minority investment, via subscription of convertible preferred
shares, in GFO-X at an original investment cost of US$502,740.
GFO-X is a United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority-
regulated and centrally cleared trading venue dedicated
to digital asset derivatives, incorporated and registered in
England and Wales with business offices in London and Hong
Kong. During the year, investment in GFO-X did not have a
material impact on the earnings of the Group. This investment
represents approximately 0.25% of the total assets of the Group
of approximately HK$102 million at 31 March 2025. The fair
value of the financial asset is determined by reference to the
recent transaction price.

Financial Asset at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”)

At 31 March 2025, the Group had a non-current financial asset
at FVTPL of approximately HK$2 million, carried at nil fair value,
representing a loan purchase agreement entered between the
Company and a private limited company in March 2022, in
relation to the acquisition of a convertible loan of US$250,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2 million), which would be
repaid upon maturity in September 2022 or converted into
the share of a private limited company on the maturity date.
In September 2022, March 2023 and September 2023, the
Company entered into loan extension agreements with the private
limited company extending the maturity dates to March 2023,
September 2023 and September 2024, respectively. The value
of the convertible loan was determined in an active market where
there were no relevant quotes available. During the year ended
31 March 2024, the convertible loan was fully written off as
there was evidence indicating that the debtor has been in severe
financial difficulty and the Group had no realistic possibility of
recovering the convertible loan.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group
did not have any significant investment which accounted for more
than 5% of the Group’s total assets at 31 March 2025.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group had unsecured Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$40 million at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
HK$40 million), which were fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 May 2025, the Company and the immediate holding
company of the Company entered into a perpetual shareholder’s
loan agreement, pursuant to which the immediate holding
company of the Company shall make available to the Company
an unsecured term loan facility of a total principal amount up to
HK$40,800,000 at 6.5% interest rate per annum, which is on
normal commercial terms or better. The Company may at its sole
discretion, repay the outstanding amount of the loan in full or in
part together with all interest accruing on the loans or such part
of the loans as of the date of repayment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSALS
Save as mentioned below and elsewhere in this annual report,
the Group did not have any significant investments nor did it

make any material acquisitions of subsidiaries and associates
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group is
not aware of other material contingent liabilities at 31 March
2025.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 32 staff members
including the executive directors of the Company (2024: 25
staff members). Staff costs incurred for the year, including
directors’ remuneration, were HK$32 million (2024: HK$39
million). The Company has adopted a share option scheme
and the Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees. During
the year, no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed. Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly,
making reference to legal framework, market conditions and
the performance of the Group and individual staff (including
directors). The remuneration policy and remuneration packages
of the executive directors and members of the senior management
of the Group are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee. The
Company offers continuous learning and training programs to
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will uphold an open mindset and
innovative spirit, actively adapting to market changes and seizing
development opportunities. As one of the Group’s core growth
drivers, supply chain finance will continue to play a significant
role going forward. The Group plans to further deepen financing
activities in traditional sectors such as the construction and new
energy industries, as well as emerging sectors, through funds and
direct loans, thereby supporting the growth of the real economy
and achieving steady expansion in business scale. The Group
will also increase investment in the research and development of
select alternative investment strategies to better meet the needs of
its existing client base.

Meanwhile, virtual assets, as a cutting-edge field in financial
technology, are transforming the global financial ecosystem. With
innovative mindset and forward-looking strategies, the Group will
actively explore and leverage investment opportunities in areas
such as asset tokenization and stablecoins, further strengthening
the Group's competitiveness in the virtual asset sector.

In the highly competitive asset management market, the Group
will continue to expand its product offerings, provide diverse
investment options. By enhancing its investment management
capabilities and service quality, the Group aims to build a
strong brand image, attract a wider investor base to its asset
management services, and achieve sustained growth in both asset
management scale and revenue.
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e MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) would like
to take this opportunity to express its gratitude and appreciation
to all shareholders, business partners, professional parties and
employees of the Group for their continuous contributions and
unwavering support to the Group.

By Order of the Board
Arta TechFin Corporation Limited

Xu Hao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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e BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS e

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Hao (“Mr. Xu”), aged 41, is an Executive Director and
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in January 2024. He has about 20 years of experience in the
financial, investment, business management and capital market
industry and related activities. Mr. Xu is currently the chief
executive officer of Avantua Group Limited (“Avantua Group”),
which is principally engaged in capital management and
investment and operates an integrated investment platform that
encompasses private equity, public equity, and private credit. He
is also a director of certain private limited companies in which
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and his associates have majority
beneficial inferests. Prior to his appointment as the chief executive
officer of Avantua Group, Mr. Xu served as the vice president of
Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1638), and the president
of Kaisa Group (International) Holdings Ltd., overseeing Kaisa
Group's overall offshore businesses from 2015 to 2020. From
December 2016 to March 2020, Mr. Xu initially served as a non-
executive director of, and subsequently an executive director of,
Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 876). He also
served as a non-executive director of Nam Tai Property Inc., a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE Symbol:
NTP) from August 2018 to June 2020. Other than this, Mr. Xu
worked at The Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC, &M 5 Blith &
BBR2 & (Guangzhou Fineland Real Estate Group Holdings Ltd.)

and other real estate and private investment firms.

Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and
Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science and a Master of Philosophy degree in Real Estate
Finance from the University of Cambridge. He is a Fellow
Chartered Management Accountant of The American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) & Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA), and a Certified Environmental
Social and Governance Analyst of The European Federation of
Financial Analysts Societies (EFFAS).

Ms. Li Chuchu, Tracy (“Ms. Li”), aged 35, is an Executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Li joined the Company in October 2021
and was appointed as the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the
Company in April 2023. She was further appointed as Chief
Financial Officer, authorised representative, Company Secretary
and a member of the Nomination Committee in September
2023. Ms. Li has extensive experience in private equity
investment, post-investment management, financial advisory
and risk management. She is also a director of certain private
limited companies which Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and his
associates have majority beneficial interests. Before joining
Avantua Group in May 2020, Ms. Li was an investment director
at a private investment firm from December 2017 to April 2020.
From April 2015 to December 2017, Ms. Li was a manager in
advisory services of a global advisory firm and was responsible
for due diligence, regulatory compliance, risk management
and corporate governance. From September 2012 to March
2015, she worked as an assistant manager in audit services
of an international accounting firm. Ms. Li earned a Bachelor
of Business Administration in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2012. She is a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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¢ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS e

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian sBs, Jp (“Dr. Cheng”), aged 45, is
the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the Company.
Dr. Cheng was a non-executive director and the non-executive
vice-chairman (re-designated from executive vice-chairman
and chief executive officer in September 2024) of New World
Development Company Limited (stock code: 17) (“NWD”) until
his resignation with effect from 1 July 2025. He was a non-
executive director (re-designated from executive director in
January 2024) of CTF Services Limited (formerly known as NWS
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 659), an executive director of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929),
and the chairman and a non-executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825) (re-designated
from an executive director and appointed as the chairman in
May 2021), all being companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange until his resignation from those positions with
effect from 26 September 2024. He was a non-executive director
of New Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited (stock code:
1518) and Giordano International Limited (stock code: 709)
and a non-executive director and a cochairman of Meta Media
Holdings Limited (stock code: 72), all being companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until his resignation
from those positions with effect from 1 June 2022, 1 December
2022 and 5 October 2023, respectively. Dr. Cheng was
responsible for the business and financial strategies, operations
and management of NWD, such as strategic directions, property
development, product design and innovation, creative and
technology development, internal control and risk management.
He oversaw NWD's large-scale residential developments
such as Mount Pavilia, Pavilia Farm and Pavilia Forest, and
comprehensive developments such as Victoria Dockside in Tsim
Sha Tsui and Hong Kong International Airport SKYCITY complex
“11 SKIES”. In 2008, Dr. Cheng launched the K11 brand, a
museum-retail complex that is at the nexus of art and commerce
and had extended K11’s reach across retail, hospitality, offices
and non-profit art education through K11 Art Foundation and
K11 Craft & Guild Foundation. He also directed early-stage
funding to start-ups and technology-driven platforms. Dr. Cheng
held various senior roles sine his first joining NWD in 2006.

Dr. Cheng serves as a member of the 14th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
The People’s Republic of China, a vice-president of All-China
General Chamber of Industry and Commerce, the chairman of
the Mega Arts and Cultural Events Committee, a board member
of the Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council
and the chairman of the board of Hong Kong Academy for
Wealth Legacy, and a non-official member of the Task Force on
Promoting and Branding Hong Kong. He is the founder of The
WEMP Foundation and the chairman of China Young Leaders
Foundation. Dr. Cheng is a Justice of the Peace appointed by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
since 2016 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2022.
He was made an “Officier de I'Ordre des Arts et des Lettres” by
the French Government in 2017, and an “Officier de |'Ordre
National du Mérite” in 2022.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from
Harvard University, and received the Honorary Doctorate of
Humanities by the Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014.
He was conferred an Honorary Fellowship by Lingnan University
in 2014, an Honorary University Fellowship by The University of
Hong Kong in 2022 and an Honorary Fellowship by The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2023. Dr. Cheng
worked in a major international bank prior to joining NWD in
September 2006 and has substantial experience in corporate
finance.

At the date of this annual report, Dr. Cheng is the ultimate
beneficial owner of the substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ling Kit Sum Imma (“Ms. Ling”), aged 70, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and the chairlady of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and is a retired assurance
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers. She is an independent non-
executive director of Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code:
229), EVA Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code:
838), Melbourne Enterprises Limited (stock code: 158), ENM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 128) and Chinney Kin Wing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1556, appointed on 2 December
2024), and was also an independent non-executive director of
Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (stock code: 2022) from
November 2017 to June 2021 and Wise Ally International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918) from December 2019 to
June 2023, all being companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mes. Ling is a council member and the treasurer of The Education
University of Hong Kong. She is a member of the Advisory Board
of Hong Kong Institute of Information Technology of Vocational
Training Council. Ms. Ling was appointed as a member of the
Panel of Review Boards on School Complaints of the Education
Bureau of Hong Kong on 17 January 2025 for a term of two
years. Ms. Ling was a board member of Estate Agents Authority
from November 2015 to October 2021, and a board member
of Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board from July
2006 to June 2012. She also served as a member of Hospital
Governing Committee of Hospital Authority from April 2015
to March 2022 and a member of Appeal Board Panel (Town
Planning) from October 2016 to September 2022. She is a
council member and the honorary secretary (with effect from 18
October 2024) of The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups,
an executive committee member of Hong Kong Youth Hostels
Association and an independent manager of the incorporated
management committee of Ng Yuk Secondary School, an aided
school.

Ms. Ling graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with Diploma in
Accountancy and holds a Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) from the Hong Kong
Baptist University. She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario,
Canada and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
She is an accredited general mediator.

Mr. Zhang Guangying (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 62, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang
has over 30 years of experience in the international banking
industry and extensive experience in banking operation and
management. Mr. Zhang was the Deputy Chief Executive of
Nanyang Commercial Bank from November 2017 to May 2023.
Prior to that, Mr. Zhang held key positions at the headquarter
and various overseas branches of China Construction Bank,
including General Manager of the Paris Branch and Deputy
General Manager of the New York Branch. During his long-term
operation and management position in the banking industry, Mr.
Zhang has gained extensive experience in various fields and
business lines, including the formulation and implementation of
development strategies and business strategies of commercial
banks and their overseas branches, corporate banking,
investment banking, financial market, financial institution
business, asset and liability management, compliance and risk
management. Since January 2024, he has been an executive
director of Acme International Holdings Limited, which is a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1870). Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Jilin University of Finance and Economics and a master’s
degree in business administration from Middlesex University in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Zhang is also a senior economist.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Prof. Peng Qian (“Prof. Peng”), aged 44, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. She is currently
an associate professor of business practice at Department of
Finance, a director of Roger King Center for Asian Family
Business and Family Office, a director of Thompson Center for
Business Case Studies, and an co-director of MSc in Family
Office and Family Business program at The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology (“HKUST”). She is also an academic
advisor of Legacy Academy, a fellow and the head of center of
excellence - Legacy at Respada (a global family office platform),
an academic adviser of Asia Institute of Art & Finance, a
founding committee member of the Case Center of Association of
Asia-Pacific Business Schools, and an instructor for PEVC training
program of the Hong Kong Venture Capital Association.

Prof. Peng has 20 years of extensive research and teaching
experience in the areas of family business, family office, family
wealth management, family philanthropy and impact investing.
She has published a number of research articles on academic
journals as well as international and local media. She has also
written various case studies on Asia family businesses and family
offices. Additionally, Prof. Peng offers tailor-made courses on
family business and family office to HKUST students, family
business owners and ultra-high-net-worth individuals globally. She
is a frequent speaker at local and international conferences.

Prof. Peng received her bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Tsinghua University, and her doctor of philosophy degree in
finance from HKUST. She is also a graduate of Harvard Business
School Executive Education program “Private Equity and Venture
Capital”.
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¢ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT e

The Board values transparency and accountability as the keys for
achieving a high standard of corporate governance, earning the
confidence of the Shareholders and the public.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 (formerly known as Appendix 14) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) as its own code on corporate governance
practices. During the reporting period, the Company complied,
based on the information available to the Directors, with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, with the exception of code
provision F.2.2.

Provision F.2.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Dr. Cheng,
the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 23 September 2024
(the “AGM”") due to other business commitments. Mr. Xu Hao, the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Company
who took the chair of the AGM, together with other members of
the Board who attended the AGM, were of sufficient calibre for
answering questions at the AGM and had answered questions at
the AGM competently.

CULTURE AND VALUES

The vision of Break Barriers for Greatness and mission of Think
Tech, Think People are the cornerstone of all strategies of the
Company. Every member of the Group is expected to embrace,
enjoy and understand the corporate culture to attain its vision
and strategy. The Board encourages our staff to be decisive and
proactive in overcoming challenges, learning new things and
striving for success, with an entrepreneurial mindset. To show
compassion, the Board considers how clients feel, their current
situation, what they need, and how to help fix the problem.
The Company would like to connect social progress with our
businesses and create shared values with the society and believes
diversity fosters creativity by bringing together people from
different backgrounds, showcasing a variety of perspectives.
The Board also believes there is no room for doubt or suspicion
when there is integrity and trust, which leads to simplicity and
effectiveness.

The Company strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations to archive the above core values. The Directors,
management and staff are all required to act lawfully, ethically
and responsibly. Training is conducted from time to time to
reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix C3 (formerly known as Appendix 10) of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries with all
Directors, the Company confirmed that throughout the reporting
period, all Directors have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

At the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total
of six Directors, being one Non-executive Director (the “NED”),
namely Dr. Cheng; two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu
and Ms. Li; and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs”), namely Ms. Ling, Prof. Peng and Mr. Zhang, with
expertise and experience covering a wide range of professions.
Currently, out of six Directors, three are female, representing
50% of the Board. The Board will continue to maintain diversity.
The Nomination Committee will select appropriate candidates
through multiple channels and make recommendations to the
Board based on the Company’s board diversity policy and
nomination policy. The number of INEDs represents more than
one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. They have actively participated in the board committees
of the Company and have made significant contribution of
their skills and expertise to these committees. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out from page 13 to 17 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in such biographical details
of directors, none of the members of the Board is related to one
another and the Directors do not have financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

All Directors have entered into formal letters of appointment with
the Company, except for the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
who was appointed for a term of three years, each for a term
of one year, subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”).

Article 112 of the Articles of Association provides that at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. Every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Also, pursuant to Article 95 of the
Articles of Association, any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until
the first annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

To ensure that the Directors have spent sufficient time on the
affairs of the Company, all Directors have annually disclosed
to the Company the level of time involved in performing the
duties of his/her position held in the Company and other public
companies or organisations or other major appointments.

Change in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
the Directors’ information since the date of 2023/2024 Annual
Report of the Company are set out below:

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2024, Dr. Tam Lai Fan
Gloria retired as an INED and ceased to be the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee with effect from 23 September
2024. Mr. Han Kam Leung, Michael resigned as an NED and
a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 31 October
2024. Prof. Peng was appointed as an INED and a member of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 September 2024
and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 31 October
2024. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an INED and a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 28 May 2024, and re-
designated as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee with effect from 23 September 2024.

Dr. Cheng, the Chairman and the NED of the Company, was non-
executive director and non-executive vicehairman (re-designated
from executive vice chairman and chief executive officer in
September 2024) of New World Development Company Limited
(stock code: 17) until his resignation with effect from 1 July 2025.
He was a non-executive director (re-designated from executive
director in January 2024) of CTF Services Limited (formerly known
as NWS Holdings Limited) (stock code: 659), an executive
director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code:
1929), and the chairman and a non-executive director of New
World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825) (re-
designated from an executive director and appointed as the
chairman in May 2021), all being companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange until his resignation from those
positions with effect from 26 September 2024.

Mes. Ling, an INED of the Company, was elected as the honorary
secretary of The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups with
effect from 18 October 2024, and appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Chinney Kin Wing Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1556) on 2 December 2024. She was also
appointed as a member of the Panel of Review Boards on
School Complaints of the Education Bureau of Hong Kong on 17
January 2025 for a term of two years.

Prof. Peng, an INED of the Company, is currently an associate
professor of business practice at Department of Finance. She
was also appointed as a co-director of MSc in Family Office and
Family Business program at the HKUST and an academic advisor
of Legacy Academy.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Change in Directors’ information (Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2024, the monthly salary and
other benefits of Mr. Xu, the CEO and Executive Director of the
Company, has been increased to HK$280,000, and the monthly
salary and other benefits of Ms. Li, the Chief Financial Officer
and Executive Director of the Company, has been increased to

HK$236,065.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” and as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, there
was no change to any of the information required to be disclosed
in relation to any Director pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND

OTHER EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng, the Chairman of the Company, leads the Board and
ensures that the Board works effectively and that all important
issues are discussed in a timely manner and good corporate
governance practice is in force from time to time. Mr. Xu, the
CEO of the Company, oversees the Company’s day-to-day
businesses and the implementation of major strategies and
policies of the Company.

Each of the other Executive Directors takes up different responsibilities
according fo their own expertise. The responsibilities of the Chairman,
the CEO and the other Executive Directors are clearly set out in their
respective letters of appointment. The positions of the Chairman and
the CEO are held by separate individuals to maintain an effective
segregation of duties.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgement on the development,
performance and risk management of the Company. They have
the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as the
Executive Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmations of independence from
all INEDs in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the reporting period, INEDs met regularly with members
of senior management and representatives from major business
units, which provided a good opportunity for INEDs to better
understand the businesses of the Group and to discuss a wide
range of issues concerning the business of the Group.
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ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management, businesses, strategic
directions and financial performance of the Group. It is
collectively responsible for the management and operation of
the Company. The Board is the ultimate decision making body
of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of the
Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Association, the
Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

Day-to-day businesses of the Company are delegated to the
management team which works under the leadership and
supervision of the CEO and the Board as discussed in sections
below.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and the applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The Group complied with all major aspects of laws and
regulations that are significant to its business operations, and
there were no threatened or concluded cases of material nature
in connection with legal compliance during the reporting period.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held at least four times a year with at least
14 days’ notices and additional meetings with reasonable
notices are held as and when the Board considers appropriate.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Board convened a
total of 8 Board meetings. Draft agenda accompanying board
papers for each Board meeting is circulated to all Directors to
enable them to include other matters into the agenda. Adequate
explanation and information were provided to the Directors by
the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making.
Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from
voting on any resolution in which he/she or any of his/her
associates has a material interest in accordance with accordance
with the Listing Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.
Board decisions are voted upon at the Board meetings. All
matters considered by the Board, decisions reached and any
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by the Directors
have been recorded in form of minutes of meetings and are kept
by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with the necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statues,
laws, rules and regulations. From time to time, the Directors are
updated on the latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

The CEO reports the Group's business activities including
operations review, segment performance, strategies and new
initiatives at Board meetings. In addition, all Directors are
provided with regular updates on major business segments
performance and year-to-date financials. All these give the Board
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects and enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development activities to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. From time to time, the Company
has arranged trainings for the Directors and provided relevant
reading materials to the Directors. All Directors have provided
record of training to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Continued) EECEXBRRE@W
Their participation of trainings for the year ended 31 March HBZE-—Z-RE=F=+—-HLFE  KZ2H
2025 are summarised as follows: HUSE SR T

Areas of Continuous
Professional Development

HESXRRER
Corporate Group's
governance/  businesses/
Llegal and  sustainability directors’
regulatory procfices duties

E/I:l/ $$¥i§/

Name of Directors EEng FEREE Tﬁ%ﬁ’l‘.{aiﬁ EERE
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Cheng ChiKong, Adrian s8s, Jp ERER I 8 - sas, P v 4 4
Mr. Han Kam Leung, Michael BEREE v v/ v/
(resigned on 31 October 2024) (R=—E-mE
tHA=+—BEE)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Xu Hao HREE v v v
Mes. Li Chuchu, Tracy ERBUL v v v
INEDs VHBITES
Mes. Ling Kit Sum Imma RO L 4 4 v
Mr. Lo Chun Yu Toby EREFE 4 4 4
(resigned on 28 May 2024) (R=Z=mF
EA=+\HEHE)
Mr. Zhang Guangying RITASEE v v v
(appointed on 28 May 2024) (R=—Z=—mFE
EA=+N\BEZEE)
Prof. Peng Qian wEHE v v v
(appointed on 23 September 2024) (R=ZT=mE
AB=+Z=ZBEZEME)
Dr. Tam Lai Fan Gloria BESBE 4 v v
(retired on 23 September 2024) (R—ZB-ImE
AB=+=HEM)
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZER
The Board discharges some of its responsibilities through é?éiﬁ %*ETHE?‘%E@W?E%ETT}I
delegation to respective board-level committees, namely EFTHE SHAEXZEES  FMWEESRE

Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination HZE€ - FIEESEZESSHEESSREELRK
Committee. All the Board committees are empowered by the SNBEHERTE L  FHEBREECHNES
Board under their own terms of reference which have been  XZFFEME, HAQXTRAIETIH -

posted on HKEx's website and/or the Company’s website.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises of three INEDs, namely Ms. Ling (Chairlady of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Zhang and Prof. Peng.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial controls, its risk management and internal control
systems, financial and environmental, social and governance
related matters. The Audit Committee is empowered to review
and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee
held 3 meetings for planning and review of the financial results
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
and the six months interim period ended 30 September 2024
with recommendations to the Board for approval, review of the
framework and policy of risk management and internal control
systems of the Group with recommendation to the Board for
approval, discussion with the management and the external
auditors on the accounting policies and practices for financial
reporting and internal control function, engagement of non-
audit services and review of continuing connected transactions.
Furthermore, the Audit Committee reviewed the framework and
policy of risk management, the system of internal control and the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of the
Company with recommendation to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises of two INEDs, namely Mr. Zhang (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Prof. Peng Qian, and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Xu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration of all Directors of the Company and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy for the Company for approval by
the Board.

The Remuneration Committee shall also make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Director. The remuneration of individual Executive
Director is determined with reference to his/her duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
as well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. The Company’s Human Capital
Management Department provides materials on relevant
remuneration data, remuneration benchmarks, market analysis
and proposals to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The remuneration package is performance-based and linked to
the Company'’s profitability, aimed to be competitive to attract
and retain talented employees.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met four times
during the year and reviewed the remuneration policy of the
Company, including that for the Directors of the Company.
The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises basic
salary, benefits, pensions and discretionary bonus. Details
of the remunerations of the Directors and members of senior
management for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 are
disclosed in the notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of two INEDs, namely Ms. Ling (Chairlady of the
Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang, and one Executive
Director, namely Ms. Li.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of INEDs taking into account the independence
requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets
out the terms and approach to achieve diversity on the Board
in order to enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the high
standards of corporate governance. Board diversity has been
considered from a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service,
as well as the Company’s business nature and specific needs
from time to time. The Nomination Committee reviews the
Board diversity policy on a regular basis to ensure the Board
has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives that are required to support the execution of
its business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit and
contribution basis and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. The current Board consists of diverse mix of Board
members appropriate to the requirement of the business of the
Company.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

At 31 March 2025, 50% of our workforce and 50% of our
Board are female. The Board considers that the Board and
the Group’s workforce are all diverse in terms of gender. At
present, the Company has not set any measurable objectives for
implementation of the diversity policies in relation to the Board
members and the workforce of the Group (including gender
diversity) and is not aware of any factors or circumstances that
would make it more challenging or less relevant for the Group
to achieve gender diversity among its employees. The Company
will consider and review from time to time such diversity policies
(including gender diversity) and setting of any measurable
objectives (if applicable).

The Board has adopted a nomination policy setting out
the nomination procedures and criteria for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship.

Nomination Committee would make recommendations to
the Board regarding the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, with reference to the skills, knowledge, experiences
education background, professional knowledge, personal
integrity of the proposed candidates, and also the Company’s
needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations
required for the positions. A candidate who is to be appointed as
an INED should also meet the independence criteria as set out in
the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended
to the Board for approval. In the case of re-appointment of an
existing Director, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution and service of the retiring Director to the
Company and determine whether the retiring Director continues
to meet the nomination criteria set out in the nomination policy,
and if appropriate, recommend the retiring Director to the Board
for consideration and recommendation to Shareholders for the
proposed re-election of Director at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the year. It
reviewed the Board diversity policy and the nomination policy
and considered if they remain effective and appropriate for the
Company. Also, it reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules, diversity policy
and nomination policy and considered that the Board consists
of a diverse mix of members and has provided a good balance
of skills and experience appropriate to the business needs of the
Group. It also made recommendation to the Board for the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company in 2024.

REZE®®)

AZE_HEF=A=+—H HMSO%KEIR
50%EBEMENALME - EEERAESEEN
AEEBEIHRMALTHEEIAZ T - BRI » XA
AMARBTESEREREAEEEINZ T
BER (BEERZ ) mElEEATTEEEZ
B THNBEAEESERESAEEERES
MRIZ Tt EERBRETET - XA TG
ZERRAEBEZ T LBER(BEMERZ ) U
RHlEEMAsrEEZ(ER) o

ESEORMEERE  BIEERRBESE
AR B REE -

REZEENZERENZRESOESTRME
BE - BETE2ZTERRBANKRE A8 &
B#HESS EXAE - AARE  UARAR
AZHEERBEBAAMY R 2 HEREEER
RER - BUFBTESZREATEFS LT
BRAIFTE B HRE - SERNRBEABEL
BEEBTESSUSHE EENZERIES
MERLT  REZESRBHNZRTESHER
AMEREMERY  URERTESREMNA
HEREBEFANREER X (WES)DE
EERBZRIES  UHZERMNRRRS
LEREREERRRERES -

RAFE  REZESRTZNER - HEMRF
EFTEZUBERBEEREK  UEBZEHER
BRARRAMERENEERREE © 1 - HRR
BEWRE  ZRBERREEBERNESS
RiE - ABRAR  YTRAREBSEHZTILHE
A RETHEAREXRBTENIIERAE
e o IS REZREETHRARRA-ZEN
FRREFASLEBRIEZQESSRHER
& °

WAR S HRAF) @a



tRESRSE

¢ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT e

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS
Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings,
general meetings and the meetings of the Board Committees held
during the year are set out below:

EXgeR EEZEEERNREREK
B2 HERE
RAFE BEZHEESSSE  RRASRE

EZB8

aoH

ZREESIMT

Meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/RERLESSE
Annual Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination
Board General Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BRR EREZEE FMEEE R2ZEg
R BEAE -F - a3
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Xu Hao EEE 8/8 /1 N/AXEA 4/4 N/ARER
Ms. Li Chuchu, Tracy ERBUL 8/8 1/1 N/ATER N/ATEAR 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Dr. Cheng ChiKong, Adrian s8s,)p Bl +s85 ¢ 7/8 0/1 N/AFEAR N/ATER N/ATEHR
Mr. Han Kam Leung, Michael BERTE
(resigned on 31 October 2024) (R=B=—mE
+A=+—-A#H) 5/5 1/1 2/2 N/ATER N/ATER
Independent Non-executive Directors B k#1785
Mr. Zhang Guangying e
(appointed on 28 May 2024) (R=Z=—mF
A=t NREEM) 7/7 1/1 1/1 3/3 N/ATER
Ms. Ling Kit Sum Imma BERLut 8/8 1/1 3/3 N/ATEMA 3/3
Prof. Peng Qian EHIE
(appointed on 23 September 2024)  (R=Z=m&
RAZH=REZMA) 5/5 N/ATER 1/1 /1 N/ATEA
Dr. Tam Lai Fan Gloria EEREs
(refired on 23 September 2024) (R=B=m&E
NBE=t=HEMA) 3/3 1/1 2/2 3/3 3/3
Mr. Lo Chun Yu Toby EER4AE
(resigned on 28 May 2024) (R=BE-m&E
TAZH\BEHE) 1/1 N/ATER N/ATEH /1 N/ATEA

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditor is Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. Prior
to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Company had reviewed the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well
as the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
that Crowe (HK) CPA Limited is independent with respect to the
Company and that there is no relationship between Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited and the Company which may reasonably be thought
to bear on their independence.

During the year, the external auditor provided audit, audit
related and permissible non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and certain
of its subsidiaries. Audit related services include services such
as issuance of audit or assurance reports for tax, regulatory or
compliance purposes. Permissible non-audit services include
services such as annual review of continuing connected
transactions of the Company. None of these services provided
compromises the independence as auditor, in terms of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, auditors’
remuneration of approximately HK$1,514,000 are charged for
audit service performed by the Company’s auditor, Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited, of approximately HK$1,490,000 and performed
by other auditors of approximately HK$24,000; and for non-
audit service, including interim financial review, IT audit and
review of continuing connected transactions of the Group,
performed by the Company’s auditor, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited,
of approximately HK$504,000, representing approximately 34%
of the total audit and non-audit service fees payable to Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounts department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently except the adoption of revised
standards, amendments to standards and interpretation. The
Directors have not been aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company and the Group
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Company and the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Governance Framework

The Company has consistently recognised the significance
and importance of the internal control system in building and
maintaining a robust and effective risk management mechanism.
The Company has also referenced relevant frameworks
established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
(“COSQO"). The main features of our risk management and
internal control systems are illustrated by the following:

[\ B B TR e R B A

ERERRE
RARRERRAAMEEAGH BT REFESD
BRNEREERFNEZN - XRATTESZE
BREABEESE((COSONELMHBEIESR - K
MHEREERABEZERASENEESHUT

Control

Environment

BRI

e Committed to
integrity and ethical
values
BITHEREREED
HGE

¢ The Board exercises
oversight of the
development and
performance of
internal control
FESEBRIMEEN
BRERR

e Establish structure,
authority, and
responsibility
BYRE - BER
EHE

e Demonstrate
commitment to
competence
AT G

 Enforce
accountability
AIEEE

Risk

Assessment

RBRFFE

® Specify appropriate
objectives
RESEAEZ
Identify and
analyse risk
B R AT B
Assess fraud risk
RSB
Identify and analyse
significant change
HBIRAATEREE

Control

Activities
BEEED
e Select and develop

control activities
BIER HIEEEEE
Select and develop
controls activities
over business
activities
BB¥EKEBRIERS
EEEER

Deploy control
activities through
policies
HIEARBIBR T
EEEUEE

Information and

Communication

HEREEE

e Utilise relevant and
quality information
to support the
functioning of
internal control
EFHEREE AL
R EEEE
Internally
communicate
information,
including objectives
and responsibilities
AEEBE ’
BEBERERE
Communicate with

external parties

in relation to
matters affecting
the functioning of
internal control
BEINBA LT RFE
REBESIREMEZ
EEETER

Monitoring

Activities

EEEE

e Select, develop and
perform ongoing
and/or separate
evaluations to
ascertain the
functioning
B2 HIERET

R/ REH

L 0 RREThAE
Evaluate and
communicate
deficiencies in a
timely manner to the
responsible parties
T2 B R R PR I ER ES 4F
bap 31T

Operation Reporting Compliance
g5 HE CE
Effectiveness and Reliability, timeliness and Adherence to laws and
efficiency transparency regulations
B RME S - REMERERE BREERER
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)
Risk Management Process

Concerning risk management, the Group has adopted both
the “top-down” and “bottom-up” approaches. The top-down
approach carries out refinements and adjustments from the
senior management and the Board, to allow and assist the
management in accomplishing the objectives. We have clearly
defined the risk oversight persons and the risk owners across the
Group, for which they are responsible for identifying, analysing
and evaluating the risks (including but not limited to business,
operation, environmental, social and governance risks). This
process is embedded in our daily operations and involves
all parts of the Group, from the Board down to each staff. It
is performed by consolidating, assessing and appraising the
bottom-up information and data from risk owners and responsible
persons of the specific departments and business units of the
Group.

e Identifying and prioritising the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives;

* assessing the current management of those key risks;

e identifying areas where potential deficiency and gaps may
exist;

e discovering opportunities for improvements; and

e performing consideration of avoiding, reducing or transferring
those risks to resolve material internal control issues.

B B R N EPEE S (m)
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Board (Risk Management Oversight)

g (AREEEER)

* Oversees the Company’s risk management
policies and processes

ERANARREREBRKRE

Head of the departments (Risk & Control

Monitoring)

MPHIEEA (EREEERER)

e |dentifies, assesses and manages the
significant operating risks facing the

* Reviews and ensures that the Group has
maintained and carried out effective and
appropriate risk management and internal
control systems
B RBRAEEC AR RERERR
BENRRERERNIEERSR

e Determines the nature and extent of the
outstanding emerging and existing risks
BEMHRERAERBINEEREE

Company
WAl AR EEA D AHEENEREERR

* Monitors the risk management and internal
control systems and implements new control
EFEREERA SRR BN

Business/operating units (Operation Risks &

Internal Controls Ownership)

X wEEN (FERRRABERAE)

e Risk identification, assessment and mitigation
performed across various departments
BARFIEST R SR AR

e Practices across business operations and
functional areas

REKEER B EET
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)
Risk Management Process (Continued)

Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure is divided into two
levels. As the first level, it represents the risk owners of all the
Group's corporate departments and business units. They should
identify and evaluate the risks which may potentially impact the
achievement of the business objectives. They are also responsible
for designing and executing the control procedures in the daily
operation for mitigating and monitoring the risks (including but
not limited to business, operation, environmental, social and
governance risks). A regular risk assessment will be conducted to
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of controls to mitigate
the identified risks.

The second level includes the designated staff who effectuate risk
management and ensure the first level implements appropriate
controls and executes properly. The second level is responsible
for aspects including but not limited to financial control, risk
management, data privacy and information security, compliance,
sustainability, etc.

The Group has a clearly defined management structure with
specified authority limits and segregated responsibilities to
achieve business control objectives. Different guidelines and
approval procedures for each department have been set clearly,
including the division of operations and financial personnel
responsible for the approval processes. To provide reliable and
complete financial information for internal management and
publication, a separate finance team is designated to ensure
the accounting records of all the Group companies are properly
maintained, and in compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The senior executives shall be expected to assess
the financial data regularly, with the Board and responsible for
verifying and maintaining oversight.

Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board has the overall responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board should also evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks when the Company considers taking the risk in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)
Review of Internal Control Systems (Continued)

During the year, the Group’s business activities were regulated
activities conducted through subsidiaries that were regulated,
and the risk management and internal control systems applicable
to each such business and sitting within the relevant regulated
subsidiary were relied upon to cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The
Company’s internal audit framework ensures that Group-wide
additional policies and controls are effectively implemented,
so that all material audit matters will be directly and regularly
reported to the Audit Committee. Through conducting reviews,
reports and discussions with the risk owners and the Board,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems can be assessed and refined. The Audit Committee and
the management can then discuss the adverse implications of
such findings and suggestions on the reports. The rectification
measures have to be in place within a reasonable timeframe.
A follow-up review of the agreed implementation and controls
in response to the identified deficiencies and findings will be
conducted regularly to evaluate the effectiveness and report the
status to the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, no material internal control
defects or significant areas of concern were identified. The Audit
Committee considered the Group's risk management and internal
control systems effective and adequate and will review the
effectiveness of its operation once a year.

The Company continued to recognise the need for the
management to address and mitigate the deficiencies in internal
controls over operations, compliance, financial and non-
financial reporting, especially in the changing business and
operating environment. There was no material inadequacy in
terms of resource adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the various
functions brought to the attention of the management during the
year.

Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing Policy

The Company recognises that employees play an essential
and integral part in the risk management and internal control
systems of the corporate structure. During the induction process,
employees are required to understand the Company’s objectives,
expectations and practices through training and the Compliance
Manual.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)
Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing Policy (Continued)

The Company has established the Whistleblowing Policies to
govern the reporting and investigation of allegations of actual
and suspected misconduct or unethical activities within the
Group. We clearly deliver the message to all the employees that
it is necessary, and they are encouraged to, report concerns
in confidence regarding any severe concern about suspected
misconduct, malpractice, irregularity, corruption or fraud related
to the Company. Prior to reporting such concerns, particularly
when dealing with sensitive client information, staff must consider
the implications of a potential violation of relevant secrecy
provisions or requirements. The Board has been delegated
overall responsibility for the reported cases in a confidential and
timely manner.

To avoid all forms of bribery and corruption, staff are prohibited
from soliciting, accepting or offering any bribe when conducting
business. We required our staff to strictly comply with the
Prevention of Bribery policy, follow the sample code of conduct
issued by the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(the “ICAC"), and other guidance such as receiving gifts or
advantages stated in the Compliance Manual. Staff must declare
and attain approval for any conflict of interest via the Conflicts of
Interest Declaration Form to the responsible divisions.

Board Independence Mechanism

The Company has established a mechanism to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. This
is achieved by giving Directors access to external independent
professional advice from legal advisers and auditor, as well as
the full attendance of all independent Directors at all the meetings
of the Board and its relevant committees held during the reporting
period. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness
of the aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.

Corporate Disclosure and Inside Information

The Board is aware of the importance of handling and
disseminating inside information about the Company on an
accurate, timely and complete basis. Therefore, the Company has
established the Policy of Confidential and Inside Information for
making instructions to oversee internal control over the relevant
information. The policy consists of the principles and procedures
with reference to the requirements and principles set out in the
Listing Rules and the Guide on Disclosure of Price-Sensitive
Information issued by the Stock Exchange. The Board is obligated
to ensure that the continuous disclosure standards and procedures
comply with the requirements of Listing Rules, Securities and
Futures Ordinance and other applicable laws and regulations. All
Directors and employees are bound by this policy to safeguard
confidential information. For the purpose of complying with
the requirement of disclosure of inside information, the policies
and procedures will be reviewed by the Legal and Compliance
Division or Internal Audit on an annual basis.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li, the Company Secretary of the Company is the Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary reports to the CEO on the Board’s governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows
and communications among the Directors, as well as with the
Shareholders and management of the Company. For the year
under review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1. Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting
Pursuant fo the Articles of Association of the Company, any
one or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company can deposit a
written request to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business or
resolution specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/themselves may convene a physical meeting at only
one location.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

2.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board.

A Shareholder may propose a person for election as a
Director by lodging at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Units 1-2, Level 9, K11 ATELIER
King’s Road, 728 King’'s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong (i)
a written notice of his/her intention to propose that person
for election as a Director; and (i) a written notice by that
person of his/her willingness to be elected as a Director
together with the necessary information within the period
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting and ending no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be sent by mail to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Units 1-2, Level 9, K11 ATELIER King’s Road, 728 King's
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board
or via email at ir@artatechfin.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company's corporate website (https://www.artatechfin.com)
facilitates effective communications with Shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders, making corporate information and
other relevant financial and non-financial information available
electronically and on a timely basis. This includes extensive
historical information about the Group’s performance and
activities via Interim Report, Annual Report, announcements
and other corporate information. The Board reviewed the
communication policy with investors, including Shareholders, and
considered it is effective.

Shareholder’s meetings, such as annual general meetings and
extraordinary general meetings, provide another channel for
the Board to meet and communicate with Shareholders. All
Shareholders are provided with sufficient notice to attend the
Shareholders’ meetings. The results of the voting by poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website on a timely basis.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
setting out the principle to determine the declaration of dividends
or recommend such payment which shall be subject to all
applicable laws and regulations as well as the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. The Board will take
into account the Company’s financial performance, current
economic conditions, future prospects and all relevant factors in
determining the declaration of dividends or recommendation on
such payment. The Dividend Policy and its effectiveness shall be
reviewed on a regular basis or as required.

REEZEBRERBH

AR Tz 2 B (https://www.artatechfin.com)
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Purpose and Objective

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG”) report (the “Report”) to our stakeholders.
The Report presents a clear overview of our ESG management
approach, measures and performance in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Code (the “ESG Reporting Code”) as
set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX").

Reporting Scope and Period

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope includes our business
operations at the headquarter office in Quarry Bay (“Quarry
Bay office”) and the reception office in Central (“Central office”),
which oversees the Group’s overall business operation and
contributed approximately 100% of the Group’s total revenue for
the period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 (the “Reporting
Period” or “FY 2024/25"). The reporting scope is determined by
the materiality to our business and operations, as well as its ESG
impacts. The operation of the Central office was newly added
to the reporting scope during the Reporting Period to present the
Group's sustainability performance in a more comprehensive
manner.

Reporting Principles
We have adhered to the four reporting principles in the course of
the Report preparation:

BRI &

RERBEE
FEEMADERMNFOERZRE  HERE
BIRE - HERERDRE(TH/ED - |ER
BEBBMEXSMAERAR (BB M
#E S LR R EmRA ) MSRC2FTEERR -
HERERBRETA(RE  HEREARET
Al DWIBEESR  BAHBURARMORE - HER
EREESH - HiERRR

HEBERR

BREAHRBIN  BRESESEREEBAREER
((HABNSEDERPRESE(PRBE
BRNWEXBELE ZEPNEREEEEREEN
BREXBELEE TERMAEER-"Z-_NFHNA
—HEZZRF=ZA=+-HHB(HEH IR
(2= ZhEF DBKEL100% © | EEH
ERBHXBEREENEEMRARE - HER
ERTEETE - RIBEHN - REHEHFAASD
BENEENEE  UEXEZFAEENTEHE
BRRE -

HERA
EREBENBRET  RAERERAEERER
2l

Reporting Principle ~ Description The Group's Response
s R A it A EE e e
Materiality The Report should cover ESG issues that We identify material environmental and
are sufficiently important to investors and social issues that significantly impact
other stakeholders. investors and other stakeholders through
stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessments, which are presented in the
sections of “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment”.
EEM BEEREHREEREMEHEBRRERN KMEBEBHDESERBEMTME - AHRE

RS (HERELGHEE -

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Principles (Continued)

Reporting Principle  Description

BERANRE @)
W& FREA (&)

The Group's Response

s R A i 7 52 [ 19 21 e
Quantitative The Report should disclose key performance  The Report discloses its environmental and

indicators (“KPI”) that are measurable.
Targets should be set to reduce

a particular impact. Quantitative
information should be accompanied by a
narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts
and given comparative data where

appropriate.
Bt RERKE A ENERENER(BERANE

7)) BEEREARDARNSE - B8(LE
BIEKMARE  MEAENREE  UEEE
BRTRHLEREE -

Balance The Report should provide an unbiased
picture of the Group's performance,
and should avoid selections, omissions,
or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or
judgement by the report reader.

Fg BEERETRIAAGEHEAEENERE - BE2T
REETRETERERERRIA R
B mERAZ2HERX -

Consistency The methodologies used to calculate the
KPIs in this Report should be consistent
with those used in the previous year, to
allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG
data over time.

—Hi ARERNAN ERRENIEEN ST EZREEF
AN -3 UEERBHRE HERER
HBETERRNLR -

Access to the Report

As part of the Group’s annual report, this Report has been
prepared in both English and Chinese. In case of any
discrepancy between these two versions, the English version
shall prevail. The report is available on the official website of the
Group and the website of the HKEX.

Your Feedback

Your feedback on our ESG management approach and
performance is crucial for our ongoing improvement in
sustainable development. We invite you to share your comments
via email at esg@artatechfin.com.

social KPls in a quantitative manner,
under appropriate conditions. Information
on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions, and/or calculation tools
used, and sources of conversion factors
used, have been disclosed when
applicable.

HERNBEBRTUECARNBEERERTS
BREMIEE  WERBERER T HENAEZ
B BRR/SAEIANER UK
FrABERSMNRR

The Group's performance during the
reporting period has been presented
impartially, avoiding choices, omissions,
or presentation formats that may
unduly influence readers’ decisions or
judgements.

FEBRBERANRRERRIGHL2R - B
RURSBELERERTIHERE B
RH2HER -

We adopt consistent statistical
methodologies and KPI presentations
to enable meaningful comparisons of
related data over time.

BASEA—BST AR ERERIERZ25A
N LUERER EEREREETER RN
e

BEAHE

ERFAEEFHRN -0 » ARECUPER
B IMERABEMEE  BMUREURES
Z - RECLHERKEELRUREBRZFR
Ak o

BT H R

BTHRMWRE HEREAEESHRRR
MREHEMATFERRNSENZEREE -
B BT BB E BesgQartatechfin.com 7 Z&
Ho
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ABOUT THE GROUP BEAEREER
Our Business Overview BRI EBBRE

The Group is a leading Hong Kong-based financial platform that #&EZ —E4#4LBBEEE  BARAEF
aspires to become a one-stop financial steward that customized — B#t— X ELHNGSHBBRATE  WEES
wealth management solutions for clients’ comprehensive financial EWEFRER - AEEIERELEBBKE &
needs. The Group is principally engaged in the financial services 4% :

sector, including:

a) Global markets business segment composes of brokerage operations including (i) securities and futures
brokerage and margin financing operations; (i) placing, in both equity capital market and debt capital
market, and underwriting; and (iii) provision of advisory services for private structured finance transactions
and mergers and acquisitions;

ERMSEBIHEELLEL  BR(|RSRPERLURFRAMEE | (i|BE (RREEATSER
BEREARTS) UREHE K| BREEBMERERS URHFBRHUBBRY

b) Asset management business segment offers traditional asset management products and services, including
investment advisory, external asset management, portfolio management, fund incubation and transaction
execution to professional and institutional investors;
EEEEXERIMAEXNHBEREERMEREETEEMNRY  BEREER - IMNIEEEE - KR
BHAEE - ESBLERXZHT

c) Insurance brokerage business segment engages in insurance brokerage business and the provision of
wealth planning and related services;

REEACAR T D B BRI A TS LU R IR B R I I AE B AR TS

d) Investment business segment engages in the investments of low-risk and high liquidity investment portfolio
and proprietary trading;
REEB DB RBREBERRSABMREEAEURBERS

e) Wealth management and consultancy services business segment offers tailored services and an all-in-one
solution to meet the unique needs of each client, including but not limited to family offices, institutional
investors and ultra-high-net-worth families.

NEEENBEERRBEZ I BRBATKRLE - BFBREEZENBESFEALSEFPREHEESEFNRYE
R—URFORF R R TEEFHBRHER -

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY BN HERR L&

Sustainability Management Approach and Strategy ARERREES SRR

The Group is dedicated to leading in ESG performance within ~ ZREEHHABIE HEREARBHERISHE
the FinTech industry. To create a more resilient future for all our & BRHETERSELMN - RIFCHERER T
stakeholders, we have formulated our ESG framework, which — kmlis@a R : (1)R8IF ; (2)EEE  (3)EE ;
is built on four key sustainability pillars: (1) Innovation; (2) R (4)BIIEHIBE - HERERER  URE T
Empowerment; (3) Green; and (4) Care, as well as the goals @FRRIBENREREBE*  AFESOEHE
and targets* for each of the sustainability pillars. Additionally, FEEZHHKRK o lih » REBESIERE HIE
the Group has established robust ESG governance framework to 15 - @ REARIPIESR  UERATBERRER
strengthen sustainability performance. 3 o

1 .
_‘O’_ Innovation
’ ~

A (E
Leveraging innovation for continuous improvement
UEAFBERTE
Goal:
B
To be the financial services partner of choice for innovative fintech solutions and services

HAFESRNMRBR A ZERBBAAEESRRBSERMY

N7  Empowerment

&
oM\ FREE

Curating a decent people-centric workplace for our people
BETHEUABEXRIEE L IFSAF

Goal:

BE:

To foster a corporate culture that nurtures talent while bringing joy and equality to people
EEBEBAT  ARABTHRRERZ I TFERFNEENIL

Green

ze

Pursuing a sustainable operation pattern for climate-resilient

BEREARIREZEIH A IFEELER

Goal:

B

To strengthen climate resilience and reduce our ecological footprints in our operation to protect our planet

IEESRIRAVEEEE ) - MO RPEEEPHERRY - REHIR

*  Please refer to the section headed “Green” for our green targets.

* AERMNSEBER #2H (el -8

Fostering a caring culture for the community

EEEEHENXIE
Goal:
B

To spread love to the community through engaging ourselves in community contributions

EMNZEB2HELESH @ OHEEEEDL

WENSERA T @
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)
Sustainability Governance and Board’s Oversight

The Board has overall responsibility for our ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is also responsible for overseeing our
ESG issues, including our sustainability management approach,
strategies and measures, with an emphasis on the Group's long-
term development and positioning.

Delegated by the Board, the Senior Management of the Group
(“Senior Management”) is tasked with assisting the Board in
overseeing the Group’s ESG management approach and advises
the Board on matters including the below on an annual basis
through board meetings:

development and review of the goals and targets,
sustainability strategies and priorities of the Group;

identification, evaluation, prioritisation and management of
material ESG-related risks and opportunities (including but
not limited to climate-related risks and environmental and
social risks in supply chain);

reviewing and formulating ESG-related policies and
practices to ensure compliance with laws and regulations;

monitoring and assessing our ESG performance, as well as
reviewing progress made against goals and targets; and

preparing an annual ESG report of their activities for Board
approval.

The Board
EEg

Senior Management

BREEE

BAWATHERRG &)
TRERREREESEE
ESE2EAERMNERE HEREARBR
ER EEFEUMIAEENRBERERE
i FPEEEERMNEE HERELEH
BIETHEERERIH R RER -

REFERR AEESREEE(SRER
BHBESSEEAEENRE - HEREAR
EELH  YBFREFTESRLRUTSEG
EFERMHER 85

o HERBNAKENBER  AJFHERRER
REXREE;

o A FRME - EXRHNREEERE  HE
REREBENEXRERNEE (BFEETR
RERBERMBUAREEENRER EEE
B s

s MIERFERR - HEREAHBERERE
B BRETEERER

o EERNMERIE  HEREARRE  URR
NERBERNER K

s RUFERE HERELABRENEBHEE
B HESSHE-

ESG-related Responsible Team Members
B HEREREEEEERRE
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

ESG-related Risk Management

The Board holds overall responsibility for overseeing the Group's
ESG risk management. Our Senior Management regularly
identifies, evaluates, prioritizes and manages material ESG-
related risks, including climate-related risks and environmental
and social risks within the supply chain. Senior Management
submits an ESG risk assessment report to the Board on a regular
basis, ensuring the Board’s ultimate oversight of the Group’s
risk management activities. The Board regularly reviews the
effectiveness of control measures and provides recommendations
in due course.

We have conducted an ESG risk assessment to enhance our risk
mitigation and response strategies. The steps of the Group’s ESG
risk management process are as follows:

1. Identification

1. &5l

BENSERRES @)

BRE - HEREAERARER
EXERAEEAKERE  dHERERAARE
EHREST SRTEBTHEA TG 6
REFIREEBERRE - HEREARBERR -
BEREARARRARHERNREREEE
B WEHMPESERIRE  HERERAR
AEHE  BRESSHASERREREEHN
BREE EXSEHRnERER BN X
BRI R o

HMEETRR S REBEBTM - LR
Rl ER R B R - AEBNERE - HERE
AEBEERESRNT

With the assistance of independent professional sustainability consultants, we identified relevant ESG-related risks,
including climate-related risks as well as environmental and social risks along the supply chain.

BV EEUFERRBROHYT - RARBRE - 4 EREEHEBERR - SERGEEERRURHEREBNRERESER

2. Evaluation

2. &

|4l

We evaluated the potential impacts and likelihood of the identified key ESG-related risks.

BRMFAERBBRERE HEREANBERRMNEELER TR -

3. Prioritisation

3. BIRHES

We prioritised the key ESG risks by considering risk level scores in terms of potential impact and likelihood.
BMNERSERAEMEIEZBHEERE  EREARRNARKT D - MEZERBETERIS

4. Management and Mitigation

|4l

4. BB KRR

To address identified ESG risks, relevant operational units are responsible for implementing corresponding risk
mitigation and internal control measures to minimize their impact on our business.

REHTHANERE - HERERRR - BAFLEEEVSENTERBRNERER N AIMEEER - EBRMEBNY

EREHE -

The results of the ESG risk assessment, along with any other relevant issues, were reported to the Board for

discussion, review and providing recommendation.

RIE - dERERABGEERREAEGERSEYC AESS®RE - HENW - R RRHES -

WENSERA T @
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

Sustainability Policy

The Group has established a comprehensive Sustainability
Policy to underpin our sustainability framework. We prioritize
responsible procurement across our operations and supply chain,
ensuring that all our activities do not adversely affect people or ¥ ABRBIBER RRLE o
the environment. The Board regularly reviews and updates the

Sustainability Policy as needed.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has established a range of channels to communicate
with our key stakeholders. By understanding their needs and

ARHEBRRERE

rtrE2R

concerns, we can further enhance our sustainability strategies B REIERIEHE o

and measures.

Key Stakeholder Groups
TEFHERR

Communication Channels

BN TFEER S & @

L 4

AEECHEZANTHERRBIRERSTHE
BRRERNER  -RBEELEREEED - KM
BELERAEERE  BERAN-—DEDH IS
EsEEMmat
REBBEHM FEBRECE

AEBCEVEZREETIERNEEE - BB
THRAZRREIER  RMTE-DNRATHE

Shareholders and Investors

BRERRRESE

Employees

(==

Clients
BF

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

General meetings
RERE

Financial reports

RS

Corporate website

NEHIh

Announcements, notices of meetings, circulars
nNE-FRBE BR

Employee survey

EERIT

Regular internal workshops
ERRE TS

Post-event feedback survey
ERNERE

Staff activities

BTEH

Social media and company website
TR R DR

Customer hotline and email
BEFRGBRER
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued) BN OHERR L& @)
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) BHESHE)

Key Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels

FTEFMGERR BERE

Government Authorities and Regulators Conferences and seminars
BB REE SERAHE
e Regular phone calls and email communications
EHEFREREA
e Company announcement and newsletter
DA D ERIE
e Financial reports

S

Suppliers and Business Partners e Sustainability questionnaire
GEAENES A AHERREBEHREE
®  Regular meetings
EHEE

Communities e Charity events
tE BEED
e Community inferaction and activities
HEEBREE

HWEMESER

/N
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

Materiality Assessment

We engaged the independent sustainability consultant to conduct
a materiality assessment during the Reporting Period. This
assessment aimed to identify most material ESG topics pertinent
to our business and stakeholders. The results of this assessment,
along with relevant ESG topics, undergo annual review by both
the Senior Management and the Board.

Our materiality assessment comprises the following steps:

Step 1: Identification Step 2: Prioritisation
F—% @Al F=H L BIRES

We identified a
total of 25 relevant
ESG topics based
on the HKEX ESG
Re;i)orting Code,
industry frends and

stakeholder
feedback.
KPBRBEEERS

FrERE - 8k
ERMESTR S 1T
(BT EFEHER
85 0 B E 251
BE #HE2REAR

TERERRE -

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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EEMTMG

RIBESR > RMEEB LS EEREERET
BEEMFE o A EERAIEER NS0 &
ANREEZRE HEREREE ATHER
URHEBEERE HEREAEZEHSREEER
EEEEITEER -

EEMFEBEENTEIR

Step 3: Validation

B=F  BR
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continued)

The materiality matrix illustrates the degree of importance of
the 25 ESG issues to both the Group’s business continuity and
development, as well as to our stakeholders. Based on the
outcomes of the online questionnaire, a total of 8 ESG topics
were identified as most material during the Reporting Period,
categorized in Tier 1 of the materiality matrix. Information
pertaining fo the 8 most material topics has been detailed in the
subsequent sections of this Report.

REWFERR S &)

BFEMFMLE)

EEMBEGEERE tEREREEHAN
EEEREEMRBRUREBNENEEZRE
RERLIBEEAENER  SHSERE - HER
EREERAREHANREERE 2845
EEMERSIR EHSEREERENERE
WA EREZR PR -

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

igher

H
i

ofiE

HENENEEY

Importance to stakeholders

'y
g %ﬁ Tier 3
S ERE
Lower Importance to business continuity and development Higher
B HEBBEEABROEEN 80E

. Tier 1: . Tier 2: Tier 3:
AR B24: KR
Most Material Topics Material Topics Relevant Topics
REERE EERE [z

@ Green @ Empowerment @
ge FELRE

Innovation . Care
RIE ealEd

WERSBR AT Qﬂ
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued) BN AISERR S & @)
List of ESG-related Material Topics B HEREAEREEREEE

ESG-related Material Topics Report Sections

RE - HEREREREERE HEEH

Tier 1: Most Material Topics

%1 N BREERE
Green procurement Green Procurement
REREE BmeRE

11. Employee development and training Troining and Development
BE R K B ERE

12. Employment compliance Empowerment
BREHR fiBE

19. Anti-corruption Antl -corruption
RE5 k&5

20. Business ethics Anti-corruption
[GEIEE RES

21. Protecting the rights and interests of shareholders and customers ~ Product and Service Quality Assurance
REEIRR N &= F s EmRREEERE

24. Data protection and cybersecurity Data Privacy Protection and Cybersecurity
ERRERARZE AEERRERARZE

25. Community investment Care
HEIRE B

Tier 2: Material Topics
%2%& EERE

Energy efficiency and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission

MBS NMBERE (DRERE]) K

8. Employee welfare
EERF

9. Employee engagement, equal-opportunity, diversity, and inclusion
EE2H - TERE  ZHRMERER

10. Occupational health and safety
BERREZE

16. Service quality management
REEREE

17. Intellectual property rights management
ABEREE

18. Responsible marketing and advertising
SERLHERES

22. Systemic risk management

ZEMEREE

Tier 3: Relevant Topics

%3%& HREE

Air emissions

EER B

2. Waste

BEZEY)

4. Water consumption

AxE

5. Climate change and resilience

RIS RBEERED

7. Environmental risk in supply chain
HESE T VIR AR

13. Sustainable supply chain/ethically responsible sourcing
A EMERE  HREERENEEERE

14. Green and responsible investment
BweRaEERE

15. Financial technology innovation
T RURHR BT

23. Product design and life cycle management

EmRsT ARER

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED



BE HERELI&ES

e ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT e

INNOVATION

RIFT

Approach
Fét

Leveraging innovation for continuous improvement
DRI BZRR &

Goal
BE

EANSRNRBRADTRRRBRAEEERBRBEERH

To be the financial services partner of choice for innovative fintech solutions and services

We are committed to putting our customers first, understanding
their needs to innovate practical solutions for an accessible,
friendly and knowledge-driven experience. We have established
policies and procedures relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress. Additionally, we ensure
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
product responsibility and anti-corruption?, upholding integrity
and accountability in all our activities.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to our products and services provided and methods of
redress, as well as prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

Customer Experience and Satisfaction

To enhance customer experience, we offer a dedicated customer
hotline and email support that connect directly to our customer
service teams. This ensures prompt assistance with any queries
and provides necessary information in a professional and
efficient manner. Additionally, a comprehensive and user-friendly
guide is provided for our infernet trading platform customers to
improve customer accessibility and ease of use. We also monitor
the markets to identify emerging trends and opportunities,
ensuring our products and services meet our customers’ needs.

1 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list
of product responsibility and anti-corruption related laws and
regulations that are significant to the Group's business operations.
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INNOVATION (Continued)

Supply Chain Management

Effective supply chain management is essential to maintaining
the high quality of the Group's services. We have established
guidelines on supplier management to ensure adherence to
our fair, transparent, and sustainable procurement policies and
prioritize suppliers that meet our criteria of comprehensive and
stringent selection and evaluation processes.

The Group emphasizes the importance of identifying and
monitoring environmental and social risks along the supply chain.
During the supplier selection phase, we conduct meticulous
screening and evaluation on quality, cost, capabilities,
and environmental and social risk assessments. Regular
communication and due diligence are integral to our process to
prevent any violations of ESG standards. Our expectations are
clearly conveyed from the outset, and any verified third-party
reports of violations will result in the termination of the business
relationship once verified. We prioritize suppliers who adopt
eco-friendly practices and uphold robust ESG commitments.
We continually monitor and review our supplier engagement
practices ensuring adherence to our ESG standards.

During the Reporting Period, we engaged 2 (FY 2023/24: 1)
suppliers from Hong Kong, all of whom meet the relevant ESG
standards and requirements.

Product and Service Quality Assurance

The Group is dedicated to delivering high-quality financial
services which strictly adhering to relevant laws and regulations?
to meet the investment and financial needs of our customers.
Our subsidiaries are licensed and regulated under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) to provide financial services
and regulated activities. We conduct regular reviews of our
service quality standards, aligning with both internal policies and
regulatory requirements.

We have established a comprehensive product and service
quality management system for stringent quality control and
assurance. In response to market dynamics, we regularly
enhance our quality management, including rigorous inspections
of incoming materials and final products.

During the Reporting Period, there were no material complaints
from customers related to our products and service (FY 2023/24:
nil). As the Group's business operations do not involve product
manufacturing and do not have products sold or shipped that are
subject to recalls for safety or health reasons, recall procedures
are considered not applicable.

2 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list
of product responsibility related laws and regulations that are
significant to the Group's business operations.
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INNOVATION (Continued)

Data Privacy Protection and Cybersecurity

The Group places utmost importance on safeguarding the privacy
and confidentiality of customer information. We ensure that all
customer data is securely stored and prioritize cybersecurity
measures to protect customer data. Our Personal Data (Privacy)
Policy, overseen by divisional leaders, governs the collection,
handling, and disclosure of data to prevent unauthorized access
and data leakage. Access to sensitive information on servers
is restricted to authorized users only. We strictly adhere to
relevant laws and regulations?, prohibiting the use of personal
client information for direct marketing without client’s consent.
Moreover, our Information Technology Division actively monitors
server usage and maintains up-to-date antivirus software to
ensure the safety of data.

Advertising and Labelling

We uphold our responsibility to ensure that our investment
product deck does not contain any false or misleading
information. In accordance with the Guidelines for Production
of Marketing Materials outlined in our Compliance Manual, we
strictly adhere to all applicable laws and regulations relating
to advertising and labelling, ensuring that all published and
provided information and marketing materials are free from
misleading content. To uphold these standards, advertisement
promoting our financial services or products undergoes thorough
review and approval by the Joint Committee including IR/PR,
Legal and Compliance Division and Senior Management prior to
the publishment.

Intellectual Property Protection

Ensuring comprehensive protection and management of
intellectual property rights is one of the top priorities for the
Group. We adhere strictly to all relevant laws and regulations3,
with specific policies in place to effectively manage intellectual
property rights. Continuous monitoring of our operations
and other activities is conducted to prevent any instances of
intellectual property infringement.

3 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list
of product responsibility related laws and regulations that are
significant to the Group's business operations.
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INNOVATION (Continued)

Anti-corruption

We maintain zero-tolerance against bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering across our operations. Our employees
are strictly prohibited from soliciting or accepting advantages,
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering, or
participating in anti-competitive behaviours.

Our anti-corruption policies, ethical standards and requirements
are outlined clearly in the Employee Handbook. The Group has
also established an internal Compliance Policy and Code of
Conduct that provides clear guidelines on managing Conflicts of
Interest. It is mandatory for all company directors and employees
to adhere strictly to these policies to uphold the integrity of the
Group's business practices.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering, and
there were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or our employees (FY 2023/24: nil).

Anti-corruption Training

The Group places a high value on business integrity and the
integrity of our employees. To strengthen our anti-corruption
culture, we provided relevant training to directors and staff during
the Reporting Period by distributing training materials to ensure
understanding of anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
requirements. Both directors and employees were required to
complete and pass the training assessment.

Whistleblowing System

The Group is committed to implementing a clean, fair, impartial,
transparent and stable corporate governance mechanism.
Therefore, we have formulated Whistleblowing Policy to
protect our employees from retaliation or discrimination for
reporting misconduct or participating in official investigations by
maintaining confidentiality to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Multiple whistle-blowing channels, such as emails to receive
valid anonymous reports or complaints filed by employees and
other third parties, are provided to different stakeholder parties
for complaints and whistleblowing. The Group ensures that all
reported incidents will be handled properly and kept in strict
confidence to protect the complainants’ identity and the content
of the complaint.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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GREEN

Be

Approach
Fét

Pursuing a sustainable operation pattern for climate-resilient
BREARBREZENWAFHELERR

Goal
BE

IEEERIRNEREESD - B RMELEEPHEREN - REHIK

To strengthen climate resilience and reduce our ecological footprints in our operation to protect our planet

In our commitment to responsible stewardship of the planet, we
dedicate significant efforts to environmental protection. Policies
and internal guidelines, including Climate Change Policy and
Green Office Policy, are formulated to guide our employees in
strengthening climate resilience, mitigating pollution, ensuring
effective use of resource, and minimizing environmental
footprints, in accordance with relevant environmental laws and
regulations*.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Climate Resilience and Management

With the assistance of an independent sustainability consultant,
we have conducted an ESG risk assessment to identify climate-
related risks and evaluate their overall risk levels and potential
impact on our business operations. To mitigate these risks, we
also take reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”).

4 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list
of environmental laws and regulations that are significant to the
Group's business operations.
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GREEN (Continued)

Climate Resilience and Management (Continued)

Rt m)
SRIRFEREE HEEEE (57)

Resilience Measures

i 200

Time horizon
B &S

Potential Impacts
BETE

Risk Description
| B 4

Physical Risks
BREE

o Acute Risk
S EDEE RS

o Chronic Risk

Transition Risks

B E R

o Market Risk
miSERE

* Policy and Legal
Risk
BRAER R

e Short, medium
and long ferm
EH - REIR
R

* Medium and
long term

REIR R

* Medium and
long term

FER RS

* Medium and
long term

REIR R

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

* Increased cost to repair

damaged equipment, and/or
facilities

BERBR/RREHEBERAE

1

Potential health and safety
risks for employees
EEMEERERZ2ER

Increased energy use and
equipment maintenance cost

BERE AR RERERAEM

Decreased in revenue and
market reputation
WERARTISEETE

Increased in operating costs
and compliance costs

EBRARARRAE

* Establish a Climate Change Policy to identify,
evaluate and manage climate-related issues,
with periodic reviews
HERGERLEER LR AR EERRER
EH - WETEHR

* Implement typhoon and rainstorm work
arrangements, including allowing employees
to work from home for safety
RERRRRNAINIERYE  GFANESR
XL URZZ

¢ Collaborate with property management to
implementing preventive measures to mitigate
climate events

BEYEERSE Bl ER - WERRGESM

* Prioritize and seek green finance options, to
maintain sustainable business growth
BEAEZRASKEBRELNR  UERTHERE
BR

¢ Incorporate sustainability and climate-related
considerations for investment

RBEEMATHERREIRFEBERRER

* Review climate-related government policies,
regulatory requirements, and the latest
developments regularly to ensure adequate
preparation
EHRNRBZEERNEE EERERZHH
& LERIEF 70 EME
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GREEN (Continued) R )
Climate Resilience and Management (Continued) RIZEBEENEERE (&)
To enhance our operations’ resilience to climate change, we  ABEARMWLERUITES(LEES » BRAD
have established the following green targets: HELTREBEE :
Our Green Targets Progress
BREeRE EE
y T ® To reduce our GHG (Scopes 1 and 2) emissions Achieved
ill intensity by improving energy efficiency and 52424
Emission incorporating energy-saving measures
E290 BIBR SRS R RIS - RO BRERAE (SBE)
%2) BElEE
* To reduce our waste generation infensity by applying  Achieved
@Q 4R principles, avoiding unnecessary consumption BEMK
FERARRE B FELEENRE - #MBRTLEN
Waste suze
R
:o’_ * To reduce our energy consumption intensity by Achieved
‘ N implementing energy conservation measures BEK
ot BABREEERRDEREEEE
Energy
BEIR
a * To improve water efficiency by implementing water In Progress®
= conservation measures EITHRS
Water BB EREKERRSKERMRE
KER
5 Relevant data is unavailable during the Reporting Period. 5 SREHINELESHEEE -
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BRE HERETELIES

GREEN (Continued)
Energy and GHG Emissions

The Group's business operations are primarily office-based in
Hong Kong. Our primary sources of GHG emissions and energy
consumption originate from electricity consumption.

The Group aims at reducing our environmental footprint and
contributing to overall energy conservation efforts. In accordance
with our Green Office Policy, we have implemented a set of

energy-saving measures as stated below:

e Turning off unnecessary electrical appliances

e Switching off computers and monitors at the end of each

working day

e leveraging virtual and remote technologies for client
meetings and employees work arrangements across various

countries

e Reducing monitor screen brightness whenever possible

e  Putting printers in standby mode

*  Maintaining office temperatures within the recommended
range of 24°C to 26°C per the Energy Saving Charter of the

HKSAR Government

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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GREEN (Continued)

Energy and GHG Emissions (Continued)

Below is a summary of our GHG emissions and energy

consumption datas 7. 8:

B

RN BEREHERE)

ST BRI R SRS 70

FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24 Unit
—=2-m —EgE=-=
—HHE —uEHE By
GHG Emission BEREHEK
Total GHG (Scopes 1 & 2) BERE(HE1KR2) 22.50 24.58 Tonnes CO,e
Emissions® EE 30 E8 WE =St FEE
® Energy Indirect Emission o BERRAIZHER (B6E2) 22.50 24.58 Tonnes CO,e
(Scope 2) WA =S LR ”"‘*E
Total GHG (Scopes 1 & 2) HRERE(HE1KR2) 0.03 0.05 Tonnes COQe/
Emissions Intensity B E gross floor area (m?)
WS tRES
BEEECELK)
Energy BEIR
Total Energy Consumption REFUHRERE 37.50 37.25 MWh
JKFL B
® Purchased Electricity o JNBE S 37.50 37.25 MWh
JEELBF
Total Energy Consumption Y ESE S IR E 0.05 0.07 MWh/gross
Intensity floor area (m?)
JFRE
BEEBRCERK)

The data disclosed in FY 2024/25 cannot be directly compared
with that of FY 2023/24, as the reporting scope has been
expanded in FY 2024/25 to ensure a more comprehensive
disclosure of our sustainability performance.

Totals may not be the exact sum of numbers shown here due to
rounding.

The Group’s business operation did not involve fuel consumption
during the Reporting Period, resulting in no significant generation
air emissions and scope 1 emissions.

In accordance with The Greenhouse Gas Protocol — A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition) published
by the World Business Council for Sustainable Development and
World Resources Institute, Scope 1 direct emissions are resulted
from operations that are owned or controlled by the Group, while
Scope 2 energy indirect emissions are resulted from the generation
of purchased or acquired electricity, heating, cooling, and steam
consumed within the Group.

TECN/—EUBERENEEELE T
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GREEN (Continued)

Water Resource Management

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water supply and
discharge are handled by the building management office.
As such, relevant data is unavailable, and the Group did not
encounter any problems in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose during the Reporting Period. Despite our minimal water
consumption, we proactively emphasize water conservation
through various measures:

e Installing water-saving taps and aerators to reduce water
flow

e Educating and encouraging employees on reducing
water wastage and consumption, promoting green water
conservation practices

® Placing prominent signs to remind employees about water
conservation

®  Promptly repairing dripping faucets (if any)

Waste Management

Regarding non-hazardous waste generated in our office,
primarily from paper consumption. As such, the Group promotes
a Paperless practice and E-Office initiative. To minimize waste
and enhance resource efficiency, we have implemented various
waste management measures:

*  Advocating the 4R principles (Reduce, Recycle, Reuse and
Responsible) across all operations

e Encouraging employees to reuse paper and utilise double-
sided printing

e Establishing recycling habits with designated bins for sorting
waste such as cans, paper and plastics, while also educating
employees on proper recycling methods through posters and
reminders

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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GREEN (Continued) R )
Waste Management (Continued) EEYEE(E)
Below shows the Group's waste data'® 11 LT AAREBpEEY o
FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24 Unit
k=~ 111 78 —g=-=
—HEE R By
Waste BEY
Total Non-hazardous Waste FIEENEEEEYES 192.00 247 .50 Kg
Generated Fx
Total Non-hazardous Waste FIEENAEEREYRE 0.27 0.48 Kg/gross
Generation Intensity floor area (m?)
Fr/
BEMBE(ERK)
Green Procurement FERE

We prioritize green procurement practices and advocate for
environmentally preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers. Our approach includes:

Procuring eco-friendly products such as paper and coffee
Avoiding the purchase of bottled drinks
Sourcing office supplies from eco-friendly suppliers

Using electrical appliances with an A Grade energy
efficiency standard where feasible

The data disclosed in FY 2024/25 cannot be directly compared
with that of FY 2023/24, as the reporting scope has been
expanded in FY 2024/25 to ensure a more comprehensive
disclosure of our sustainability performance.

Due to the nature of our business, we were not aware of any
significant generation of hazardous waste and did not consume
any packaging material during the Reporting Period.
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GREEN (Continued) R )
Green Procurement (Continued) ReRE@E)

Green Renovation of Central Office
During the Reporting Period, the renovation of our !
Central office was carried out with sustainability as
a key priority, reflecting our ongoing environmental
commitment. The design emphasised material
efficiency by reusing flooring, cabinets, and ventilation
systems left by previous tenants, giving new life to
materials otherwise destined for landfill.

We also selected energy-efficient appliances and
adopted eco-friendly practices, such as installing
LED lighting and motion-sensor fixtures to reduce
energy consumption. Additionally, indoor greenery
was introduced to create a healthier, more refreshing
workspace for employees.

SRR I

RIS REDFRRHEE  UTRERRBEEE
B RRBEFERRREE « REDIEMHNGE - BBER
AMEF BTN - BEREBRRS - & BEAREHENH
RHSLERER -

BMFRAESEERR  YRNZIRRRIER » SINRELED
IR By R R MRS - DARREBEIRUBHE  Itoh  HIIEEAM
BEEY  REEEEFHRA-FNWIERE -
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EMPOWERMENT

Approach
Fét

Curating a decent people-centric workplace for our people
RETTEUARKRNEETHESH

Goal
BE

BEEBEAT  FFAETHERRERZEFEHFHREL

To foster a corporate culture that nurtures talent while bringing joy and equality to people

Our employees are our greatest asset. We are dedicated to
fostering a harmonious work environment, and we strictly abide
by relevant employment-related laws and regulation’2. We
have established a comprehensive Employee Handbook that
outline our policies and standards concerning compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
performance management, training and development and other
benefits and welfare.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance of relevant employment-related laws and
regulations.

12 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
employment-related laws and regulations that are significant to the
Group's business operations.
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Employee Overview

As of 31 March 2025, we employed a total of 32 full-time

employees (FY 2023/24: 25 fulltime employees). The number

of our employees' by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region is outlined below:

BREE )
BIHER

L 4

BE-Z-AF=HA=+—H  RHEHER32
FERES(ZZE-= /“HHF : 258 2RE
B) - MR ERER FRENREES K

BEBABNTHR

FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24* Unit
—E=m/ —==-=/
—HBE — e By
By Gender R A% 5
Male B 16 17 Number A £
Female T 16 8 Number A £
By Employment Type ZEEER
Senior Management SREEE 2 2 Number A £
Middle Management hREIEE 4 9 Number A £
Frontline and Other Employees AR EMET 26 14 Number A £
By Age Group BRE AR
At or below 25 255U T - 1 Number A £
Between 26-35 262 355% 9 9 Number A £
Between 36-45 36E455% 17 11 Number A £
Between 46-55 A6E555% 4 3 Number A £
Above 56 56B A £ 2 1 Number A £
By Geographical Location BiE
Hong Kong &8 32 25 Number A £

*  Certain figures for FY 2023/24 have been restated to reflect the

actual situation.

13 Data of the whole Group has been included.
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Employee Overview (Continued)

The turnover in our workforce during the Reporting Period is
shown below'4:

BREE )
S THER ()
HEBANE TRARMTFIR

FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24* Unit
== ===/
—hEEF Z Bt By
Turnover Rate (by gender) TeR=T (RMER)
Male S 82 91 %
Female g 125 104 %
Turnover Rate (by age group) AR (RFRER)
At or below 25 25T 150 133 %
Between 26-35 26Z355% 98 113 %
Between 36-45 36E458% 91 72 %
Between 46-55 46ZE 5557 136 98 %
Above 56 56 £ 92 109 %
Turnover Rate (by geographical location) ik = (&1t &)
Hong Kong O 100 81 %

*  Cerfain figures for FY 2023/24 have been restated to reflect the
actual situation.

Equal Opportunity

The Group is dedicated to fostering a fair and supportive
workplace environment and upholding business conduct that
is free from discrimination, sexual and non-sexual harassment,
intimidation, or violence.

To uphold these principles, we have implemented an Equal
Opportunity Policy detailed in our Employee Handbook. This
policy ensures that recruitment and promotion decisions are
based solely on the qualifications, experience, and performance
of applicants and employees, without bias towards any protected
characteristic.

The Group has in place an individual performance appraisal
system to review employees’ performance. Employees are
promoted within the Group based on their competencies and
suitability for higher-ranking positions.

14 The turnover rate is calculated as (number of employees who left
employment after the probation period/monthly average number of
employees of the Reporting Period) x 100%.

* ZEDZ /CNBENETHESFEY  UR
MERBER

FEHE
AEERNRIATREMEHOTERS - R
HEETRTEER « REBRIENEE - B
ARNTHTE -

RBIZERA  RMACERS TFMPeis
FEREHE - ZRRBRBEESAAEER
REFARRENERE KBERR  MAZE
AIRZRESERE

FEECHEBAABRRERHE - URFEEN
R - BEENHENREESBUNESMEM
EESRASERNNEAHE -

4 ORAENTETER(RAPREBES AR
SRS REEFHIAR) X 100% e
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Labour Standards

The Group strives to uphold human rights and promote ethical
employment in our business operations, and strictly complies with
all relevant labour standard-related laws and regulations’s.

In managing employment and labour standards, the Human
Resources Division conducts thorough reference checks on
new employees to ensure compliance with laws regarding
child labour and workplace standards. We meticulously verify
identity documents and work visas to prevent illegal employment
practices. Each employee must sign an official employment
contract before commencement to prevent issues related to forced
labour and safeguard the inferests of both the employee and the
Group.

We maintain a zero-tolerance approach towards child labour
and any form of forced labour. Immediate verification and
termination of employment occur if any instances are discovered.
Additionally, we conduct regular audits of our recruitment
processes to identify and rectify any potential loopholes to
prevent similar issues from arising in the future. The Human
Resources Division reviews the recruitment practices regularly to
ensure the effectiveness of our existing measures against child
and forced labour.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance of relevant labour-related laws and regulations.

Compensation and Benefits

Human Resources is crucial to the Group’s sustainable
development. Our remuneration packages are regularly reviewed
to maintain competitiveness in the labour market.

We offer various benefits, including the Mandatory Provident
Fund, group medical insurance, regular body checks, paid
holidays, and additional benefits beyond statutory requirements
to our employees. Apart from paid leaves, employees are also
entitled to sick leave, examination leave, compassionate leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, and paternity leave. The Group
also supports a culture that values work-life balance by allowing
employee migration for remote work abroad and offering Flexi-
working arrangements. The Group has also established a Travel
Policy to compensate our employees for business travel.

15 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
labour standards-related laws and regulations that are significant to
the Group’s business operations.
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Compensation and Benefits (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, various employee engagement
activities were held by the Group, such as group hiking, city
walks and team dinners to enhance our employees’ sense of
belonging and well-being.

BRBE (&)

MR A (F)

AREHR > AEERREREE  HHESK
BERBELZHEETIZHENTE  RBAEENSE
B RN B OREE o

Group Hiking
EEEER

City Walk
gL

Occupational Health and Safety

We place a strong emphasis on the health and safety of our
employees and strictly abide by all relevant health and safety-
related laws and regulations in Hong Kong'é. Our Employee
Handbook clearly outlines the Group’s internal policies and
practices for ensuring a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards. Our Sustainability
Division will work to ensure the occupational health and safety
measures are effectively implemented and monitored on an
ongoing basis.

All employees are entitled to medical insurance covering both
inpatient and outpatient treatment. Additionally, regular annual
body checks are included as part of our health-related benefits.
We are also committed to providing a spacious and comfortable
working environment. We require all employees to participate
in fire drills organized regularly by the property management to
become familiar with the building’s emergency procedures. These
measures demonstrate the Group’s commitment to creating a safe
and healthy workplace for our employees.

16 Please refer to the “Key Laws and Regulations” section for a list of
health and safety-related laws and regulations that are significant
to the Group's business operations.

Team Dinner
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Occupational Health and Safety (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any material
non-compliance of relevant health and safety-related laws and
regulations. There have been no work-related fatalities in each
of the past three years including the Reporting Period, and there
were O lost days due to work injury (FY 2023/24: 0O lost days),
underscoring the Group's steadfast commitment to health and
safety of our employees.

BRBE (@)

BERRHEZE(F)

KPR BEHALABRBEEMREERBRER
2HEEEENERNEBR -RBE=ZF(BERE
BR)  WARIRCREIEEAIER(CS
Z= B BKOX)  BRAEEHES
BEHET R ERGE

Promoting Health and Well-being at Work

occupational health.

EBRSEREF

R -

To promote employee well-being, we issued an Office Stretching Guide through internal announcements,
offering tailored exercises designed for the workplace. The guide features illustrated demonstrations,
recommended frequency, and proper techniques. By encouraging regular movement, it helps reduce fatigue
from prolonged sitting, prevents common office-related health issues, and supports our employees’ overall

REFEENEL  RMEBARLSRORLZFERES  RESRTHEESAMKRNERR - 55| HFRREPERK
EfRIT  BXAX - BESBEHNED  FUWAEEALEWRS  BHERNRLZEBRERELREERSEZE

Training and Development

The Group aspires to grow alongside our employees, driving
business growth and success together. We recognize that
investing in our employees’ skills and professional development
yields numerous benefits, such as enhancing their expertise
and career prospects while improving the Group’s overall
performance and operational efficiency.

As part of this commitment, we provide a wide range of
training opportunities to help staff refine their skills, boost their
professionalism, and strive for excellence in the workplace. These
training programs are failored to meet business needs, licensing
requirements, and individual development goals, by delivering
through both internal and external courses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group organised several
training programs, such as Continuous Professional Training
(CPT), corporate culture and anti-money laundering theoretical
knowledge. Additionally, we offer orientation training for
new employees to ensure they understand their rights, welfare
benefits, human resources operations, and the Group’s ESG
values. To uphold these values, we provide ESG training for
all new hires, issue company newsletters, and produce ESG
internal reports to raise employee awareness on environmental
protection.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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EMPOWERMENT (Continued)

Training and Development (Continued)
During the Reporting Period, we provided a total of 198.50
training hours to our employees (FY 2023/24: 138.00 hours).

Our training performance is shown below:17

BRBE (@)

BINRBREE)
RMEHR > RMAETREMNEZINEAFTES
198.50/N B (=B == /= [UBt4E : 138.00/
BF) o PIIZINERT @ 17

FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24* Unit
—=-m/ —E-=
—hEE — et Efy
Percentage of Employees Trained ZiEEESL
(by gender) €::3: 321
Male B 29 73 %
Female ogc 13 64 %
Percentage of Employees Trained ZIEEBESL
(by employee category) (ZEREER)
Senior Management SREEE 50 40 %
Middle Management IR fE 50 81 %
Frontline and Other Employees BEREMET 16 67 %
Average Training Hours (by gender) 153813214 81)
Male S 5.13 1.90 Hours/\ i
Female pogd 1.23 1.35 Hours/|\ i
Average Training Hours P IR E
(by employee category) (RERER)
Senior Management SREEE 7.00 3.80 Hours/\B
Middle Management R EIRE 6.17 1.33 Hours/|\ i
Frontline and Other Employees AERHEMET 2.68 1.57 Hours/)\ i

*  Certain figures for FY 2023/24 have been restated to reflect the *
actual situation.

SR /CNBENETRESTEY  UR
BB

EIBENFEEEREHABRTEE THHEBE
FNBIE - SERRRAEERARENER

17 The calculations of training data have included the relevant training 17
data of resigned staff during the Reporting Period, to present an
accurate reflection of the training resources invested by the Group.
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CARE e

Approach
&t

Fostering a caring culture for the community
BEREHENL

Goal

B
To spread love to the community through engaging ourselves in community contributions

EMER2REEER - OHEFEEEL

During the Reporting Period, we encouraged employee R#&EHA  KMHBMETSEE TN EHIE
participation in volunteer activities, with a focus on community ~REBRREMNETEZE - BERAFELEREZE
care and environmental protection. While no charitable 8% BEMNBIREXIFHEZTHRAER
donations were made during the year, we remain committed EMNBESFMNKE  FESHIEILBERER
to exploring opportunities to support community events and ~ HJ#E °

contribute to meaningful causes, continuing our efforts to foster a

caring and positive community.

Community Care HERE

Donating with Purpose — Supporting the Community Through Thoughtful Giving
During the Reporting Period, we actively contributed to community 3
welfare by donating unused items such as brand-new insulated
water bottles, mug sets, and coffee makers to The Salvation Army |
Hong Kong. This initiative not only demonstrates our commitment
to supporting those in need but also promotes circular resource
utilization by extending the lifecycle of goods and reducing waste.

TEREA -BUEE DEHE

REBEHR - RPEBSELSEAHTED  OREEFTBBEZHFBEM -
HEEERMBHERERYG - SEABATERRRMABERTEALHN
A TERERYBESG B RE  BEERBERBA -

Environmental Protection RIBRE

Mountain Cleanup Hike to Preserve a Cleaner Environment

During the Reporting Period, we organized a hiking trip combined
with a mountain cleanup activity. Participants volunteers collected
rubbish along the trail, actively protecting and preserving the natural
environment.

FLER - RIFEFRE
R|BEHA - RMRPRESFILAERKT - 2EEZTLRRER - BERR
ENEEBERRE
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OUTLOOK BE

Our commitment to promoting sustainability as well as becoming  HMEBER H FWEBTHERRE - KRASHB
a leader in ESG within the FinTech Industry remains unwavering.  H4T2RIEE - HEREBWEEE - RMEMH
We will persist in seeking opportunities to enhance our climate  S#ERRERK - WRESED  BELE B
resilience while delivering exceptional products and services, BB h Y@ KBILRELHTRESLMEED - K
empowering our employees and supporting the communities  {FEFHAITIZERR  BIFHOERERHEHR -
we serve. We are dedicated to creating long-term value for our

stakeholders as we progress together towards a sustainable

future.

WAR S HRAF) @
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KEY LAWS AND REGULATIONS FEEERZER
ESG Aspect Significant Laws and Regulations

B HERERER BERERERER

Aspect A1: Emissions e Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
BEAT : Hik (Z=RITREHRG(E311F)

*  Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
(EEMEERD)(E354F)

Aspect B1: Employment e Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)
FEEBI : {EfE (RREIRGI(ES7E)
Aspect B4: Labour Standards *  Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608)

JEMEB4 : & T 28| (BRIETEFHI)(5E608%F)

*  Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
CREM DTSR BUREI (58485%)

® Hong Kong Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)
BB BISR R (55480F)

e Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487)
(BRI RAFRDI) (55487 %)

e  Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527)
(RERBMLBRRGIN(ES27EF)

®  Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602)
(ERRBARIFHI) (55602F)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety ®  Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509)
BHEB2 : RERZE (BT 2 RAERRA)(E509%)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility ® Insurance Ordinance (Cap. 41)
[BEBS : EmEE CREESEMRDID (E41F)
®  Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163)
(RREBARS) (5£163%)
e  Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571)
(BERPEMRB) (85718)
® Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap. 559)
(BIRRRGI)  (5559%)
e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486)
CEAE R (L) 1RHI) (55486F)

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EEB7 : REF

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201)
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company whose
certain subsidiaries are licensed by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC"”) to engage in a full
spectrum of regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, including Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type é (advising on corporate finance) and Type
9 (asset management) regulated activities. The Company and
its subsidiaries have principally been engaged in the financial
services sector, including (a) global markets business (comprising
securities and futures brokerage businesses, corporate and
securities advisory, placing, underwriting and margin financing
businesses), (b) investment advisory and asset management,
(c) the provision of insurance brokerage and wealth planning and
related services, (d) investment business, and (e) the provision
of wealth management and consultancy services. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2025 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 104. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for
the year by operating segments are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A fair review of the business of
the Group, a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year including description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, and a discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance and the Group’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group are provided throughout this
annual report, particularly in the sections headed “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this Report of
the Directors.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 212
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, as a result of the issues
of subscription shares on 11 November 2022 (the “2022
Placing”) and 31 March 2023 (the “2023 Placing”) under
the general mandate, a total of 461,418,000 shares of the
Company, fully paid, were issued for a total consideration of

HK$49,851,265.

The net proceeds of the 2022 Placing and 2023 Placing have
provided the necessary funding for the Group to commence
a comprehensive revamp and upgrading of its operating
infrastructure and to build and expand both the Group’s brand
and offering. However, as stated in the Company’s announcement
dated 24 March 2023 with respect to the 2023 Placing, market
conditions since the 2022 Placing have been adversely affected
by a combination of rising interest rates, slower than expected
recovery of and continued weakness in financial services and
insurance sectors generally, notwithstanding the reopening of
the border between Hong Kong and Mainland China in January
2023 and the relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions within Hong
Kong. Following the completion of the 2023 Placing, the market
conditions and sentiments of investors, have not been significantly
improving and the operating environment of the Group's business
remained challenging at that time.

On 30 May 2023, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
issued the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 under the general mandate for 296,846,011
conversion shares of the Company. The Convertible Bonds
were fully settled by cash by the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company on 30 May 2025.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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The table below shows the Company’s deployment of the net TREIARQAT-ZB-__FHESFHE  —T-=
proceeds of the 2022 Placing, the 2023 Placing and the issue  FEREBERZTAIBRRESAESREFEZS
of the Convertible Bonds compared with the intended use as EEAATBHIHNAE-T=_—F+—A+—
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 11 November B Z—Z-=F=ZF-+NAR-Z_=FFHA
2022, 24 March 2023 and 16 May 2023 respectively: TARBZAERBEZRERARZLLE
Utilised
net proceeds
Intended ~ from the 2022
use of net Placing, the
Intended Intended proceeds as 2023 Placing
use of net useof net  disclosedinthe  and the issue
proceeds as proceeds as issueof  of Convertible
disclosed in the  disclosed in the Convertible Bonds as ot
2022 Plocing 2023 Placing Bonds 31 March
announcement  announcement  announcement 2024
R=2-mE
=ZA=t-H
BBz
kSt :
BEZE -
ZBCCF ZBRIZE ROUBRRES —B-=f
BRESENS BEZENE DNEFREZ BESER
FRECRBRE MBREZMERE FEREFEz  BOTRRES
BECREAE FHEZRTAR BERZ FrieRva B
(opproximate,  (approximate,  (approximate,  (approximate,
HK$'million) HK$'million) HK$'million) HK$'million)
(4 (4 (#4 » (84 -
BEEET) BEEER) BEEER) BEEER)
Firmwide upgrade of IT hardware and BRNEEERRG AR
software (mainly to enhance cybersecurity  (FERBPKEER
and infrastructural integrity) BRI REM) 7 2.35 7 16.35
Expansion and upgrade of IT operating BRREARENBREERARR
infrastructure including in-house and BERBRIMDE B
external software development (mainly for (X ESHERARFZE
its clientfacing systems, trading system and =~ XBEZLRFAEEES
custodian systems, as well as blockchain- LIk B siaE &
related and cryptographic solutions) MBFERFR) 9 7.06 8.1 24.16
Expansion of asset management fund BREEEEESEMMER
product offerings and related markefing HETSEE 3 4.12 5 12.12
Local and global brand building and KIREBBBITER
markefing and establishment of presence  TigHELLK
in nonHong Kong markets REBETISFHER 5 4.12 5 14.12
Funding possible strategic investments and B EAESKRERAERE
associated costs EHEe 1.4 1.77 7 10.17
General working capital -ReEES 2.1 2.94 6 11.04
Total #ct 27.5 22.36 38.1 87.96
Notes: MyEE
The net proceeds from the 2022 Placing, the 2023 Placing and the issuie  RZZZWHE=ZA=+—H ' 2 -FHRESHE -

of the Convertible Bonds have been fully utilised as at 31 March 2024.

CEFRESERET Wﬁﬂxﬁ%ZFﬁ?%?kIﬁ,¥§EE
BHBA -
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

At the annual general meeting held on 8 August 2022 (the “2022
AGM”"), the Company terminated the 2012 Share Scheme. At
the date of the 2022 AGM, the Company had no shares issuable
under outstanding options granted under the 2012 Share
Scheme.

The Shareholders approved the adoption of the 2022 Share
Scheme at the 2022 AGM. During the year ended 31 March
2025, no share options were granted, cancelled, exercised or
lapsed under the 2022 Share Scheme. The primary purpose of
the 2022 Scheme is to reward participants who have contributed
or will contribute to the Group and to encourage longer term
commitment of grantees to the Group and to better align their
interests with those of the Shareholders, which can contribute
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit, and in alignment with the interests, of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options
of the Company during the year are set out in notes 29 and 30
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2025, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of
the listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company disclosed in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 30 May 2023, a subsidiary of the Company issued 8%
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2025 in the principal amount
of HK$40 million, with net proceeds of HK$38.1 million, for the
purpose of financing IT infrastructure investments and the global
markets business (comprising securities, brokerage and asset
management businesses) to enable the Group to offer blockchain-
related services and general corporate working capital. The
Convertible Bonds were fully seftled by cash by the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 30 May 2025.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not issued any
convertible instrument during the year ended 31 March 2025
and up to the date of this report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 101 and notes 31 and
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves
of the Company. At 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to the Shareholders comprise share
premium, convertible instrument equity reserve and accumulated
losses. At 31 March 2025 and 2024, there were no reserves
available for distribution to the equity holders of the Company
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
contributions of nil (2024: HK$10,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the aggregate revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represents
approximately 64% of the Group's total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group's largest customer was approximately

25%.

The aggregate purchases during the year ended 31 March 2025
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 98% and 43%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

One of the major suppliers of the Company, the cost attributable
to it represents approximately 33% of the total cost of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2025, is an associated
company of the Group in which the Group holds as to 40%
of its entire issued shares, with the rest held by the other two
independent third parties. Save as disclosed above, as far as
the Directors are aware, no Director, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the Directors’ knowledge owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a material interest
in these major customers and suppliers referred to above at 31

March 2025.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Hao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mes. Li Chuchu, Tracy (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian sBs, Jp (Chairman)
Mr. Han Kam Leung, Michael’

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ling Kit Sum Imma

Mr. Zhang Guangying?

Prof. Peng Qian?

Dr. Tam Lai Fan Glorio#

Mr. Lo Chun Yu Tobys?

I Resigned as an non-executive Director and a member of the Audit

Committee with effect from 31 October 2024.

2 Appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effective from 28 May 2024,
and re-designated as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee with effect from 23 September 2024.

3 Appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 23 September
2024 and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 31

October 2024.

4 Retired as an independent non-executive Director and ceased to be
the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from

23 September 2024.

5 Resigned as an independent non-executive Director and a member

of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 28 May 2024.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(Continued)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to retire every year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last election but as between persons
who became Directors on the same day shall (unless they
otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected or any Director candidates
to be elected, as applicable, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting will be set out in the circular to the Shareholders.

No Directors to be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established and the members
of the committee at the date of this report are Ms. Ling, Mr.
Zhang and Prof. Peng. The principal responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include the review and oversee of the Group’s
financial reporting process and risk management, environmental,
social and corporate governance related matters and internal
control systems.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group during the reporting period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” on pages 81 to 83 of this annual report and
contracts amongst group companies, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company and the Director’s connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’” INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

At 31 March 2025, the interests of the Directors in shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) were as follows:

(A) Long position in shares

EERKBRS R AERDER

RIEFE 5 R MER ([ F 5 RBEMRP 1) 55352
ROREMRENBTHAER  TSESR-F
—HFE=A=t—-BMBEA QA HE IR
EERR D RAERERDNERRSINT

(A) RE#BzFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares in the issued share

personal interests capital

REAEZRZ HERITREZ

Name of Director BEEpE 10 8 B BABD L
Dr. Cheng EEt 16,190,083,643 74.87%

Note: Dr. Cheng is the ultimate beneficial owner of Radiant
Alliance Limited, a company which is wholly-owned by
Divine Artemis Limited, which holds 11,021,425,076
shares, representing approximately 50.97% of the total
issued shares of the Company. Additionally, Dr. Cheng has
a majority interest in Perfect Path Global Limited, which holds
5,168,658,567 issued shares of the Company, representing
approximately 23.90% of the total issued shares of the
Company.

(B) Long position in underlying shares — share options

At 31 March 2025, the Company had no outstanding share
options granted. During the year ended 31 March 2025,
no Directors of the Company had interest in share options to
subscribe for shares in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2025, none of the
Directors or chief executives had or deemed to have any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO that were required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code”).
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives or any of their spouse or children
under the age of eighteen to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2025, based on the register kept by the Company,
the following party (other than a director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company, being 5% or more of the
Company'’s issued share capital, as known to the Company or

recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

EEREROIEREE ZER

PR EX[ESRBR G RAABER G ES | -8R
EMBHRMEIONBREE I FTIREEN - R
REZEMEE » AR AL EMHE QB ILE
AIMAEMZHY - FEFREZTHRAETEMRE
ZHEMBR8E U T I FLFEWBA R RHEM
HitZABR 2 RONEHF S (BREERER)M

i o

TERRREMATRRG REERG
Z FEzn

R-B-RAF=A=+-8 BALAFBEZE
SRS RADAMM  RADAREEFS
REEGHIEIHEEZBRMATE AT
AT (ARARESREETHASKRIN RAAT
ROREBARGEERELLE - REARCH
TRAS%HREL :

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Total share capital
HERITREZ

TERRER 5% #st MABSL

Gain Bright Limited Beneficial owner 1,115,328,579 (L) 5.16% (L)

EERRAF BREEA

(L): Long Position L) : #&

Note: Shares were issued and allotted to Gain Bright Limited, pursuant Bt : RIEADREABEEANZHTE > R EE

to the scheme of arrangement between the Company and its
creditors, for the benefit of scheme creditors. Messrs. Lai Kar Yan
and Ho Kwok Leung Glen are the administrators of the scheme
and each is deemed to have an interest in 557,664,290 shares
at reporting period end. Subsequently on 25 June 2025, Hau Kai
Ling replaced Messrs. Lai Kar Yan as one of the administrators of
the scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and based on the register kept by the
Company, the Company had not been notified by any persons
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company at 31 March 2025 as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company’s business were entered into or subsisting
during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Company is
set up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence and is reviewed annually. Remuneration
and bonuses are awarded to employees based on individual
performances and are in-line with market practices. Periodic in-
house training programmes are offered. The emoluments of the
Directors are decided by the Board, who are authorised by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive, details of the scheme are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during
the year. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total number of issued shares is held by the public at
the date of this annual report.
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MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as mentioned in this annual report, the Group did not
have any significant investments nor did it make any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associates
throughout the reporting period ended 31 March 2025.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions of the Group had been
entered into or subsisting during the year and up to the date of
this report:

(1)

(2)

Arta Services Limited (“Arta Services”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an business
advisory services agreement (the “BAS Agreement”) dated 6
March 2025 with K11 Gentry Club Limited (“Gentry Club”),
pursuant to which Arta services would provide business
advisory services to Gentry Club for a term of three years
commencing from 6 March 2025 to 5 March 2028, and the
aggregated amount of fees for business advisory services to
be rendered under the BAS Agreement for the period from 6
March 2025 to 5 March 2026, 6 March 2026 to 5 March
2027 and 6 March 2027 to 5 March 2028 was expected
to not exceed HK$ 1,700,000 for each period. Details of
the BAS Agreement was set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 6 March 2025.

The actual amount of business services rendered under the
BAS Agreement for the period from é March 2025 to 31
March 2025 was approximately HK$117,000.

Arta Asset Management Limited (“AAML”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
management agreement (the “IMA”) dated 1 July 2024 with
Concord insurance Company Limited (“Concord”), pursuant
to which AAML would provide investment management
services to Concord for a term of three years commencing
from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2027, and the aggregated
amount of fees for investment management services to be
rendered under the IMA for the period from 1 July 2024
to 30 June 2025, 1 July 2025 to 30 June 2026 and 1
July 2026 to 30 June 2027 was expected to not exceed
HK$2,000,000 for each period. Details of the IMA was
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 1 July
2024.

The actual amount of business services rendered under the
IMA for the period from 1 July 2024 to 31 March 2025 was
approximately HK$1,380,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3) AAML, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered info a sub investment management agreement (the
“Sub IMA”) dated 28 May 2024 with Avantua Capital
Management Limited (“Avantua”), pursuant to which AAML
would provide investment management services to Avantua
for a term commencing from 28 May 2024 to 30 June
2024, and the aggregated amount of fees for investment
management services to be rendered under the Sub IMA
was expected to not exceed HK$750,000. Details of the

Sub IMA was set out in the announcement of the Company

dated 28 May 2024.

The actual amount of business services rendered under the
Sub IMA for the period from 28 May 2024 to 30 June 2024
was approximately HK$750,000.

Dr. Cheng is the ultimate beneficial owner of Radiant Alliance
Limited, which holds 11,021,425,076 shares, representing
approximately 50.97% of the total issued shares of the
Company. Additionally, Dr. Cheng has a majority interest in
Perfect Path Global Limited, which holds 5,168,658,567 shares,
representing approximately 23.90% of the total issued shares
of the Company. Furthermore, Dr. Cheng and his associates
have a majority interest in Avantua and Concord. Gentry Club
is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng. Therefore, Gentry
Club, Avantua and Concord are associates of Dr. Cheng and
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the IMA and
BAS Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transaction contemplated under the Sub IMA constitute a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

BER 5 (@)

(3) ARBZEME R E M AEE EAvantua
Capital Management Limited ([ Avantua J)
AVAMAZZ-NEEA-TN\RZAR
EEEmR ([0 REEEHR]) - Bt - B
AREER-ZE-NEFAA-TNARBRE=R
Z“WEARA =+ HEAvantva iR IR E EE
R WBEIREEEHBRMIREE
ERBEALEFEDTEBHE®E750,000
T PREEEBRZHBHIINALFH
PARTZE-NFRARA-TNHZAE -

EZE_NERA-+N\HEZEZZE_-_NF
AA=THERE  RESIREETEHREMS
HEERENER SN BBEE750,0007T °

B 8 + A Radiant Alliance Limited 2 & & &
# ¥ B A+ T Radiant Alliance Limited # &
11,021,425,076 5 - th A AR B #TR
2 B E#50.97% ° Mo o BR{E £ 5 Perfect Path
Global Limited # B Z E # & » T Perfect Path
Global Limited$%35E5,168,658,567 X7 » 154
DNECBITRMBEN23.90% - BE » BiET R
HEZARAvantua R EBFEE S HER © Gentry
ClubE BB+ EE2EHES - ALt > BB LHR
8] > Gentry Club + Avantua &% & & & 8518 + = B
BARKQB 2BBEAL U - BRIELHRE
FUAE  RECEHEREEZHARKHZRE
THETZRZEBAR AR ZHERERS - 1R
BEmRRAFEI4AE P RECEMRETRE
TRZRBBERADNRZEERS



EEEHS

¢ REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS e

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continuved)

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company who
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions stated in paragraphs (1) to (3)
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group to
the Board in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions made during the year, which included the abovesaid
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company discloseable under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, if applicable, is set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the aforesaid
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year, to the best knowledge of the Directors, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that had a significant impact
on the business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company values its employees and maintains competitive
remuneration packages to motivate its employees. Throughout the
year, the Group continued to maintain good relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers, service providers and investors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 May 2025, the Company and the immediate holding
company of the Company entered into a perpetual shareholder’s
loan agreement, pursuant to which the immediate holding
company of the Company shall make available to the Company
an unsecured term loan facility of a total principal amount up to
HK$40,800,000 at 6.5% interest rate per annum, which is on
normal commercial terms or better. The Company may at its sole
discretion, repay the outstanding amount of the loan in full or in
part together with all interest accruing on the loans or such part
of the loans as of the date of repayment.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly
corporation. The Group promotes environmental practices such
as double-sided printing and copying, using recycled paper and
reducing the energy consumption of lighting and air-conditioning.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report is set out on
pages 38 to 70 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

A report on the corporate governance practices of the Company is
set out on pages 18 to 37 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have
been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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On behalf of the Board
Arta TechFin Corporation Limited

Xu Hao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2025
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%\ Crowe HEAEE (58) SHAERAERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
& RIPE IBRET7R SEP09E
9/F Leighton Centre,
77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arta TechFin Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s
consolidated financial position as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by the HKICPA, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matters
Impairment assessment of accounts receivable

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of accounts
receivable was approximately HK$5,094,000.
Accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$557,000 was provided for accounts receivable.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, impairment
loss of approximately HK$229,000 was provided for
accounts receivable.

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses.

We identified the impairment assessment of accounts
receivable as a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of the accounts receivable and the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses allowance of the accounts receivable.

The related disclosure is included in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of accounts receivable included, but were not
limited to:

- Understanding and evaluating the credit control
procedures performed by management, including
its procedures on periodic review of aged
receivables and assessment on expected credit
losses allowance of receivables;

- Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
profile of receivables by checking to the underlying
agreements;

- Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of receivables against bank receipts;
and

- Obtaining management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of receivables. Corroborating
and evaluating management’s assessment based
on the historical settlement pattern, correspondence
with the customers, evidence from external sources
including the relevant public search results relating
to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers and market research regarding the
relevant forward - looking information used in
management’s assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Impairment assessment of the carrying amount of intangible assets

The Group has intangible assets of SFC Licenses
(“the “Intangible Assets”) with carrying amount of
approximately HK$ 14,500,000 as at 31 March 2025,
which are allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”")
included in the asset management segment.

In determining the recoverable amounts of the
Intangible Assets, the Group engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform such valuation. The
valuation is determined based on the value-in-use
model for the CGU discounted to its present value and
it requires the use of key assumptions.

We identified the impairment assessment of the
Intangible Assets as a key audit matter due to its
complexity and the inherent subjectivity arising from the
significant management judgement.

The related disclosures are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of the carrying amount of the
Intangible Assets included, but were not limited to:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer
engaged by the management;

- Understanding the Group's impairment assessment
process, including the valuation model adopted the
key assumptions used and the involvement of an
independent professional valuer appointed by the
Group;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
model adopted and the key assumptions used;

- Evaluating the historical accuracy of the cash
flow forecasts prepared by the management by
comparing the historical cash flow forecast with
the actual performance;

- Evaluating the reasonableness and arithmetic
accuracy of free cash flow and discount rate
adopted in the valuation model with the assistance
from our internal valuation experts; and

- Evaluating the potential impact of the impairment
assessment based on the reasonably possible
changes of the key assumptions used in the
valuation model.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Company'’s directors are responsible for other information, which comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements does not cover other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated statements, our responsibility is to read other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of other information, we are required fo report that
fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

In our audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures to address these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report is Chiu Lung Sang.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2025

Chiu Lung Sang
Practising Certificate Number PO8091

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

2025 2024
—E-REF —EUE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
My BT T BT T
REVENUE g 5 63,846 23,329
Other income and gains, net HAi A K U2 H 58 5 6,262 4,513
Revenue and other income and gains 2 DA R At U R W 2s 70,108 27,842
Operating expenses RERx
Employee benefit expenses EEEFEX (31,557) (38,579)
Consultancy, legal and professional fees FERS LR EEER (18,393) (8,335)
Information technology and maintenance BB R 4R
expenses (1,628) (14,378)
Fair value losses on financial asset and FREHUATEYER
investments at fair value through profit or (MEBIERUATEFIE])
loss (“FVTPL"), net ZERMEERREZ
D EBRTE 19 - (1,533)
Provision for impairment loss of accounts FEUR BR 7R < R E 518
receivable, net BIEFE 21 (229) (322)
Provision for impairment loss of a loan FEWR &3k~
receivable REEERE 20 - (1,338)
Provision for impairment loss of deposits and &4 & H b fE R IE >
other receivables HEEBEE 18 - (50)
Share of results of associates FEILE & D R A 15 (4,000) -
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERE 6 (1,397) -
Other operating expenses HtEEMxx (48,407) (13,882
(105,611) (78,417)
EBITDA (note) EBITDA ( Bf3E) (35,503) (50,575)
Depreciation and amortisation ER 6 (6,018) (4,450)
Operating loss REEE (41,521) (55,025
Finance costs A& A 7 (5,964) (7,216)
Loss before tax BRBLATE R 6 (47,485) (62,941)
Income tax credit FRiSBER 10 - 20
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEEE (47,485) (62,921)
Note: BifeE -

EBITDA is defined as loss before interest expenses and finance costs,

taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

2025 2024
—E-EHF —TWEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz BYETT BT T
Attributable to: THIA LS -
Shareholders of the Company E NS EE IR E H))

(the “Shareholders”) (51,826) (63,838)
Perpetual loans holder KABHIEE A 32 4,550 917
Non-controlling interests R (209) -

(47,485) (62,921)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRELERESR
THE SHAREHOLDERS 11
Basic BR (&% HK (7BH HK
0.3 cents fili) 0.3 cents 1lLi)
Diluted i3 (&% HK (B HK
0.3 cents fili) 0.3 cents 1)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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FeR2EBAESR
¢ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

2025 2024
—E-REF —EUE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR A ERIA (47,485 (62,921)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit 2 EEE
Other comprehensive loss not to TERERHBEERSER
be reclassified to profit or loss in BRHEEEES
subsequent periods:
Equity investments at fair value through FREAMRE RSN
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) DAFER(EBEM
- net movement in investment EHEWE LA FESD
revaluation reserve (non-recycling) R 2RERE
-~ REEMREBED
BT A&ER) - (3,667)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AFEEHMEEESE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (BB %) - (3,667)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS TFEEZHEHBRAH
FOR THE YEAR (47,485) (66,588
Attributable to: THA LR
Shareholders el (51,826) (67,505)
Perpetual loans holder KAERIBZEA 4,550 917
Non-controlling interests SRR (209) -
(47,485) (66,588)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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FEaMBERIEBSR
e CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION e

At31 March 2025 #-Z-HE=A=+—§H
2025 2024
- 7 —Eqi —_ ? _@ﬂi
Notes HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FIaE BET T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M¥% - BERRE 13 12,751 5,725
Goodwill SES 14 1,505 1,505
Other intangible assets Hib B EE 16 18,404 19,658
Deposits ®Be 18 1,902 1,929
Financial asset at FVOCI ERE MU
AFEIRSHMEE 17 254 254
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 34,816 29,071
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Loan receivable FEWE =X 20 - 5,000
Accounts receivable FEULBEZR 21 5,094 2,975
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{IF0E ~ &R HA
FEWFRIE 18 7,270 3,091
Investments at FVTPL EREFUAFEVEREZRE 22 - 1,234
Cash and bank balances BeMIRTLER 23 54,517 89,505
Total current assets MEBEEAE 66,881 101,805
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable FEASBRER 24 11,057 2,100
Other payables and accruals Hit M RIER e & A 25 11,439 11,541
Borrowing Y= 26 39,908 -
Lease liabilities HEEeE 27 3,795 -
Total current liabilities TEaEEE 66,199 13,641
Net current assets REEETHE 682 88,164
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABDEE 35,498 117,235
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBAE
Other payables and accruals Hitt R FIRRESTE A 25 750 -
Borrowing BE 26 - 37,864
Deferred tax liability EEFEEE 28 2,542 2,542
Lease liabilities HESE 27 2,762 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 6,054 40,406
Net assets EEEE 29,444 76,829




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBERIEBSR

At 31 March 2025

R-ZE-_AF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—ERF bl 11123
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
PE BETR BYTT
EQUITY L
Issued capital EEITIRA 29 216,219 191,432
Reserves e 31 (265,576) (221,346)
Equity attributable to the Shareholders IR B RERS (49,357) (29,914)
Equity attributable to the immediate holding  EigERATR—EXA
company in respect of a perpetual convertible M T B fE{L R
instrument 26(b) 3,443 35,826
Equity attributable to the immediate holding  Ei#ZZERATRKA EREL
company in respect of perpetual loans e 32 75,467 70,917
Non-controlling inferests FEfE R RS (109) -
Total equity A 29,444 76,829

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of
the Company on 30 June 2025 and were signed on its behalf

by:

Xu Hoo
R
Director

EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

BANTEBSER-_BE-_RAFE~A=THIET
BT WRUTATRRAQATNEEZSHE .

Li Chuchu, Tracy
S

Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FegagD=x

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

Attributoble o shareholders of the Company

ADIRREL
Eouity
oftributcble Equity
othe  attibutable
immedicte fothe
holding  immedicte
Investment companyin ~ holding
Convertble  revaluction respectof  company in
Shore inshument  reserves aperpeidl  respectof Nor-
lsved  premium equity [non- Accumuloted converfble perpetual  confrolling Totol
copitl account reseve recycling) losses Tt ingrument loons~~nterests equily
B#
BRA7 B%
R& B-RKA BROF
TRRIA  Effi TERIE HAAER
BRRT ROEER RERE (FURE)  ZHEE 8% BERE  BGER FERER B4
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§'000  HKS000
BTn  BBTr ABTn ARTn ABTn ABTn ABfn EBTn ARt MR
At 1 April 2024 W-E-MmEMA-A 191432 9686 11,59 (3667) (348924 (9914 35826 70917 - 76829
loss and fofcl comprehensiveloss A EEBER2EFELE
for the year - - - - (5182 (51,829) - 4,550 (200  (47,489)
lssue of shares ke U787 15213 [7617) - - 30383 (3238)) - - -
Noncontroling inerests arsing fom ~~ sERAL L -~ BHBARF B2
incorporation of a subsidiary FiEhEs - - - - - - - - 100 100
At 31 March 2025 W-EZREZA=1-H 0629 134899 3942 (3667)  (400750)  (49,357) M3 75467 (109 29444

WAR S HRAF) @



FREgLEDR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

Atributable o shareholders of he Company

BAARRER
Equity
aftibulable fo Equily
the immedicte  afributoble o
holding  the immedicte
Investment company ~~ holding
Converible ~ revaluafion nrespectol  company
Shore  instrument reserves aperpetual  in respect of
lsied  premium equiy fron- Accumuloted converible ~ perpetucl Toll
copiol — account resene recycling) losses Tool  inshument loans equily
ERERLA
H-BAA  ERERLA
TRRIE  REE(RE TERIE  HAAER
BRfRE  ROEER  EERE  (FURE)  EitEE BF  RUBE  EGEE  RusE
HK§000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
AT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
AT Apil 2023 R-B-=ERA-A 191432 119,686 7817 - (85086 33849 - - 380
Logs for the year KEEER - - - - (63838 (6383 - 97 29)
Other comprehensive oss for e yeor: ~ AEEAK2TEE:
Equiy investment ot FVOCI - nef BRAMSENENOTE
movement in invesment revaluction reserve 7 BERE- 8T
[ronecycling) e
(FT8E) - - - o) - ) - - o)
Tolol comprehensive loss for the year KEERTEREE - - - (667) (63838 (67,509) - 917 166,588
Reclasiicaion oflocn from the immedile ~ E5F3EERARAT 8
holding company - - - - - - B8 - 8
lsuance of perpefual loans [nofe 32) BTAAER (W3 - - - - - - - 70000 70,000
Recogniton of equity component -8RI EERYS
of o convertble insrument - - 3942 - - 3942 - - 3942
At 31 Morch 2024 R-B-MEZfz1-8 191432 11968 11559 B667) (348924 (9914 I8N 0917 76809

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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FaeleRER

e CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

2025 2024
—E-RE —ENEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
My BET T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM EETHMELELZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReRE
Loss before tax BRELAI &S 18 (47,485) (62,941)
Adjustments for: FATIEE A
Finance costs BhE A 7 5,964 7,916
Interest income FEWBA (3,882) (1,537)
Depreciation e 13 5,341 4,250
Amortisation s 16 677 200
Fair value losses on financial asset BREHUAFEIERZ
and investments at FVTPL TREERKREZ
DPEER - 1,533
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERE 6 1,397 -
Share of results of associates i3y WNGIE ¥ 15 4,000 -
Provision for impairment loss of accounts FEUBR IR BB B 1B
receivable, net BEFRE 21 229 322
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBMBARzWE 5 - (500)
Provision for impairment loss of RERHMERFEZ
deposits and other receivables HERERE 18 - 50
Provision for impairment loss of Bl ERRERHEEE
a loan receivable 20 - 1,338
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BER
equipment RiEEE 9 -
(33,750) (49,369)
Increase in accounts receivable FE WS BR XA (2,348) (2,027)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FBARIE - REREMER
deposits and other receivables FRIE (4B 00), A (4,152) 4,452
Decrease/(increase) in a loan receivable FEW E TR (38 1hn) 5,000 (963)
Decrease/(increase) in investments at FVTPL  &BEH U A FETIES
RERD,/ () 1,234 (1,200)
Increase in accounts payable FEAS BRFRIE N 8,957 1,729
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib B 7R K et & A
and accruals 120, O 4) 648 (2,665)
Cash used in operations SEMBAZRS (24,411) (50,043)
Interest received EUF S 3,882 1,537
Interest paid EAFE (3,920) (4,359)
Net cash flows used in operating activities BETERBAZ
RERETE (24,449) (52,865)

WAR S HRAF) @



EHERER

¢ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

2025 2024
—ERF “EIMEF
Notes HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(D3 BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHIEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Placement of time deposits with original FERZBMBFRON=EAZ
maturity of not less than three months EHER (1,500) (1,500)
Withdrawal of time deports with original SRR ROR=M@AZ
maturity of not less than three months EHITEER 1,500 11,631
Additions to intangible assets NEEFEE (820) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment  REBW%  BERRE (3,671) (877)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary tlj% B A T 2 FriS B - 500
Non-controlling interest’s contribution FERERE —REHEAR
to a subsidiary TE 100 -
Capital injection to associates mEE A REE 15 (4,000) -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from RETEFM(BA) EE
investing activities RERBFHE (8,391) 9.754
CASH FLOWS FROM METHEEZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of capital element of lease liabilities A& @& &~& TENE 36 (2,148) (2,619)
Proceeds from issue of perpetual loans BT ABRZFFBRE - 70,000
Proceeds from borrowings B EFERE - 40,000
Repayment of borrowings Eery - (30,000)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from METEM(BH), EEZ
financing activities REREFH (2,148) /7,381
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND TE?E:&E%%FW
CASH EQUIVALENTS W), 1B R (34,988) 34,270
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E%}Jziﬁé&iﬁﬁ%ﬁ#@
of year 88,005 53,735
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERESZEY
AT END OF YEAR, representing BRITRFHRRE
cash at bank and on hand 23 53,017 88,005
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEMIMiFE R ZEHRE MB®RER 2 — D

financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED



FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Arta TechFin Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Units 1-2, Level 9, K11 ATELIER King's Road, 728 King's
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in the financial services sector, including (a)
global markets business (comprising securities and futures
brokerage businesses, corporate and securities advisory,
placing, underwriting and margin financing businesses), (b)
investment advisory and asset management, (c) provision
of insurance brokerage and wealth planning and related
services, (d) investment business, and (e) provision of wealth
management and consultancy services.

The immediate holding company of the Company is
Radiant Alliance Limited (“Radiant Alliance”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), which
is wholly-owned by Divine Artemis Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, as the ultimate holding company
of the Company. Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian sBs, jp (“Dr.
Cheng”), as the ultimate controlling party of the Group,
wholly-owns Divine Artemis Limited.

AAREMER
HWEAMEERAATAIFA DR -HREAE
HEEMBLZBERAT - RAFAZEER
EERMBUNE BB SFREE7285KT 1
ATELIER King's Road 9481-2%E o XA TR
EEBBERZMARAT (MBI ER
L e

RAFE  AATREKE QB (GBI A%
B ERRESEMMEER - BIE(o)ZHHH
X (BERBZFRPEELEY  ©ERES
B RE - BRERFREBEXER) 5 bR
ERAREEEE | R(RERRELIUR
BEHREIRBRERT ; (d)REEK ; R(e)iR
HUEEEREBRY o

RAF ZEHEERAD A SRadiant Alliance
Limited ([ Radiant Alliance | » —BREBE
ZHEE((RBELHEE NEMRIZAT
H Divine Artemis LimitedZ &% H » E5—
FAREBEZBEESTEMR LA AL
BZEBREEZERAT) o BERIE tsss, o ([ B
B NIEARKEZRERESS  28%E

Divine Artemis Limited °

WAR S HRAF) @



RaMBERMWE

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continved) 1.

For the year ended 31 March 2025

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries were as

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

NEIREEER &)

EBRNEARZER

RAREEZMBAR ZFBUWT

follows:
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation Issued ordinary inferest cftributable
Nome and operation share capital fo the Company Principal acfivifies
&8 EUEAREESES BRAZERE ARARERER DL ITER
Direct Indirect
B [k
Arta Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$63,481,843 100 - Provision of insurance
(2024: (2024: 100) (2024: - brokerage service, asset
HK$63,481,843) management and advisory
services
HAREEERERAA B 163,481 8437 100 - RERIBELHRYE -
(CRoRE: (CECEF:I000  (CECEE:-) BEEERAARS
163,481,8437)
Arta Corporate Advisory Limited Hong Kong HK$1,400,000 100 - Provision of corporate
(2024: (2024: 100 (2024: - finance advisory services
HK$1,400,000)
RECEBRARAA EE 81,400,000 100 - R XRERRERY
(Z2ZRE: (CBCREC100)  (CBORE-)
7#1,400,0007)
Arta Global Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$55,000,000 - 100 Provision of futures
(2024: (2024: - (2024: 100) brokerage services
HK$55,000,000)
HEBRHEERAA B 855,000,007 - 100 RUHELLRY
(CBZmE:  (ZB@EE:-)  (ZTZEE100)
7#55,000,0007z)
Arta Global Markets Limited Hong Kong HK$1,900,000,000 100 - Provision of securities brokerage,
(2024: (2024: 100 (2024: - placing, underwrifing, margin
HK$1,900,000,000) financing and trading of securities
HREERTSERAR B ##1,900,000,0007 100 - REESELE EE 2H-
(Z2ZRE: (CBZREC100)  (ZBoRE:-) FRMERESRE
#%1,900,000,0007t)
De Oro Strategics Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
['BVI'/Hong Kong (2024: US$1) 024 [2024:100)
ABRLBE (4B E33 - 100 REZR
BLHE))/BR (ZB-REI%XR)  (CESRE:-)  (CRSEE:100)
Arta Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of consultancy services
(2024: HK$1)  (2024:100) (2024: )
3 b 100 - RAGEHRY
(CRoREERIT) (C22RECI000  (ZBSmE:)
Arta Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of money
(2024: HK$1) 2024: 100) (2024: - lending services
RESHARAR B BRI 100 - RIEERY
(CRoREEBIT) (C22RECI000  (CRRE:-)

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.1

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

There is no material non-controlling interest for the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both reporting periods.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at FVOCI, financial asset at FVTPL
and investments at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

AEIREBEER ®)
EEMBARZER(#)
EREI2AQAMBLARAAERRNAES
(TEB ) RAHAEBZAFEXERTE
FESERAEBEEFETZEART S 2
MBAR - EBRAE  WHEMHBATZ
HIEEEHBERBRTE

BE-_ZE-_RER_Z-_NFE=A=+—H
IEFE o HHESE RIEEIRES -

ZEWB D ABERMERSHRBITER
BEBES -

mRERE

ZEMBBRRIRBETBEFALS(HB
SR AE ) B2 BB BREERN ST
ZR([EHRYBHREE D (EPREREE
BMBREER - EBETEA(EBET
R ) R2Rg) - BEARSARARDFME
Pl RBEREMRER - FREBHEMEHE W E
AT ESIR2EHEE - BBRBUQF
Bk EMEEREBRBEUAFEI K
ZREBRNVEHITE  BBRERTDIREE
SEEAERA - ZSUBRRUBEZS)
mEREEREAN  ERETRARERED
2T -

RERE

RANBRREEAEEBE-2-AF=
A=1T—HLEFEZHMBERR -HEIAS
RARHESEEEG 2 BE (BESBNTE
)  EXREEAZRHERZRAFEREQAE
Bz AR ORUREEBHRIREN T 2HE
H(AEEERTREEIUATERIRER

RIEREE) 2 R R RSB Z S M RES - B
ERSHEHIRE -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive
income are attributed to the ordinary equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits/(accumulated losses), as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.2.CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

New and amended HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are
mandatorily effective for the Group's reporting period
beginning on or affer 1 April 2024:

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance
HKFRS 7 Arrangements

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

22 B BERRKEZEE

M REETEBUBREER
AEBECERAEATIHEBSTMAENE
2 BB B HRE LR ZAEFT - HRAEE
E-Z-NFNB-HR2EMRZREDR
RHAER

RS EE IRz BEEIEARBH

EH FREBREBRE
555 2 HER81EE]
(ZEZEHF)

BRETTEAE IRz HEREZIERD

1E5] =N
BRPBRELER ERARZAEERE
E165RZ1ER]

BRETTEAE7RR HERRERH
BRBUBRELER
B7IRZIER]

RAFERMEME B BIREED 2ER
HAKER A FERBEFE BB K
REAR /SZEGFEVBBRABRELE
BAZE - AEEWEEARASEHIR
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.3 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements. The Group intends
to apply these new and revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when
they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’ EBarhEal TR A A
F2158 2185]
Amendments to HKFRS @ Amendments to the Classification ERYBERELEL 2HBTANSHER
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial FOMRBAEME FAEZEI?
Instruments? REEAE7SEZ
1&&T
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Confracts Referencing BBUBMERER FREFEARCETLE
and HKFRS 7 Nature-dependent Electricity? EORRBBUYE BLIZEX?
REERE7SE
)
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1, EBMBREER FEYBHEER
to HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, 2L Ei - ZBYH
Standard 2024 HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72 —E-MEZ HEERETHE
FERE BB EER
FOUE - BEYHK
EERIF O R
BEEIERIET
Z155]?
HKFRS 18 and Presentation and Disclosure in EBRRMEER HEFEZIR
consequential Financial Statements3 5185 R A HFE
amendments to other BB RE A
HKFRSs ZBIEIEE]
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public EBYEMEER TELAFEEMHZHE
Accountability: Disclosures® E19%% AT
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets EBMBREED REZHEHLINTH
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIOCERBBET AECEZAWEE
Associate or Joint Venture? A28 2185]  HEREE

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January I RCECRE-A-BYHCEARBNEER

2025. BIER -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 ACZEBCXE-A—HRZEARRBRNEED
2026. LR -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January S RIBEZHFE-B-HRZEBBROFEED
2027. BEX -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 REREEEPRRZEBBNFERBRE
determined. e
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.3 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
and consequential amendments to other HKFRSs

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (“HKAS 1”). It carries forward many requirements
from HKAS 1 unchanged. HKFRS 18 brings major changes
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and notes to
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

(a) HKFRS 18 requires an entity:

(i) to classify income and expenses into operating,
investing and financing categories in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, plus income
taxes and discontinued operations;

(i) to present two new defined subtotals, namely,
operating profit or loss and profit or loss before
financing and income taxes.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.3 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRSs

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 (Continued)

(b) It requires an entity to disclose management-defined
performance measures (“MPM”) and reconciliations
between MPM and subtotals listed in HKFRS 18 or totals
or subtotals required by HKFRS:s.

(c) It sets out requirements to help an entity determine
whether information about items should be in the
primary financial statements or in the notes and provides
principles for determining the level of detail needed for
the information.

HKFRS 18 also set out classification requirements for foreign
exchange differences, the gain or loss on the net monetary
position, and gains and losses on derivatives and designated
hedging instruments. In addition, some paragraphs in HKAS
1 have been moved to HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also
made.

HKFRS 18 and consequential amendments to other HKFRSs
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.
The application of the new standard is expected to affect
the presentation of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future consolidated financial
statements. The Group is in the process of assessing the
detailed impact on the consolidated financial statements.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (that is, translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for the
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent seftlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash — generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

(c)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets and deferred tax assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value-in-use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(e) Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(i) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;

(v) the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

(f) Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(f)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The Group's interests in associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Under the equity method, investment in
associate is initially recognised at cost. The Group's
share of the profit or loss and changes in the other
comprehensive income of the associate are recognised
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income after
the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, which is determined using the equity method
together with any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a
liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The financial statements of an associate used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. An
inferest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate is recognised as goodwill and is included
in the carrying amount of the investment.

The requirements of HKAS 36 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When the investment ceases to be an associate upon
the Group losing significant influence over the associate,
the Group discontinues to apply equity method and any
retained interest is measured at fair value at that date
which is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with the applicable
standard. Any difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate and the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained earnings on the same basis as it would have
been required if the investee had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
part as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over is estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 15%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 15%
equipment
Computer equipment 33"5%

Motor vehicle 20% - 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Trading rights

Trading rights represent the eligibility rights to trade
on or through the Stock Exchange and The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures Exchange”) with
indefinite useful life. They are carried at cost less any
impairment losses.

Licenses with the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC licenses”)

SFC licenses represent the SFC licenses for the Group
to carry on a business in a regulated activity in Hong
Kong with indefinite useful life. They are carried at cost
less any impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

* how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and

development expenditure (Continued)

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intfangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
infangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately. Software, representing internally-
generated intangible asset, is amortised on a straight-
line basis over 7 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

Rightof-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straightline basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term of the assets, as follows:
Office premise Over the lease terms
The Group's right-of-use assets are included in property,
plant and equipment.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use
assets are also subject to impairment, which is set out in
note 2.4(d) impairment of nonfinancial assets.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payment) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption to
leases of low-value assets.

Llease payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or

both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and inferest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at FVOCI when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
revenue from other sources in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset. Equity investments
designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest, other than equity
investments at FVOCI, are classified and measured at
FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at FVTPL are also recognised as revenue from
other sources in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (that is, removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all financial assets stated at amortised
cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-month (“12-month ECL").
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (“lifetime ECL").

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

® existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The ECL for accounts receivable (except for margin loan
receivable) is assessed based on a provision matrix,
loan receivable and deposits and other receivables
are assessed individually by reference to the Group's
internal credit ratings and margin loan receivable is
assessed individually by reference to the Group's loan-
to-collateral value (“LTV").
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

24 EREHBERERZBE@®)

(k) EMEERER)

General approach (Continued) —MRE ()
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) SEERREE L ()

For financial assets, except for margin loan receivables,
the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. The Group considers
these financial assets are in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For margin loan receivables, the Group considers there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when
clients cannot meet margin call requirement and uses
the LTV to make its assessment. The Group considers
a margin loan receivable is in default when payments
under the margin call requirement are 30 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a margin loan receivable to be in default
when there is a margin shortfall which indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full, taking into account the pledged
securities held by the Group. A margin loan receivable
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Group rebuts the presumption, that there is a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, under ECL model when the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (k)

24 EREHBERERZBE@®)

ERMEERE®E)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset (except
for margin loan receivable) is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

® a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

* it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit loss.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (k)

24 EREHBERERZBE@®)

ERMEERE®E)

Definition of default (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables (other than receivables
arising from margin clients) which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month

ECLs.

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated creditimpaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables (other than receivables arising
from margin clients) that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(1

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group include accounts
payable, loans and borrowings and other payables and
accruals.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities including
accounts payable, lease liabilities, borrowings (without
any conversion option) and other payables and accruals
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an inftegral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Accounting policy for convertible instruments is stated in

note 2.4(u).
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Derecognition of financial liabilities

(o)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and shortterm highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(p) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 24 EXETHRERZBE @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (q) WsEER
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it EWARAEERBEKBREHDIEER
arises from the provision of services in the ordinary BMELE  WAHAEEIEAK
course of the Group's business. o
Revenue is recognised at the amount of promised Wy 325 4% 7N £ (B T8 HR 5 FE UK B A0 ARG AR B
consideration to which the Group is expected to be THER  TEEARE=ZFWEIHR
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf He W M EERERIHEMBEER
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or g WHIBRMEAE ST o
other sales taxes and is after the deduction of any trade
discounts.
Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition REBRZEIARENE - SHE
policies are as follows: mT
(a) interest income, on an accrual basis using the () FEBWALESTEEEBERNE
effective interest method by applying the rate that BT AR F R EERE (18
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts F) ARG FTIR & WA TR
over the expected life of the financial instrument RESREERE FE2FIZFA
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net BRI =AM

carrying amount of the financial asset;

(b) insurance brokerage income, the performance (b) REBELWA - BRHEER()RE
obligation is satisfied at a point in time when AERRABENIBEREMRERK
(i) the terms of the insurance policy have Rli)REBEACEERRASRSRE
been contractually agreed by the insurer and 16 EL UK B 2R > 3575 1 R B ) B S
policyholder; and (ii) the insurer has received BREM - RE—QEW - RIBAH
or has a present right to payment from the PEIA 52 B RT SLAR BB B 37 BN 3K

policyholder. Payment is due immediately from
insurance companies at the completion of the
insurance policy placement process once the
insurance policy is effective;
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(9)

corporate advisory income, the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
the reports are issued under the terms of each
engagement and the revenue can be measured
reliably, as only that time the Group has a present
right o payment from the customers for the service
performed. Invoices for the financial services are
issued upon signing service contracts and when
stated milestones in the contract are reached;

commission and brokerage income from securities
and futures dealings, the performance obligation
is satisfied at a point in time when the customer
has obtained control of the service, generally when
the trade is executed. Commission and brokerage
income are generally due within two days after the
trade date;

placing and underwriting income, the performance
obligation is satisfied at point in time upon the
completion of the offering of the securities. Invoice
is issued when the relevant activities are rendered
and payment is normally due within one month;

asset management income from regular
management fee is recognised periodically based
on a predetermined fixed percentage of the asset
value under the asset management agreement.
Income from performance fee is recognised over
time and when the performance fee is determinable
based on actual performance measurement; and

wealth management and consulting services
income, the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time when the relevant services have been
rendered.
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REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(r)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and/or rewards to
eligible participants (including the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group and of its investee
entities, and any consultant, advisor or agent engaged
by or business partners of any member of the Group
or any investee entity), who render services and/or
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) and advisors of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees/advisors render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-seftled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
option pricing model. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of
the shares of the Company, if applicable.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(r) Share-based payments (Continved)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with non-
employees is measured by reference to the fair value
of the services received at the date they are received.
Where the market information for the services provided
by non-employees cannot be reliably determined, the
fair value of the share options granted at the date when
the services are received is applied as a surrogate
measure. In this case, the fair value of the share options is
determined by external valuers using a binomial option
pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(r)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employees/advisors as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations as further explained in the accounting policy
for “Share-based payments” above.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme in accordance

with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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FEaEMBBRME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(t)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Convertible instruments

Convertible instruments that contain an equity component
Convertible instruments that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion
and the value of the consideration that would be
received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible instruments is measured at fair value based
on the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. The
equity component is initially recognised at the difference
between the fair value of the convertible instruments as
a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible instrument equity reserve
until either the instrument is converted or redeemed.

If the convertible instrument is converted, the convertible
instrument equity reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
convertible instrument is redeemed, the convertible
instrument equity reserve is released directly to retained
profits.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Group reviews portfolios of financial assets
measured at amortised cost to assess whether any
impairment losses exist and the amount of impairment
losses if there is any indication of impairment. Obijective
evidence for impairment includes observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. It also includes observable data
indicating adverse changes in the repayment status of
the debtors, or change in national or local economic
conditions that causes the default in payment.

The impairment loss for financial assets measured at
amortised cost using the expected credit loss model
is subjected to a number of key parameters and
assumptions, including the identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of default, loss given default,
exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment
factors. The expected credit losses for financial assets
measured at amortised cost are derived from estimates
whereby management takes into consideration historical
data, the historical loss experience and other adjustment
factors. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of the relevant observable data that reflect current
economic conditions and the judgement based on
management’s historical experience. Management
reviews the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions regularly to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at the end of
each reporting period. At 31 March 2025, other non-
financial assets of the Group include property, plant
and equipment, goodwill, investments in associates
and other intangible assets. Indefinite life intangible
assets and goodwill are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value-in-use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions on an arm’s length
basis of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

At 31 March 2025, certain of the Group's financial
assets are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these unobservable inputs could
result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a) global markets business segment composes of
brokerage operations including (i) securities and
futures brokerage and margin financing operations; (ii)
placing, in both equity capital market and debt capital
market, and underwriting; and (iii) provision of advisory
services for private structured finance transactions and
mergers and acquisitions;

(b) asset management business segment offers a
full spectrum of asset management products and
services, including investment advisory, external asset
management, portfolio management, fund incubation
and transaction execution to professional and
institutional investors;

(c) insurance brokerage business segment engages in
insurance brokerage business and the provision of
wealth planning and related services;

(d) investment business segment engages in the investments
of low-risk and high liquidity investment portfolio and
proprietary trading; and

(e) wealth management and consultancy services business
segment offers tailored services and an all-in-one
solution to meet the unique needs of each client,
including but not limited to family offices, institutional
investors and ultra-high-net-worth families.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
commenced the investment business and wealth management
and consultancy services business and they are considered
as new operating segments by the chief operating decision-
maker.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the directors of the Company that makes strategic
decisions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before
tax except that bank and other interest income (excluding
interest income from the provision of finance and margin
financing), share of results of associates, finance costs as
well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Intersegment transactions are made with reference to the
prices used for services made to independent third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
operating segments was provided to the management for
review during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved) 4. REFWBER @
Year ended 31 March 2025 BE-Z-_AF=A=+—HLFE
Wealth
management
and
Globl Asset  Insurance consultancy
markets management  brokerage  Investment services
business ~ business  business  business  business Total
HEEER
2% EE R RERH
mEEE  EEEE SRR REER S fam

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
ERTn  E%Tn BMTn BRTn RBRTRn ERTx

Segment revenue: AU

Revenue from external customers MNPEEWE 3,328 9,938 18,777 3,834 27,969 63,846

Infersegment revenue ARk - - - - _ _
3,328 9,938 18,777 3,834 27,969 63,846

Reconciliation: R

Elimination of infersegment revenue 4 BRIk 85 -

Total revenue e85 63,846
Segment results: PEE (8,639) 5,204 661 4,430 (1,619) 37
Reconciliation: .
Other inferest income HFIZHA 46
Corporate and other unallocated ~ AFREMFAAIBEX

expenses (37,604)
Share of results of associates NG (4,000)
Finance costs BEmA (5,964)
Loss before tax BHAEE (47,485)
Other segment information: BiSHEs
Provision for impairment loss of EUES < AEFRRETE

accounts receivable, net 125 (72) (178) - (104) (229)
Impairment loss of intangible assets ~ EF/&EBERE (1,397) - - - - (1,397)
Depreciation and amortisation FERESH

- operafing segment - RN (120) (5,408 - (210) - (5,738

- unallocated KA E (280)

(6,018)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended 31 March 2024

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

4, REREER w)
BE-_Z-_NE=A=1+—HILEE

Global Asset

Insurance
markets management  brokerage
business business business Total
2RMEEE EEEBEER GARELER ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Segmenr revenue: DI
Revenue from external customers SRR Pl 9,967 12,265 1,097 23,329
Intersegment revenue (note) 7 EBREE () - - 300 300
9,967 12,265 1,397 23,629
Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment revenue &8RS It 45 8 (300)
Total revenue Wiz 23,329
Segment results: S (1,055) 6,137 698 5,780
Reconciliation: HE
Bank interest income RITREBRA 1,403
Other interest income EbAERA 108
Corporate and other NAREM
unallocated expenses RABHEX (62,31¢)
Finance costs MEMAK (7,916
Loss before tax BB AIER (62,941)
Other segment information: HitpHEH
Provision for impairment loss of RS 2 HERR
accounts receivable, net BETE (148) (31) (143) (322)
Provision for impairment loss of REREMERFEZ
deposits and other receivables REEERE - - (50) (50)
Provision for impairment loss of ERER 2 REFRRE
loan receivable
- unallocated - RAE (1,338)
Fair value losses on financial asset and  EiBEZU AT @R $FEE
investments at FVTPL, net REEZ DA FEBETE (1,533 - - (1,533)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
- operating segment i (119) (4,051) - (4,170)
- unallocated - RAE (280)
(4,450

Note: Elimination of intersegment revenue represents elimination of

insurance brokerage transactions.
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. REFTER @)
Geographical information HEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) SMEBEF iz
2025 2024
—E-ERE —ENF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong &8 63,846 23,329
The geographic location of revenue from external RENEF 2 WSz B BENR
customers is based on the location of the customers at M TFEF 2B EID o

which the services are rendered.

(b) Non-current assets (b) FFHEEE
The geographic location of the non-current assets FRBEE(TEFESMIA) BN
(excluding financial instruments) is based on the location BEERES R KEMEESD -

of the operations to which they are allocated.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, non-current assets RIB-HAFR_E-_MF=F=+—
(excluding financial instruments) of approximately B 28255 B%32,660,0007T
HK$32,660,000 and HK$26,888,000 were located in K B126,888,000t 2 ERBEE (T
Hong Kong, respectively. BREEMTIA)EUNES -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from major customers who
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's revenue
for the year:

rReEEER ®)
BREETEEFNER
BREREFEEF WG » BEAREER
FEWRZER10% :

2025 2024

—E-RE —ENE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Customer A ZFEA 15,038 -
Customer B =FB 8,338 -
Customer C 2FEC 8,044 -
Customer D =FED - 10,140
Customer E = 5E - 3,450

During the year ended 31 March 2025, all the revenue
from Customer A was derived from provision of wealth
management and consultancy services business. All the
revenue from Customer B and C was derived from provision
of insurance brokerage business.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 46% of the revenue
from Customer D is derived from provision of global markets
business and 54% of the revenue is derived from provision
of asset management business. All revenue from Customer E is
derived from provision of asset management business.
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BIRMRBCD LT -

BE-Z-_NE=ZA=+—HLEEE X
HEFDzWHT46%FEEHIRERHRTIEE
%o MBE254%FEREEETEER -
REEFEZHARZYFEREEEEE
$75 o
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5 Wz~ Htt AR Wz R
Revenue represents income from placing and underwriting WHERERBHERBUA  REBELK
services; income from insurance brokerage; commission A BERBERERSRELUA . R
and brokerage income from securities and futures dealings; BMEZTECNBRA  BEESERBERRYE
interest income on margin financing activities; income from WA FEERBWRA LR E E R KRR
asset management and advisory services; income from FEURA o

custodian business and income from wealth management
and consultancy services.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net was as Wik ~ EMRARKEFE20MAT ¢
follows:
2025 2024
—E-RE —ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with customers EHRMKREENFISHKEBRN
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEFEEHRE
Placing and underwriting income FlERBHEA 1,301 9,630
Commission and brokerage income from % RHEEEREERILUKA
securities and future dealings 1,560 305
Insurance brokerage income (note c) R LU A (HiEEc) 18,777 1,097
Asset management and advisory fee income EEEE R BHE WA 10,403 12,265
Custodian business fee income AEEBBEWA - 6
Wealth management and consultancy B E S R EER RIS WA
services income 27,969 -
60,010 23,303
Revenue from other sources H SR U
Interest income on margin financing FREEES 2FSWA
activities 2 26
Interest income on investments REZFEWA 3,834 -
3,836 26
Total revenue W g 63,846 23,329

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. Wi~ HW AR WS FE @)

(Continued)
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net was as W s B ARKSBHE2OWUOT -
follows: (Continued) (4&)
2025 2024
—E-FHEF —E-MEF
HK$'000  HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other income and gains, net H AR Wi #8E
Bank interest income RATFIE WA - 1,403
Other interest income HAbF S UA 46 108
Dividend handling charge and other IR SRR I H AT N2
surcharges 41 391
Fair value gains on financial assets BBRBHEUANFEIRZERHEE
at FVTPL, net Z DN TERGRFEE 885 801
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBMEARZWE - 500
Others (note a) Hith (FfzEa) 5,290 1,310
Total other income and gains, net RGNS E Y2 6,262 4,513
Total b 70,108 27,842
Timing of revenue recognition U 25 TR SR B
At a point in time i E 53,094 23,260
Transferred over time BB I R R 6,916 43
60,010 23,303

Notes:

(b)

MY&E -
Others mainly included write back of information technology (a)
and maintenance expenses of HK$4,352,000 waived by a
service provider.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 (b)

to all its contracts such that no information regarding revenue
expected to be recognised in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the reporting date is disclosed
because the Group recognises revenue at the amount to
which it has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly
to the value to the customer of the Group’s performance
completed to date, or the remaining performance obligation is
part of a contract that has an original expected duration of
within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
received insurance brokerage income of approximately
HK$8,044,000 (2024: nil) from a company which the
ultimate controlling party of the Group has beneficial
interests in it.

(c)

Ht T ZaEBnREHESRENER
FHE I 4 5 < 8%E4,352,0007T °

FEBCHEMBSNERT B KRS
ERIEISHNEREERE  WEKES
ERBE A MFENTFSNELRY
HERRARENSHERANS (ZERH
FEEESCRERBEANEFEEEEY
) INBBENETERARERA—F
RSN —EB7 o

BE-_Z-_AE=-A=+—-HLEE"
AEBEAEERRESN I BEERE
@A — B A FWER B AL WAL B
8,044,000t (ZZ U4 : &) ©
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6.

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax was arrived at after charging:

BE-Z-AF=A=1t—HILtHFE

6. BRBRIEIR

REEZBRBAEEC R

2025 2024
—E-EF —EoNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M=t BT T BT T
Employee benefit expenses EEEAFX
(excluding directors’ remuneration): (TEEESEHE)
Salaries and allowances FeRER 26,047 29,459
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BARERIET B
(defined contribution scheme) (note) (EEHERETE)
(H=E) 487 593
26,534 30,052
Auditor’s remuneration BREETE & 1,514 1,692
Depreciation — property, plant and equipment HE-N% BERRE 13 2,329 2,100
Depreciation - right-of-use asset TE—-FREEE 13 3,012 2,150
Amortisation #es 16 677 200
Provision for impairment loss of a loan receivable fEW &5~ EEHEEE 20 - 1,338
Provision for impairment loss of accounts PR BRN < RIE R RIRE
receivable, net FE 21 229 322
Provision for impairment loss of deposits and BERHMERTIES
other receivables REEEEE 18 - 50
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERS 16 1,397 -
Note: M5

At 31 March 2025, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the retirement

benefit scheme in future years (2024: nil).

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

7. FINANCE COSTS RE A
2025 2024
—E-RE —ETOE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Interests on borrowings (note) BEZFE (M) 5,244 7,758
Interests on lease liabilities HEa RE 720 158
5,964 7916

Note: Interests on borrowing included imputed interests of nil
(2024: HK$1,770,000) on a convertible loan from
immediate holding company and HK$5,244,000 (2024:
HK$4,206,000) on convertible bonds from an independent

bond subscriber respectively. Details of the borrowing are

set out in note 26.

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)

Mz FEZANEERERERABZTRR
ERR-—EBUBESRBAZTRRE
FZGENEDBEB(ZE-MF 1 B
1,770,000t ) & B #5,244,000T (=&
PO @ 7B4,206,0007T) - BEEEZ

BRI HIRE26 -
EEME

THARBBMIAES EHRA( EHR
Bl 1) ~ ARMEBIZE3B3(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) B (f)f
URAB(RBEESNEER) R P58 284K

and (f) of the Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BoAFEESME
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, were as follows:
2025 2024
—E-RE —ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees we 758 800
Other emoluments: Hittif & :
Salaries and other benefits ek HAMER 4,229 7,683
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIKERF 2R
(defined contribution scheme) (CEHHFRETE) 36 44
4,265 7,727
5,023 8,527

WAR S HRAF) @
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

8. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEME @
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIAFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AEECNBYFHTESZHREN
during the year were as follows: T
2025 2024
—E-REF —E-NE
Fees Fees
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Ms. Ling Kit Sum Imma ERLLZ L 200 200
Mr. Zhang Guangying (note q) RSB EAE (Fiata) 169 -
Prof. Peng Qian (note b) EHIE (HiFtb) 104 -
Mr. Lo Chun Yu Toby (note ¢) EEFTEE (k) 31 200
Dr. Tam Lai Fan Gloria (note d) EEF L (M) 96 200
600 600
There were no other emoluments payable and FEEWREMBIFHTES 2 Hid
compensation for loss of office to the independent non- BERBEBAHE(CT-MF &) o
executive directors during the year (2024: nil).
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments BYFHTESHMEDARERELR
were for their services as directors of the Company. BAIESMEL -
Notes: BfaE
(a) Appointed on 28 May 2024. (o) WZZ-MERB=-+N\BEZEME-
(b) Appointed on 23 September 2024. b) R-ZB-MNFEAA-T+Z=BHEZEE-
(c) Resigned on 28 May 2024. () REZ-MEFERA=+NHEHME
(d) Retired on 23 September 2024. (d R-ZE-_WOFAA=-T=HEE-

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  EHZE-Z-_FAF=A=+—HItFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEMEw
(b) Executive directors (b) #miTES
Refirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  remuneration
HER BIRER

ik HAtfE R B S Weas
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BET T RETR BETR

2025 b -3
Mr. Xu Hao (Chief Executive Officer) (note o) ~ #1244 (7B2 %) (Hizta) - 1,524 18 1,542
Ms. Li Chuchu, Tracy (Chief Financial Officer) Z##%+ (EEHBAE) - 2,705 18 2,723
- 4,229 36 4,265
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits ~ contributions  remuneration
HeR BINER
ok HA3ER B MewE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BT
2024 —E-mE
Mr. Xu Hao (Chief Executive Officer) (note o) #1244 (7B2 %) (Hizta) - 148 4 152
Mr. Lau Fu Wing, Eddie (nofe b) B Z 8 %4 (Kb - 3,690 13 3,703
Ms. Li Chuchu, Tracy (Chief Financial Officer) Z## %+ (EEHBAE) - 1,763 18 1,781
Ms. Yeung Shuet Fan Pamela (note ) BERL L (HiE) - 2,207 9 2,216
- 7,808 44 7,852
The Group had not paid any inducement to any director REBRAFES RAFMNESIHE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ARBUMAREBRESMARE
for loss of office during the year (2024: nil). BN EBREABBEE (=22
) -
The executive directors’ emoluments were for their HITESME N ARSEEREELAT
services in connection with the management of the RAEEEBRBMAEL
affairs of the Company and the Group.
There was no arrangement under which a director FEEVEEBEBSHEIRDERER
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the AMENZH(Z2-NF  #) -

year (2024: nil).

WAR S HRAF) @a



REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEME @
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BMITEZ(E)
Notes: FMiEE :
(a) Appointed on 2 January 2024. (o) R-Z-NE-F_HEEE-
(b) Resigned on 2 January 2024. b) R=-Z-ME—-B_HBEHE-
(c) Resigned on 28 September 2023. () R=Z=-=FAA=+NBABHE-
(c) Non-executive directors (c) HFHTES
The fees paid to non-executive directors during the year NEEOHEYTESIHENT :
were as follows:
2025 2024
—E-HEF —ECNE
Fees Fees
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Dr. Cheng BiE+ 100 100
Mr. Han Kam Leung, Michael (note a) BERELE (HiEa) 58 100
158 200
There were no other emoluments payable and REEWEEMNFPITES 2 HEME
compensation for loss of office to the non-executive REERE(CT-NEF &) o
directors during the year (2024: nil).
The non-executive directors’ emoluments were for their FHTEEME D RAREEELALAE
services as directors of the Company. EMEL -
Note: MiEE -
(a) Resigned on 31 October 2024. (o) R=Z-—MFE+A=+—HEHE -

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AfuBEFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included AEEIVBSHEEEEMML(ZZ-N
two (2024: three) directors, details of whose remuneration FrZ)ES  HMEFBEN XXM
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration 8o REEHT =M (ZF-ME : M) I
for the year of remaining three (2024: two) highest paid FANBESZHESHEEZHMEFBENT ¢
employees who are not a director of the Company were as
follows:
2025 2024
—E-REF —EUE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYT T BT
Salaries and other benefits o R EMER 8,402 3,887
Pension scheme contributions RAFTEIAR 54 27
8,456 3,914
The emoluments of the five highest paid employees, rEERUGRSHES (TEEES) NS
excluding directors, for the year fell within the following BERUTER :
bands:
Number of individuals
AE
2025 2024
—E-EHF —EUF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 7#51,000,001 L Z##1,500,0007T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7#1,500,001 7L Z%#2,000,0007T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 7#2,000,001 T £ 8%2,500,0007T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 74,500,001 T E 8% 5,000,0007T 1 -
3 2
The Group had not paid to an individual as an inducement BE_Z-AF=ZA=t-HLFE F&
to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for B ARE—BALXNAHME  ERMAKRE
loss of office for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: B MAREBERE  REABBEE

nil). (ZZZWEF  #) -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operates.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BVI and the
Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax
in the BVI and the Cayman Islands respectively.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, Hong Kong profits tax of
the qualified entity of the Group is calculated in accordance
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The profits of
other group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the
flat rate of 16.5%.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits for both years ended 31 March 2025
and 2024 except for two subsidiaries of the Group that no
provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
subsidiary has sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off
against the assessable profit for both years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

10. FRGHIESR
FEEAREERELANRASEENE
DANE RS TERE GO RFIBRE
i o

REXABELHERFAEFENRAURE
B AKEBASERBRELFEERFEE
HEHREMAER

RZZE-—NF=A=-+—R > FBLLGRE
BCE—EFRBE(BE]) (B7R)IRHE
RYEBIER]) > SIARIEB MRS © 3%
HROIERR=_ZE-—NF=A=Z+N\BLHES
REEE  WREBTE - REJNEFHBRAK
) EEREEEE2,000,0007T 2% F|
BBIEB.25%HF - M E 2,000,000
T2 BB URER16.5%EH - BE=Z
CHERZEZNFE=ZA=1+—HILEFEE
AEBEERBR2EBHESHRAESHE
MHIETE - THENEHMAE 2EBHM
SEERWEANBEEZRS —FER16.5%H
;’r% °

HRAEERBEZ-ZS-_AFR_T_NF
A=+ —-HLEFEHERERFER  #IE
BREEMHEBRRATHERBRER » R
SEMEMBATRS  EREBUETIR
HERE  RERREBZE-Z-RER=Z
—ME=ZA=+t—-RLEFEERZHELTY
BECAENT ZHEFE TIKEERTS
A o

2025 2024
i — ik
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current AH
Over provision in prior years B FEBERE
- Hong Kong —-&E - 1
Deferred tax — reversal of temporary RFERE — HRF =R
differences el - 19
Total income tax credit for the year NEEFrEHIEREEE - 20
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 10. FRSBiE R @)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before THAREBEERRTEZRBAESRERE
tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate to the tax charge at FArRIER R E A EE SRR E 2

the Group's effective tax rate was as follows: THRI R 2 IR ¢
2025 2024
= —TomE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Loss before tax BRBLRIE IR (47,485) (62,941)

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax & B EERE16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (ZZ-F : 16.5%)5t8 2
BiIEIE (7,835) (10,385)

Adjustments in respect of current tax of HIBE AR Z BV AR IE 2 FH R

previous periods - (1)
Income not subject to tax BATRBZ WA (255) (1,399
Expenses not deductible for tax TAMBEEE 101 1,081
Temporary differences not recognised KRR B 93 35
Tax losses from previous periods utilised B RIB AR 2 BEEE (1,887) (2,013)
Tax losses not recognised RERZHIBFE 9,783 12,662
Tax credit at the Group’s effective tax rate BAEBERBRHEHIERR - (20)

WAR S HRAF) @@



REaMBREME

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

11. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to the Shareholders
of HK$51,826,000 (2024: HK$63,838,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

19,842,667,311 (2024: 19,143,179,880) in issue
during the year.

The calculation of weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

1. RRELGERER

(a)

BREXER

%Ex%ﬁ@?ﬁ%ﬁ"ﬂx%ﬁ{£$$f%?§
63,838,000%)&¢¢f5§§ﬁ%ﬁﬂ§
INHEFITE19,842,667, 31T R (==

—POE :19,143,179,8808%) 5 &
BREPARSERMEFHEEENT ¢

2025
—E-REF

2024
—TNF

Number of shares RHEE

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of year

RENZEBITEER

Effect of issue of new shares BITHRGDzE
Weighted average number of ordinary RERZEBRIEFIIH

shares at end of year

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of the diluted loss per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to the Shareholders
of HK$51,826,000 (2024: HK$63,838,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

19,842,667,311 (2024: 19,143,179,880) in issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amount presented for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024 in respect of a dilution. The calculation
of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024 does not assume the exercise of the
Company'’s outstanding convertible instruments as they
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

(b)

19,143,179,880 19,143,179,880
699,487,431 -

19,842,667,311 19,143,179,880

BREEER

ERBESRENRRBERFERSE
7#651,826,000T (= =M : B
63,838,0007T) RAF EE 31 %lﬁﬂi‘
INFEF 19 8019,842,667 31T IR(=F

ZPUEE 1 19,143,179,8808% )T E -
BE-_Z_AERZE-ZNFE=A

=+ -HLEFEMREIZBREFEE
SHRITEFHBERE - AEBE-R
THERZZEINFE=ZA=+T-RALEF
E28R#EEFERTARBRADEZR
TETRRTABTE(REREYE
REXEREERBELE) -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

12. DIVIDENDS 12

13.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year

ended 31 March 2025 (2024: nil).

. Hﬁ Iél_l\

ARBEBE((ESE))FEEMEBE=Z
—HE=ZAZ+-HLEFERTRE(ZZE
“OE &) o

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BERRE
31 March 2025 —E-RE=ZA=+—H
Furniture,
leasehold ~ fixturesand ~ Computer Right-of-
improvements  equipment  equipment  use assefs Total
g  GE-%£E
NELE RifE ElRfE  FREZE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2024: R=B-MEMA-7
Cost [ 6,369 2,838 4,380 13,105 26,692
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (2,995) (2,247) (2,979) (12,746) (20,967)
Net carrying amount EETE 3,374 591 1,401 359 5725
At 31 March 2024, net of accumulated ~ R=B-mE=A=+-R
depreciation NREHE 3,374 591 1,401 359 5,725
Additions (note) HE (M) 3,034 637 - 8,705 12,376
Disposal it - - (9) - 9)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ AFE3H2 2478 (1,299) (130) (900) (3,012) (5,341)
At 31 March 2025, net of accumulated  R=E=#%Z=p=+-8:
depreciation Nk EHinE 5,109 1,098 49?2 6,052 12,751
At 31 March 2025: W=Z2-Rf=f=+-§:
Cost A 9403 2,357 4,338 8,705 24,803
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (4,294) (1,259) (3,846) (2,653) (12,052)
Net carrying amount ERFE 5,109 1,098 492 6,052 12,751
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. W%  BERRB@®
31 March 2024 —E-mE=A=+—H
Furniture,
leasehold ~ fixturesand ~ Computer Right-of-
improvements  equipment  equipment  use assefs Total
BE  GH-%E
VES3S Rt R fEREEE nE

HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFR  ABTR RBTR BETR ABTR

At 1 April 2023: WZZ-=EmA-R:

Cost A 6,369 2,838 3,503 13,105 25,815

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,951) (2,129) (2,045) (10,594) (16,717)

Net carrying amount REFE 4,418 713 1,458 2,509 9,098
At 31 March 2023, net of accumulated ~ R=B==E=fA=+-R

depreciation NKREHiE 4418 713 1,458 2,509 9,098
Additions E - - 877 - 877
Depreciation provided during the year ~ KEEHE2I7E (1,044) (122) (934) (2,150) (4,250)
At 31 March 2024, net of accumulated  R=E=mE=p=+-8:

depreciation NB2stne 3,374 591 1,401 359 5725
At 31 March 2024: R=B-ME=A=1-R:

Cost BA 6,369 2,838 4,380 13,105 26,692

Accumulated depreciation it (2,995) (2,247 2,979 (12,746) 20,967)

Net carrying amount REFE 3,374 591 1,401 359 5,725
Note: As disclosed in note 27, the Group had addition of right- MisE : WKM7 FFiRE  AEERBE=Z

of-use assets of approximately HK$8,705,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: nil). During the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Group terminated a lease
agreement in respect of an office (31 March 2024: nil)
and derecognised right-of-use assets of approximately

HK$13,105,000 (31 March 2024: nil).

—HEE=A=+-BILEEHEBEFER
FAREEENEYS,705000T (=22
F E) BE-E-_REE=A=+-—
BEEE > AEERKE-—ODEBRRA
EvHERBR(ZTE-_NE=A=1+—
B 8 TRIEBIAFEAREENBE
13,105,000t (ZE-—WFE=A=+—
H: ) o

14. GOODWILL 14. &
2025 2024
—e-FEE  —EomE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Carrying amount IR (E

At beginning and at end of the year REDRER 1,505 1,505
Goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU") of R-E-RER-ZB-_MNE=A=+—-8
insurance and global markets business in Hong Kong at 31 HMESBREEERBRE2BTELHR ES

March 2025 and 2024. EEBU(REELEM]) -

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  EHZE-Z-_FAF=A=+—HItFE
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REtE QR 2 fEm
2025 2024
—E-HF —EmEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
Unlisted equity interests FLEmRE

Cost of investments in associates REFE R E 2 RERA 4,000 -

Share of post-acquisition losses and W ESER 2 EE X
other comprehensive expenses (4,000) -

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had interests in

R-IEBE-_RFER-ZE-_WNFE=A=1+—H"

the following associates: REBMATIIBE AR ER R
Proporfion of nominal value Proporfion of
Place of incorporction/  Class of of issued capital held vofing power held ~ Principal
Name Form of entity  operation shares held by the Group by the Group activity
i/ ASEARDRT AEEfH
£h LD EEHE FisRHER BAmELA RERLH IEEH
2025 2024 2025 2024
“ECRE CECME CECEE ZECME
Aspiring Alliance Incorporated  Hong Kong/ Ordinary 40% - 40% - Provision of
Consulting Limited (note] Hong Kong consultancy services
ERUFAERAAMNE) A BE/E% LR RUtHARY
EHLEA R Incorporated  The People’s Republic ~ Ordinary 40% - 40% - Provision of
ERAT of China [PRC)/PRC (Indirect) (Indirect consultancy services
A hEARHAE LER () () RUtHARY
(E) /
The financial information and carrying amount of the AEERBERNT 2B (ERMSLEFE
Group's interests in associates that is not individually R UERAEREANR) 2 BER K REE
material and is accounted for using the equity method is set HIMT :
out below:
2025 2024
— TEMF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
The Group's share of loss and total AEEREAFEBERZEER
comprehensive loss for the year #zE (4,000) -

Aggregate carrying amount of the Groups’
interests in immaterial associates

During the years ended 31 March 2025

impairment loss for interests in associates was recognised.

REBERFERBE NE 2B

EREEAEE - -
and 2024, no BE-_Z-_HFR-_ZF-_MF=A=+—H
LEE  SIEREE AR 2 ERERRNE

518 o
WEBESBR AR



RaMBERMWE

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

16. HttEEE

Futures
Exchange SFC  Insurance
trading rights licenses license  Software Total
HERS
o REEER RIBHEER g “m
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BAE
At T April 2023, 31 March 2024  W=Z==#mA—-H  ZB=[F
and 1 April 2024 =ZB=+-AR-E-MEMA—A 1,736 14,500 909 3,151 20,296
Additions RE - - - 820 820
Impairment loss HERE (1,397) - - - (1,397)
At 31 March 2025 R-B-RE=ZA=+-8 339 14,500 909 3,971 19,719
Accumulated amortisation S
AT April 2023 R-B-=fMA—-A - - - 438 438
Amortisation provided during the year ~ AE 32 2 8 - - - 200 200
At 31 March 2024 and R-B-mE=A=+-HEK
1 April 2024 —E-MENA—H - - - 638 638
Amortisation provided during the year ~ A E3H2 2 8 - - - 677 677
At 31 March 2025 R-B-RE=A=+-H - - - 1,315 1,315
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 March 2025 R-BE-RE=f=+-H 339 14,500 909 2,656 18,404
At 31 March 2024 RoE-WEZA=+-A 1,736 14,500 909 2,513 19,658

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The trading rights, SFC licenses and insurance license have
been considered to have indefinite life because they are
expected to contribute to the net cash flows of the Group
indefinitely, and are not amortised.

Software has finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-
line basis at range from 3 to 7 years. The average remaining
amortisation period of the software is 3.5 years.

At 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of intangible assets
that is assessed as having indefinite useful life amounted to
approximately HK$15,748,000 (2024: HK$17,145,000).
HK$339,000 (2024: HK$1,736,000) is attributable to the
CGU of securities brokerage business, HK$14,500,000
(2024: HK$14,500,000) is attributable to the CGU of asset
management business under SFC Licenses and HK$909,000
(2024: HK$909,000) is attributable to the CGU of
insurance brokerage business.

On 31 March 2025, the management of the Group
conducted impairment review on the CGU of the Group’s
asset management business. The recoverable amount of
the CGU has been determined based on value in use
calculation, which is based on the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period
with a terminal value and a prestax discount rate of 17.02%
(2024: 19.1%). Pre-tax discount rate applied reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risk specific to CGU. The key assumptions of the value
in use calculations are discount rate and growth rate.
Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the
CGU is estimated to be higher than the carrying amount
and therefore the Directors consider that no impairment is
necessary as at 31 March 2025. The Directors also believe
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause
the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

16. Htt B EE @)

R5E RESHERRRRERERABEE
REH  ARRPTERPHAEE2RE
MEFREHER - ML B

BHEEARAERFE  WUABEREENTF
SE7FH#IE - M2 FIIRREEHRIS
o

R-ZE-_RAF=A=+—08 &FHBA

15748000 L (ZEZMF : B#E
17,145,000 7T ) » & # 339,000t (==&
ZIY4E 11,736,000 ) BB E F KL ETE
ZIREEEEN - B¥14,500,000T(=F
ZPUEE : BE14,500,000T) SREBRBES
MRTEESHEERCRESELSEN M
#009,000t (ZE 94 : B #909,000
) AISEBA R ER B SEEEN ©

RIE_RFE=A=1+—H AEEEEE
HAEBEEERER Y REEEENET
WEBE ReEEBEM 2 TWESETIR
BEAEENEEE  MEABEDERE
BEEMEZRERFHBTREEEZY
BIEERBRBATRREI7.02% (=2 =N
F19.1%)51E - IRAZBRBAIRRER
MEAMSHEEHBEEZTERESE
SBNZEERR - FHEEFEZEER
BRAEMBRERIERE - AN BEEE
BuzalEeEGFSREEE  Fit
EERBAN - E_HF=A=1+—HBAE:
RRE - EBTRATTE R E S EETKE
FERBZZAMEEECTEBITEETRS
EEBENZIRAEBRBETKRESEE -

WAR S HRAF) @@
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVOCI

17. ZBEMEEREADFESKRZ

TREE
2025 2024
i — ik
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Non-current: FEME :

Unlisted equity investment in the United REEZ Ik EHRERE

Kingdom 254 254

In December 2022, De Oro Strategics Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, made a minority
investment in Global Futures and Options Holdings (“GFO-X")
via subscription of convertible preferred shares for a total
consideration of US$502,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4 million). GFO-X is authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority in the United Kingdom for
operating a multilateral trading facility offering futures and
options investment products to eligible institutional and
professional investors. GFO-X is in the process of establishing
a centrally cleared trading venue that will offer trading in
cash-settled bitcoin index futures and options in a regulated
environment.

At 31 March 2025, the Directors considered that
the carrying amount of the investment in GFO-X
was approximately HK$254,000 (31 March 2024:
HK$254,000) which was determined with reference to the

recent transaction price of the shares sold to an independent

party.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

REZZBZ=F+=A  AAFEEZENE
A 7 De Oro Strategics Limited 7% 18 52 & 7]
B 18 5& B ¥ Global Futures and Options
Holdings ([ GFOX 1) T D BIREIRE -
BREBS502740ET (HERDNBE
4,000,0007t) - GFOXZ KB ®MITREE
REENEE  RELZBXFRIE  HEE
BOEBREXREERMUBENRERE
Em e GFOXERERY —EEHEENRS
B EER—EZEERRTRHURS
RENLSSIEBENNERS -

RZEBE-_RAF=ZA=+—H EEIXER
GFOXZRERABEALBEE254,0005T (=
FENE=A=+—H : B¥254,0007T)
HEZZRBIATHERD ZEHRZE
REBEE -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EMRIE - RERHMBWFIE

2025 2024
—E-RE —ETOE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT
Non-current: FERE :
Deposits wne 1,902 1,929
Current: TE
Prepayments and deposits FANRERES 3,648 2,704
Other receivables H b FhE 3,622 387
7,270 3,091
The balance of other receivables is neither past due nor HitEW S E e EABBm A RRE - Bk
impaired and no credit loss allowance has been provided Bike R HMEWSIE S E S EIRERE
for deposits and other receivables as the related credit loss EEEEEESERBEREX -
allowances were immaterial.
The movement in the provision for impairment loss of BEREMERSE Y RESERE ST

deposits and other receivables was as follows: M

WAR S HRAF) @
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. AIRIE » RERHMEWRIE &)
(Continued)
2024 —EBIUE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FE1PEER FE2PEER FEIPEER #zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
At beginning of year REH]) - - - _
Provision for impairment B R - - 50 50
Uncollectible amount written off  #figs k=448 - - (50) (50)
ECL rate HEHEEFER N/ATER N/ARER N/ATER N/ATER

19.

There were bad debts written off on deposits and other
receivables of HK$50,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024 due to outstanding balance deemed as irrecoverable
in the future by management.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

In March 2022, the Company entered into a loan purchase
agreement with a private limited company, in relation to the
acquisition of a convertible loan of US$250,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,945,000), which would be repaid upon maturity
or converted into the shares of a private limited company on
the maturity date. The convertible loan was unsecured and
interest-free. In September 2023, the Company entered into
a second loan extension agreement with the private limited
company to further extend the maturity date to September

2024.

The convertible loan is unquoted in an active market with
the fair value of the convertible loan of initial recognition
approximating to be the transaction price.

At 31 March 2024, the Directors considered that there
was evidence indicating that the debtor has been in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery. As such, the Directors considered that the fair
value of the convertible loan was nil. A fair value loss to
profit or loss of HK$1,533,000 was made for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

19.

BE-_Z-_NEF=ZA=+—HLEE  #iR
Sk H bR IERMEE < R B8 % 50,000
7t RERBEEBRREBREMRIBIERRER
LR E] o

EBRBERUATEIRZERMEE
RIEZZF=F > AAaE-HEAABR
AT VEREERSE  AREHEWE—%
250,000% T (FHE R B 1,945,0007T) 2
ARRER  TRRERSNEHEEESR
REPEERE—ERAABRATZRM °
ARREFRABRBFREE - RZZTZ=F
hB ARBREZFABRATTLE=H
ERLHHE  SEHAE-—SPERE-F
“MERA -

JRRERMNERT S LWERE - KR
RZAUBRRER 2 A FEERZERES -

R-ZZB-_NF=RA=+—-H EBRAHER
BRABBAENBREVBNE - BAKE
WEEBLGAEWENE - Bt - EFRART
BRERZAFERT -NEBE-ZT-IF
ZA=t—-RLFERERFRAIFESRE
7#1,533,0007T °
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

20. LOAN RECEIVABLE 20. EER
2025 2024
—E-REF —EUE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loan receivable sz - 5,000
Less: Provision for impairment loss B OR BB - -
- 5,000
The loan receivable as at 31 March 2024 was unsecured, RCBE-ZNMFE=ZRA=1+—HZEKWEREE
bearing interests at 9% per annum and repayable on 29 EHR - BEFERINAEL AR -S-MF
May 2024. The loan was settled during the year ended 31 EAZt+hBEE -BE-T-HF=A
March 2025. =t+—-BHLEEFE  ZEMRCHEH -
Loan receivable, determined based on its age since the REZEBZWNE=ZA=+—H BRERRHE
effective draw down date of the loan, was aged within 30 BZERZERRRAREZRRETE IR
days, at 31 March 2024. BAHB3I0HR °
The movement in the provision for impairment loss of the FEWERZREBERREZZEBNT -
loan receivable was as follows:
2024 —EMEF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SE1PEER SE2MEER SE3MEER HER

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFT  BETR  EETR  BETR

At beginning of year REZD) 475 - - 475
Provision for impairment loss DERIELSEi=t e 1,338 - - 1,338
Uncollectible amount written off  #figkk Uk E £ %8 (1,813) - - (1,813)
ECL rate HHEEBER N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATER N/ATEAR
Loan receivable of approximately HK$1,813,000 which BE-_FT-_NF=A=t—-HLFE ' H
was determined as uncollectible by the management was EEEEEARNE 2RRERNBE
written off during the year ended 31 March 2024. 1,813,0007T E i dh ©

WAR S HRAF) @
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 21. BWERR

2025 2024
—E-HEF —E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Accounts receivable arising from the REBXBBRPEE 2 BRIRR
ordinary course of business of:
— Global markets business —2RMISER
Securities brokerage business BHRRFEH
Cash clients BeEF 4 -
Margin clients HREF 27 14
Clearing houses EER 6 7
Others Hith 80 313
— Asset management business - EEBEER 1,915 2,398
— Insurance brokerage business —RBBIEADETS 2,767 571
- Wealth management and -HEEERBERAREER
consultancy services business 852 -
5,651 3,303
Less: Provision for impairment loss W ORERERE (557) (328)
5,094 2,975

At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025,
accounts receivable from contracts with customers amounted
to approximately HK$1,215,000, HK$2,955,000 and
HK$5,058,000 respectively.

The settlement terms of accounts receivable attributable to
the dealing in securities transactions are two trading days
after the trade date except for the balances with margin
clients which are repayable on demand or according to
agreed repayment schedules, and bearing interest ranging
from 10.64% to 11.35% per annum at 31 March 2025
(2024: 7.83% to 12.50% per annum). Except for dealing
in securities transactions, the trading terms with customers
of global markets business, asset management business,
insurance brokerage business and wealth management
and consultancy services business are mainly on credit.
The credit period for customers of global markets business,
insurance brokerage business and wealth management
and consultancy services business are generally 30 days,
extended up to 90 days for major customers. The credit
period for customers of asset management business is
generally 30 days, extended up to 60 days for certain
customers.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

R-ZE-=FMNMA—HB ZZE-NF=A4
=+—-BRZZ-HF=A=+—H  EW
EEAHNERARD B BLBEE,215,0007T
7B#2,955,000T & #&#£ 5,058,000 ©

BRIFREF 2 GBARERIREHEEN
FEEERN-Z-RF=ZA=+—HESE
FNF10.64%F11.35%(ZF-MF :
F7.83%%12.50%) 2 RRTEI  BHE
BEXZRIERURR2EEPRAR S AR
MEXZAH - BREERZXZI  HERT
BEY - EEEEEY - RBRELCEBUR
MEEERBEAREXBEEFNRZRAE
ZURERFAET - 2HRMBER - RiaE
KEBURNEEERBERREEXEBEFH
FEH-RA/I0F MEBFFAALERE
R%90H - EEEEEBREFNEEN—K
R30H  METEFATEREZERZ60R -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end
of the reporting period, based on the trade date, was as
follows:

21.

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

R &)
FﬁiﬁmeWﬁ PR 5 B B
oW -

2025 2024

It TR S

HK$'000 HK$ 000

BT BT

Within 90 days 90E R 4,033 3,094
Between 91 to 180 days 91Z180H 105 81
Between 181 to 365 days 18123658 200 30
Over one year —FE Bk 1,313 98
5,651 3,303

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of
the reporting period based on past due date, and net of loss
allowance was as follows:

REIEHR - REH A E 2 BIRR
EERE) ZIREDTNT ¢

(FBR

2025 2024

- 7 —Eqi —_ ? _@ﬂi

HK$OOO HK$OOO

BET T BEET T

Not past due REH 10 2,902
Less than 1 month past due BHIEAR 2,660 61
1 to 3 months past due BHII =318 A 1,183 12
Over 3 months past due BHEASEA L E 1,241 -
5,094 2,975

At 31 March 2025, except for margin loans receivable
of HK$27,000 (2024: HK$14,000), which was secured
by underlying equity securities amounted to approximately
HK$822,000 (2024: HK$481,000), the Group did not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

Trading limits are set for margin clients. The Group seeks
to maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable in order to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly monitored by management.

RIEZHF=A=+—8 - RHEHE27,000
FT(ZZBPE @ BH14,0007T) 2 EWFR
B S EQBE822,0007T(ZE=MF ¢
FB#E481,00070) 2 HHBAR AN B S EIK R M
o REBTEMRZSERSETMAERR
R E A S RS o

HFREFZXEERERT - AEEHHHH

KU E W R ERS BREEE - WS EER
REZRE - EEEEHMETAREER -

WAL BRAR
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FEMEBESRME
e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

For the year ended 31 March 2025

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continved)

The movements in the provision for impairment loss of

accounts receivable were as follows:

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

21. EWERF (@)

FEW R 2 B R R E 2 BT

2025 —E-RF
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
EAL 12 BB HIWBR L1143 ax
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT BT
At beginning of year RAEAD 1 - - 327 328
Provision for impairment loss HESBEE - - - 229 229
At end of year RER 1 - - 556 557
Arising from: EUTREREE
- Cash clients —BEARE - - - 4 4
- Margin clients -HREF 27 - - - 27
- Clearing houses — &R - - - 6 6
- Other accounts receivable — HA R - - - 5,614 5,614
27 - - 5,624 5,651
ECL rate HHEEEHEE
- Cash clients -B4RF N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER NATER N/ATER
- Margin clients -H#EEF 3.23% N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER
- Clearing houses —-HEf N/ATER N/AFER NAFTER NATER N/ATER
— Other accounts receivable - H it KRR N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 9.89% N/AFER

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 21. FEWERR ()

2024 —ECNE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AL EY]2 K] 2 11973 Fab
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
At beginning of year REH - - - 6 6
Provision for impairment loss BB RE ] - - 321 322
At end of year RER ] - - 327 328
Arising from: EUTEBEEL
- Margin clients -HFREFE 14 - - - 14
- Clearing houses — B8 - - - 7 7
— Other accounts receivable - HAbEUES - - - 3,282 3,282
14 - - 3,289 3,303
ECL rate BHEERER
- Margin clients -HREF 6.4% N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER
- Clearing houses — 5 N/ARER N/ARER N/AFTER N/AFER N/ATEAR
— Other accounts receivable — B RS N/AREBR N/ATER N/ATER 10.2% N/A 7~ER

No credit loss allowance was provided for cash clients
and clearing house receivables as the related credit loss
allowances were immaterial.

The Group did not hold any collateral over the impaired

receivables.

Ko

K o

BEREWREEFREEMRIETREER
BiERE  FRAREBREESERELTE

REBIEHE HRBEZBEFERFBIE
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

22. INVESTMENTS AT FVTPL

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

22. BBRBEHULAFEIIRZKRE

2025 2024

—ECRE —EUF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BET T BET T

Listed equity investments, at market value ERERE  mmE - 1,234

The investments as at 31 March 2024 were classified as
held for trading. The listed equity investments were stated
at fair values based on quoted market prices in an active

REZZBZMNF=ZA=+-AZREDEARF
FEE - ETREREDREBEEETS L2
MERERDFEIIR -

market.
23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23. RERBITHERR

2025 2024
ZE-hHF —E-IEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Cash and bank balances BEMIRITER 53,017 88,005

Time deposits with original maturity of not  REHEFLR=ME A = BT
less than three months 1,500 1,500
54,517 89,505
At 31 March 2025, except for the balances of R-ZB-ZAF=ZA=1t—-H KB
HK$4,185,000 (2024: HK$4,725,000) and 4,185,000t (= Z =M% : ,%’354725000

HK$15,033,000 (2024: HK$16,621,000) which were
denominated in RMB and US$, respectively, cash and bank
balances of the Group were denominated in the functional
currencies.

At 31 March 2025, time deposits of HK$ 1,500,000 (2024:
HK$1,500,000) with original maturity of not less than three
months carried interest at 0.98% (2024: 0.98%) per annum.

Certain cash at banks of the Group earned interest
at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances
approximated their fair values.

The Group maintains trust accounts with authorised
institutions in respect of clients’ monies arising from the
course of securities brokerage, futures brokerage, asset
management and insurance brokerage businesses. At 31
March 2025, approximately HK$37,258,000 (2024:
HK$61,182,000) was held by the Group on behalf of the
clients in the trust accounts. The client monies at 31 March
2025 and 2024 were not included in the Group's cash and
bank balances.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

Jt) K B# 15,033,000t (ZEZ4F .
#16,621,0005) 2 &85 %MAEM&*
AN AEENRS RBTESUIE
EHEEHE -

RZBE-_RF=A=+—0 - REHBFD
R={EB 2 E8EFE®1,500,000T (==
94 B#1,500,0007T) IR FHZER0.98%
(ZEZMEF - 0.98%)FTE ©

REEzE TRITERRESE BRITERF
RPFBARMEETE - RERRITHEHZ
IREEEH A FEMEE -

AEERERERBRLTERF  FHR
BHRL  PERL - EEEERRBEL
ERBRPELEZEFHRERE -NR-ZZTHF
ZRA=1+—H  AEBRARFEFRETERF
BEEHNEBEI7,258,000 T(ZZ=WEF :
B#61,182,000T) - R=B-HFER-F
—OF=ZR=1+-HBNFFRIALETF AR
B RERIRITHERR
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The balances at 31 March 2025 and 2024, based on the

25.

trade date, were all aged within 90 days.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

24. FEFERFR
RIBE-_RFR-ZE-_NF=A=+—8 >
EBR 5 ATEWNES 2 IRERIIAB0B R ©

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 Htt BN RIERETER
2025 2024
—ECEHF —EUF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Other payables and accruals HiEA AR B ER 12,189 11,541
Current portion RENE D 11,439 11,541
Non-current portion (note) IERENERD (FHEE) 750 -
12,189 11,541

Note: Other payable of HK$750,000 is unsecured, interest free

and repayable on 1 April 2026.

MizE ©  HAMREIFIEBE750,000T AEEA
REVENR-Z_FMNA—REE-

26. BORROWING 26. &
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
—ECRF=RA=1-H —Z-RmE=A=1-H
Effective Effective
interest rate (Unaudited) interest rate (Audited)
(%) p.a.  Maturity  HK$'000 (%) p.a.  Maturiy  HK$'000
BRER= (REEEH) BERFAE (&%)
(%) AR B%TR (%) BT T
Current: TE
Borrowing - converfible bonds & & - T RE%S
- unsecured (note a) —EIEH (fi5Ea) 13.29 2025 39,908 - -
Non-current: FRE
Borrowing - convertible bonds &% - TAKRES
- unsecured (nofe q) —EIE I (HfEEa) - - - 13.29 37,864
39,908 37,864

WAR S HRAF) @a
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

26. BORROWING (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 16 May 2023, Aurum Strategic Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated with limited liability
in the BVI, and the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Surrich International Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Wuxi Guolian Development
(Group) Co., ltd. (EFH B R (@) BRDF), a wholly
state-owned company established in the PRC with limited
liability, in relation to the issue of convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 with conversion rights
to convert the principal amount thereof into the shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.13475 per
conversion share (the “Convertible Bonds”). The conversion
period shall begin 41 days after 30 May 2023 (the “Issue
Date”) and end on 10 business days before 30 May 2025, i.e.
the maturity date.

The issue price was 100% of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds. The Convertible Bonds bear interest at 8%
per annum payable quarterly in arrears. The imputed interest
on the Convertible Bonds was calculated using the effective
interest rate at 13.29% per annum.

The Convertible Bonds shall mature on the second anniversary
of the Issue Date on 30 May 2025. The Convertible Bonds
are guaranteed by the Company and unsecured.

At the date of issuance of the Convertible Bonds, taking into
account the terms of the repayment, the fair value of the
borrowing was HK$40,000,000, of which the fair values of
liability component and equity component were approximately
HK$36,058,000 and approximately HK$3,942,000
respectively. The fair value of the liability component of
convertible borrowing of HK$36,058,000 represented the net
present value of the cash flow associated with the Convertible
Bonds. At 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds was approximately
HK$39,908,000 (31 March 2024: HK$37,864,000),
affer recognising imputed interest expense of approximately
HK$5,244,000 (2024: HK$4,206,000); offset by interest
payment of HK$3,200,000 (2024: HK$2,400,000) made
during the year ended 31 March 2025.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

26. BE @)
B

(a)

MNZZZZFHA+AE  ADRAZEWE
A" Aurum Strategic Limited (AR B & 2 B
BEEMAY 2 BRAE) KA A B EE 85N El
BERAR(RHPERLZBEEZERTRA
AEFHEBNSER(EEARABDZEENR
BAR)RMEITASEERBH40,000,0007T
MEBIRENAIRRES T LRBIHE - U
RIERESRERRHERO0.13475 T8 H
AEFERABAQTRG ([ARRES D) -
BRPB-ZE-=FHA=TH(#TH
MDA BRRE-ZE-AFHA=TH
(BPEIERH)AIOE&E B LE -

BRITERATBRRESAEFEN100% © AR
REFRFREL%TE » BEEXRT - Al
RESNEER S REBRFRZ13.29%5
o

ARRESENRERTER MBS (=
ZTHRFRAA=ZTRH)IEE - JRRESH
RATER - WHEEA -

RABERESFZTASR  SEIEBEGRR
B8 2 AFEAB® 40,000,000 » HF
EEFIREZDBI ZLOFED BB B
36,058,000t & #978%£3,942,0007T © Al
RIEEEEH DS 2 AFEE36,058,000
TIEETERESEECRSREBETF
Ho-RZZBE-RAFE=ZA=+—0  RERRG
BRI B HNBES5,244,000T (=2 =N
£ B#4,206,0007T) % TRRESE
B ZREEHBLNE39,908,0007 (=
T-_ME=H=+—8 : B¥37,864,000
L) HREEZE-RFE=A=1+—-H1t
FEEEHZFBAAREES, 200,000 (=ZF
P94 : 5E#2,400,0007T ) FriEEY o
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

26. BORROWING (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(a)

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

26. BE @)
MISE  (4%)

During the year ended 31 March 2025, no conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds were exercised. The
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds at 31
March 2025 amounted to HK$40,000,000. The Convertible
Bonds were fully settled subsequent to the reporting period.

The Convertible Bonds recognised in the consolidated
financial statements were calculated as follows:

(a)

BE_Z-_AEZA=+—-HILEE A&
TETRRESMF2ERE - W5
F=ZA=+—8 > TRRESFZKEERS
565381 40,000,0007T - AJRRESESH
MEBREEE -

REEPBRRER 2 ATRRES ZTEN
T

Liabilities Equity

component component

aERY B

HK$'000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=FMA—H - -

Issuance of the Convertible Bonds TR EE 36,058 3,942

Imputed interest expenses for the year — REEHER SRR 4,206 -

Interest paid EFE (2,400) -
At 31 March 2024 and R-EBE-mE=A=+—HR%

1 April 2024 —ETNFMA—AH 37,864 3,942

Imputed interest expenses for the year  AEEHERSH%

(note 7) (M$=E7) 5,244 -

Interest paid EAFE (3,200) -

At 31 March 2025 N-ZE-HF=ZH=+—H 39,908 3,942

WAR S HRAF) @@
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

26. BORROWING (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(b)

In September 2020, November 2020, January 2021,
March 2021 and November 2021, the Company obtained
a convertible loan of HK$40,000,000 from the immediate
holding company, which was interest-free and repayable on
demand (the “Second Loan”). The conversion period is from
1 November 2022 to 1 November 2024, and the loan can
be converted into 2,478,766,139 shares of the Company
(the “Second Loan Conversion Shares”) and the conversion
price shall be approximately HK$0.01614 per share. The
Second Loan Conversion Shares shall rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares in issue at the date of
allotment of the Second Loan Conversion Shares. During the
year ended 31 March 2023, the immediate holding company
confirmed that the Company had no repayment obligation
within the conversion period pursuant to the Supplemental
Deed and the Second Loan has been reclassified to non-
current liability. At the date of confirmation, taking into
account the terms of the repayment, the fair value of the
borrowing was HK$40,000,000, of which the fair values of
liability component and equity component were approximately
HK$32,383,000 and approximately HK$7,617,000
respectively.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible
borrowing of approximately HK$32,383,000 represented the
present value of the redemption amount, which is discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate for similar borrowing
without conversion option at the date of confirmation. At 31
March 2023, the carrying amount of the liability component
of the convertible loan was approximately HK$34,057,000,
affer recognising imputed interest expense of approximately
HK$1,674,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023.

On 30 September 2023, the Company obtained a deed
of confirmation from the immediate holding company
confirming that the Company shall have the sole discretion to
determine the repayment date of the convertible borrowing.
Therefore, the fair value of the liability component of
approximately HK$35,826,000, including imputed interest
of HK$1,769,000 for the period from 1 April 2023 to
30 September 2023, was reclassified into equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position from the date of
the deed of confirmation.

On 19 December 2024, the Company allotted and issued
2,478,766,139 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to
the immediate holding company upon completion of the
conversion of the Second Loan at the conversion price of
approximately HK$0.01614 per share.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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26. BE @)

MIZE : (%)
b) R-ZB-BEAR  —T-BF+—F -

—¥=-%-F - -F--F=AR=F
——%+-A ARAHEEERAAM
B-FWRREFE#40,000,0007T  #Z
FENBLELARBRME(E-%H
#)) c WRMA-F--Ft+-A-AE=
FoMET-B-R - HRERTHRS
2,478,766, 139 AN R RMD([EE=FEX
RIRRH ) RERENHERER0.01614
T o BT WERKBBRR R T ERAE
BE-FERRRROAMERTIRE
ROSZHRS A - HE-F-=F=5
=t+—ALFE HEERAARRELT
RIERERENMRBAL TEREE -
E-FEROENAESIRDAM - R
REM TEIWERN  BEZATES
7B #40,000,000T - HrEEID Ki#ER
oz AFED B R EH32,383,0007T
R#EH7,617,0007T °

ATRBREEEEIINAFENBYE
32,383,000 tiEERE - BE  HER
BROHAESRREECEUEEZRT
TMHBFEYR - RZTE_=F=A=+—
H REBE-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—HLHF
ERIAGEERNSMIHBLET,674,0007T
% WRREREENS ZEREENABY
34,057,0007¢ °

RIZBEZ=FhA=+H FRAENEEE
ZERARZERRE  BRAA BT R
MERUEETRREEZERAH -
It BEIMD 2 AFELNE35,826,000
T(BE-ZE-=FNA—HE-ZT_-=
NA=+ BBz EEFIEE,769,000
7T) BRI A R NGRS MR SRE
PEHSEEER -

RIZE-WFE+ZA+HIE ROFARE
RE_ZERERERBRENSRBY
001614 B EEER QA EME REIT
2,478,766,139 B R EEBE0.01 T
ZER o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

BE-Z-AF=A=1t—HILtHFE

27. LEASES 27. #HE
As Lessee EREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had three (2024: RBEBRR - AEEE=H(ZF-NF : —
one) leases contracts of office premises, which was negotiated MIWAEYEREEH  HEHLHEERA
for terms of two to three years (2024: three years). PME=F(ZT-WF : =F) -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) @EHESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets, MEEER  AEBENEREEE (B
representing land and properties leased for its own use, HEFBRZTHRYE)NEEER
and the movements during both years are disclosed in SEMIE 1 31K o
note 13.
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the AEE HEEBECREEREHM
movements during the year were as follows: T
2025 2024
It g Sy S
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BET T BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year RE 2 REE - 2,619
New leases S 8,705 -
Accretion of interest recognised AR F ERER 2 FI 238
during the year 720 158
Payments (NEN (2,868) (2,777)
Carrying amount at end of year RERZEREE 6,557 -
2025 2024
—R-RHEF Sy S
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BET T BT T
Analysed into: AT
Current Wi 3,795 -
Non-current IETRE 2,762 -
6,557 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities was as follows: HESBZIHBSHMT ¢
2025 2024
g g S
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BET T BT T
Analysed as: paliige
Within one year or on demand —ERFZER 3,795 -
In more than one year but not more —FHU L EFBBWE
than two years 2,642 -
In more than two years but not more MEULEBIBBREF
than five years 120 -
6,557 -
WAER S ERAT

@
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

27. LEASES (Continued)
As Lessee (Continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases were as follows:

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

27. &)
EBFEBA(E)
(c) BREEESERFTEINSENT

2025 2024

—EB-RF —TmEF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

Interests on lease liabilities HEEBZFE 720 158
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 3,012 2,150

(d) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March
2025 was HK$2,868,000 (2024: HK$2,777,000).

(e) During the year ended 31 March 2025, lease payments and
building management fee of approximately HK$2,336,000
(2024: approximately HK$3,405,000) were made in
accordance with a tenancy agreement for an office leased
from a company, which the ultimate controlling party of the

(d) BEZZ-AF=RA=+—-HLEFE"
? SREMHBTELBE2,868,000
(=B : jB#2,777,0007T) °

le)] BE-ZE-_RAF=ZA=+—-HLHF
E #HEREREBEFEEENEY
2,336,000 L (ZF-MF : HBE
3,405,000t ) {R#E @ — B A A HE M
RENEEBZEXN  MAKEHRL

Group has beneficial interests in it. BEHLEREEZ N RNERS -
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 28. Eﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
The movements in deferred tax liability during the year were BEEREEERAFEZBHMT
as follows:
Accelerated
tax Intangible
depreciation assets Total
JUIEE R
wE BREE L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BE¥T T
At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=FIA—A (19) (2,542) (2,561)
Deferred tax credit to the FFAGEEERARRKRZ
consolidated statement of EERLIE (FE10)
comprehensive income (note 10) 19 - 19
At 31 March 2024, REBZME=ZA=+—H
1 April 2024 and TECNFNA-HR
31 March 2025 —E-HFE=A=+—H - (2,542) (2,542)

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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29.

¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Continued)

At 31 March 2025, the Group had tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$802,446,000 (2024:
HK$754,347,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
had not been recognised at the end of the reporting period
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in companies
that had been loss-making for some time or due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those companies,
and accordingly, it was not considered probable that
taxable profits would be available against which the tax
losses could be utilised. Deferred tax asset had not been
recognised in respect of temporary difference relating to the
ECL provision of HK$557,000 (2024: HK$328,000) as it
was not probable that taxable profits would be available
against which deductible temporary difference could be
utilised.

28.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

EiEREEE®)
RZB-RHF=A=+—HB  ~XEEEESB
BEAHIEEE S LB 802,446,0007T

ZETINE : B#754,347,0007T) (B
EABKRZE -3 » ZEREEETER
HAEREEEBEB 2 A8 Z R REZRHE
Fl e HREEEREE 2 ARICEZ IR
REBEZZE R A ZARRREFRIR - BIR
BTARAEAERBER T A 2R IEE
BNt AUERBEHRTERZSEER
RIELEFEEE - WENRBHEEFERE
7B#557,0007T (=2 =94 : j8%328,000
U BB Y EERRELENEEE KR
EERPOBFS T AT ARKETS AN
AR E R 248 o

SHARE CAPITAL 29. BR7A<
2025 2024
—E-hHF —2omE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Authorised: SEE
500,000,000,000 (2024 500,000,000,0008%
500,000,000,000) —EINE
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 500,000,000,0008%)
(2024: HK$0.01) each SREEE0.01 7
(ZZ2-m%F : B#0.017T)
ZEBR 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
21,621,946,019 21,621,946,0198%
(2024: 19,143,179,880) ordinary (=M% : 19,143,179,880
shares of HK$0.01 (2024: HK$0.01) RS IREEE0.01 T
each (=== : B¥0.017T)
2] 216,219 191,432

WAR S HRAF) @@
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BA& @)

A summary of the movements of the Company’s issued
capital and share premium account was as follows:

AATRBTRARBHER > 2 B
mF :

Number of Share

shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRTROEA BERITRA RIVEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR ARTR

At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 RZZE-=fmA-A-
and 1 April 2024 ZECMEZRZ+-BR
“Z-MEMA-H 19,143,179,880 191,432 119,686 311,118
ssue of shares [nofe 26(b]) SR (26 2478766139 24787 15213 40,000
At 31 March 2025 RZZ-EFE=A=1-A 21,621,946,019 216,219 134,899 351,118
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. BB pR #E T &

A share option scheme of the Company was approved and
adopted by the Shareholders on 8 August 2022 (the “2022
Share Scheme”). The 2022 Share Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from 8
August 2022. At the end of the reporting period, the 2022
Share Scheme had a remaining life of approximately 8
years 1 month. Further details of the 2022 Share Scheme
were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 16 July
2022.

The primary purpose of the 2022 Share Scheme is to
reward participants who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group and to encourage longer term commitment of
grantees to the Group and to better align their interests with
those of the Shareholders, which can contribute towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit, and in alignment with the interests, of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants under the 2022 Share Scheme are
the directors (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) and
employees of the Company and another member of the
Group and service providers who provide services to the
Group on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary
and usual course of business which are material to the long-
term growth of the Group whom the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, at any time within
10 years after the adoption date to make an offer to any
participant to take up an option. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each grantee under the 2022 Share Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

The offer of a grant of an option shall specify the terms on
which the option is to be granted. Such terms may at the
discretion of the Board, include, among other things, the
minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised; a performance target that must be
reached before the option can be exercised in whole or in
part; and any other terms, all of which may be imposed (or
not imposed) either on a case-by-case basis or generally.
An offer of a grant of an option is deemed to be accepted
when the Company receives from the grantee the offer letter
signed by the grantee specifying the number of shares of the
Company in respect of which the offer is accepted and a
remittance to the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for
the grant of option.

The grantee may exercise an option at any time during a
period specified by the Board at the time of the option is to
be granted and must not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant, to subscribe for the number of shares of the
Company as determined by the Board at the subscription
price. The subscription price is determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; [ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five dealing days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options and options to be granted under the
2022 Share Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% in
nominal amount of the aggregate of shares in issue on the
adoption date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company
may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time subject
to prior shareholders’ approval but in any event, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2022 Share Scheme and
any other options to be granted under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company under the limit as refreshed must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the renewed limit. The Company
may grant options beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit to
participants if separate shareholders’ approval has been
obtained for granting options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit to participants.

30. R ESTE(#)

ESERRMEBR T FREMERE2E
HEaEASEATEHENUEABR
B o BRIFEAR DB RRALE - PMEF+ =M@
AUBRE-S-_FRMOTERTEAR
AZBRE(BBECTERERITEZBR
B ETERCBITRERTHRNESHE
TREBARTRCBHITRDZ1% -

RHBREZZAED AR L BREZIF
R EEEURBEREZEMRN - BEHESB
BRI FTEANARBRENRENRR 7
TEZANMIBREZAAES 2KRRE
F 5 RA BB Bt =k — AR b e o0 (SR A B b )
ZAEMEAMIRTR - EARD B HARARER
AR AEE  JIREAEAROEEZALD
ARMDBENBRORMG - BRXATFALRH
EAERBRENRNEZES1.00T @ QRS
RHBRECEZEVCEER -

BARATRESERREBREREE 28
RAEMEE(TSEBERE B HEI05F)
ITEBRE  URIABEIBESSEE
HEZARDRARD - RBEHESTT2ED
BEE  EERIARSERTISEPH
BeE  (|REEAWBRAERRERHN
DI ARRG 2 W E 5 (i) BIEER H B HAT
RERS BBXAEABRERAIIARFAR
B2 FWTHE ¢ R (i) &0 B RDEE °

RBRE-Z - _FROFTERAREME
i AR B ST B 2 AR IR N B IR AT
EMAREBITHROKSHE  SHTEE
BEANEHC BITIROABEERN10% (53
RERFED - KRRBEAER - AT
BERFSE T B AER AR - HELEMRET
ARE-Z-_FROAEETREZZRM
BB RAE R A 1 MR E A BB AR A T &S T 1R
HZ EMEMBREETEMJRERTZR
DR TEEBRRIEEHREERS
BITIRHEN10% - fp@mSEATRIEE
B BREREBRECHERR S TH
o AIARATUESEATREBB IR
FEREE 2 BRI AE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Scheme Mandate Limit was 1,868,176,188 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each as approved on the adoption
date, i.e. 8 August 2022.

31.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date
of this report, no share options were granted, cancelled,
exercised or lapsed under the 2022 Share Scheme. At
31 March 2025, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the 2022 Share Scheme.

RESERVES

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group's consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium account are
distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Convertible instrument equity reserve

The convertible instrument equity reserve represents
the value of the unexercised equity component of
convertible borrowing of the Company. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with accounting policies
set out in note 2.4(u).

Investment revaluation reserve (non-recyc/ing)

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair
value of equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income under HKFRS
9 that is held at the end of the reporting period (see
note 2.4(j)).

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

30. R ESTE(#)

31.

REMBEHE=Z=_FNANR) &t &
ZEtEIRREIREER1,868,176,188REBIRE
EBH0.01 Tz °

REBEZ-Z-_AF=A=+t—HLEFEARAK
BEAREEEH  MEBRERE-Z=-=
FROTECERE - 538 - THEIEN -
RIEBEZRAF=A=+—H FTRFLER
BT _FRAOFTEIMRTEZERE -

i
() AEBGARESSARDD YRS
REHLRAIINFSRBREE -

(b) REBEHMERBH
(i) KRGEER
ROEERNDAZRERS AT
ERE - REBEHEHEATE R
DRERTHESADIRTART
RIR - AIRREEESE D IRKRE R
HERRAEBEENEREELS
RHERIHE -

(i) AHERTARERE
R T AERRFEERARTR
REEHRITEERID 2EE -
ZEERIBM 2. 4(0) TEE K
RERHE -

REEEWEE (T TREE)
REBMGHE(THERE) BERR
SHARAERETBYHREEL
FORISEREBH M 2 Wk b
DFEIRNREREZ A FHER
TRBFE(RMEE2.4() -

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

32. PERPETUAL LOANS

On 24 November 2023, the Company and the immediate
holding company entered into a perpetual shareholder’s loan
agreement, pursuant to which the immediate holding company
shall make available to the Company an unsecured term loan
facility of a total principal amount up to HK$40 million at 6.5%
interest rate per annum, which is on normal commercial terms
or better. The Company may at its sole discretion, repay the
outstanding amount of the loan in full or in part together with
all interest accruing on the loans or such part of the loans as of
the date of repayment.

On 28 March 2024, the Company and the immediate
ho|ding company entered into perpetucﬂ shareholder’s loan
agreement, pursuant fo which the immediate holding company
shall make available to the Company an unsecured term loan
facility of a total principal amount up to HK$30 million at 6.5%
interest rate per annum, which is on normal commercial terms
or better. The Company may at its sole discretion, repay the
outstanding amount of the loan in full or in part together with
all interest accruing on the loans or such part of the loans as of
the date of repayment.

As both the above perpetual loans do not contain any
contractual obligation to pay cash or other financial assets,
in accordance with HKAS 32, they are classified as equity for
accounting purpose.

32. KAER

RIEZ=F+—AZ+WMA » XA FEH
BERAGRIMKARRER G » Bt
BEEERARUEESBEERmERREAL
IR AR S AR % B ¥ 40,000,000 7T 2
EIRPERERRE  BEFR6.5%TE -
AAREEEERBEETREBRHSBOE
BETREZSE  ERBZERAHNE
R BB ERATEETRIE

RZB-NFE=A=+N\B XA THEE
ERATTLKARRERGZE > Bt &
BERATGUEESEEFERREADNT
RIEARSMBIER S B 30,000,000t 2 &
RIFEHERRE » BFERNRES5%TE o &
ARFEEEENBERTREREIHMOEE
BERAEESE ERBZEXRAHNER
REBEBD ERFIEETFIE ©

AR EMRKAEREI T EEINREREM
ERMEENEAENER  BURBEBET
FERIE32S - AEXKAERMEME 24
R o

Movement of the perpetual instruments are as follows: KA TEZSEHMT :

Principal Distribution Total

PN a3 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2023 R-E-=FmA—A - - -

Issuance of perpetual loans BITRAER 70,000 - 70,000
Profit attributable to perpetual KA ERIEE AL ER

loans holder - 917 917

At 31 March 2024 R-E-MFE=A=+—H 70,000 917 70,917
Profit attributable to perpetual KA BEIEE AT

loans holder - 4,550 4,550

At 31 March 2025 N-ZZE-RE=A=+—H 70,000 5,467 75,467

WAR S HRAF) @a
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEIRS
(a) Saved as the transactions and arrangements disclosed (a) BRAGEMBREREMEBHABENRT
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the SREHN  UTAEBESIRES S
following significant transactions were carried out with BB EETETHNERRS
related parties at the terms mutually agreed by both

parties:
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Advisory and asset management fee income ERRE S v ERREEEEE
with related parties (notes a and b) WA (MizEaRkb) 2,247 2,000
Insurance brokerage income with a B FEER 2 RELLEA
related party (notes a and ¢) (FfFEaRc) 10 270
Investment advisory fee income with a B ZEIES 2R EREE
related party (notes a and c) WA (HfaEakc) - 426
Securities brokerage and custodian H-f@EL ZRFELK
business fee income with AEEBBERA (MEake)
a related party (notes a and ) - 6
Insurance expenses paid to a related party B —&BEES 2R X
(note c) (Bf¥&Ee) 462 703
Consultancy, legal and professional fee BT —BEE N w2 R
paid to an associated company (note d) EEREXEE M (MEEd) 14,033 -
Wealth management and consultancy ER—EEBE Tz
services income received from BEEERERREWA
an associated company (note d) (MIEEd) (1,459) -
Notes: MiEE -
(a) During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group (o) BZE-Z-HF=A=T+—HLFE"

(b)

received advisory fee income, asset management fee
income and insurance brokerage income from related
companies, which the ultimate controlling party of the
Group has equity inferests in them. The transactions were
conducted on mutually agreed terms in the ordinary
course of business.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, these
transactions constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the
Listing Rules. Further details of these above transactions
of connected transactions are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 28 May 2024, 1 July 2024 and 6
March 2025.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

(b)

FEBBAEBERAES S ERREN
BEARWIERBRA  EEEEE
BWARRBELEA - ZERXZTIRA
FERIBREDIRE T E A RREST o
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2025, these
transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt from
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(d) The transactions constituted related party transactions but
did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The disclosures for the related party transactions which
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section “Connected Transactions” of the
Directors’ Report.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation
to the aforesaid connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

33. BEFRS @)

(a)

(#)
MyEE ()

) BEZZ-RF=ZA=+—-HLEFE
ZERGBHELETRBEVIAZARE
ZEEXSIIFERERS o R » %
EXSRHRBTLEHRAEI14ATE
TZWERE -

(d) ZEXZBREELIRS  HELTER
FHRAEVIAERRECHERS R

LHRAFVIATFRERABREE
REFFERAEXZ BERRS 2K
B BRESEREBEERS |-

RRB)ER - HEBF EHHRAE14A
ERRLIRERZRISERERS 2
BIE e

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEBFEZBASZHMH
Group:

2025 2024

—E-EREF —ECNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Fees we 758 800

Shortterm employee benefits SHIEEEA 4,229 7,683

Post-employment payments BIREF 36 44
Total compensation paid to key EREBEBAEXFZ

management personnel 2 b 5,023 8,527

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to these financial statements.

EEME 2 E - SHBEREAUHERE
BiZES o

WAR S HRAF) @@
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2EWMITA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RMESR  REBZERITAZREEN
instruments at the end of the reporting period were as T
follows:
2025 —E-HF
Financial assets cHEE
Financial
Financial Financial assets
asset at assefs at  at amorfised
Fvod FVTPL cost Total
BRAMEZA
BEAATE — EBREN  REBHERE
SRz DYEFIRZ SRz
LREE LREE SREE am

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETL

Financial asset at FVOCI FBEMEERREUDFEER

ZEREE 254 - - 254
Deposits and other receivables RE T HbpEN g - - 5,599 5,599
Accounts receivable FEUBEZR - - 5,094 5,094
Cash and bank balances Be BRI - - 54517 54,517
254 - 65,210 65,464

Financial liabilities o Nk
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Ei7g: £ )OI
L) pd
tREE
HK$’000
BT T
Accounts payable FE{SBRFR 11,057
Other payables and accruals Hitb e 7R K ExT & A 12,189
Borrowing TeE 39,908
Lease liabilities HEERE 6,557
69,711

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 4. RERE S 2T Aaw)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR  REFZERITAZREEN
instruments at the end of the reporting period were as T @)

follows: (Continued)

2024 —E-E
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial
Financial Financial assefs
asset at assefsat  at amortised
FvOd FVTPL cost Total
BREMEE
WE DR E FERBEH REBHRK
Sz  ATENIEZ 1)
SREE SREE SREE Eok]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETL

Financial asset at FVOCI BBEMEERREUDFER

ZEREE 254 - - 254
Deposits and other receivables BeREfEREE - - 3,366 3,366
Accounts receivable FEURBEZR - - 2,975 2,975
Loan receivable EWEER - - 5,000 5,000
Investments at FVTPL BRBEUATEFR RS - 1,234 - 1,234
Cash and bank balances BERRTEE - - 89,505 89,505
254 1,234 100,846 102,334

Financial liabilities SHEEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
BB A
FIERZ
SREE
HK$'000
BET T
Accounts payable FEASBRR 2,100
Other payables and accruals HiE A SER BT ER 11,541
Borrowing BE 37,864
51,505

WAR S HRAF) @
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs,
that is, observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The Group perform management assessments of financial
instruments which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Assessments with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement are prepared by the managements and
are reviewed and approved by the Directors. Discussion of
the valuation process and results with the Directors is held to
coincide with the reporting dates.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

35. ERMTAZAFERAFEER

DNFERER

TREJNNBEPRRAEBIZEE HEEST
ENEMT A AFE(DEATBYBRE
ERF 3L FETEREN=ZRDFEE
&) o R EFTESENRBSEMELERE
RHmABE 2 IBEEREAM - BUT
HREE :

F—REE - EERE - RBARE (BRE
ERMERTE LAREENEENARAR
HE)GFTENDIFE-

BoREE  EAE-RBAREEIREFE
F-RNUBEGARE) ENMEAERTT
BERB A ABBITENAFE - TUBEEHA
BB EET SR AR -

R EAEATTRER RS
BHATE -

FEEHSBEAFEERF=ANEHMT
BETEERENG - SAQVEFEEZDS
AR ERERE  WRESEMRI
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continved)
Assets measured at fair valve:

35. ERMTAZAFERAFEER @)

DERER(E)

BAFEIITENEE :
Fair value measurement using
FRAUNTEBZATETE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TR EAUHEE BATTEHE
mEHRE BARE BAHE
() (F=) (B=R) Feb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 March 2025: R-B-R&E=fA=+-R:
Financial asset at FVOCI FBREMEERE UL FEYER
ZEREE - - 254 254
At 31 March 2024 R-B-m&E=A=+-§:
Financial asset at FVOCI FBEMEERREUDFEER
ZEREE - - 254 254
Investments at FVTPL EPBEHEUATEIEZRE 1,234 - - 1,234
1,234 - 254 1,488

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and liabilities (2024: nil). The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which they
oceur.

REZB-ZHEFRZZB-NE=ZA=+—-8 "
AEBVEEIMRLAFEFENEHEE -

BE-_Z-HF=ZA=1+—HLFE &€&
EEREBNE-—REF_FoBATFE
EWEER TUREAFBHE=LH(=F
—IOF | c AEECZBERAREEAYE
BB 2 RS 2 s EA R Rz S o
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For the year ended 31 March 2025  &HzZ—

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continved)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Financial asset at FVOCI is measured using valuation
techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the
markets in addition to unobservable inputs.

The Group determined the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment (classified as financial asset at FVOCI) at

31 March 2025 and 2024 by reference to the recent
transaction price of the shares sold to an independent party.

The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3
fair value measurement were as follows:

“HFE=ZA=1t—BLHFE

35. ERMTAZAFERAFERR @)

DHEBR ()

EZRRAFETEZEH
BREMEEWEURFEIRZERERE
ERmE LABRERARBR T ITHERA
B ERMGEREE -

AEEZEZZOBIATHERD ZEHR
SEREEF LHRERE( "i,\%%iﬁi_ﬁﬁﬂ
PHWSEARFEIRZERMEE) N

“EHFER-EMF=RA=1— EZ’“FE°

REE  BERDFEFESGZEHUT ¢

Unlisted equity investment (classified as financial asset at FEEMBAEIRE (DR E HE b2 U b
FVOCI) DPEIRCZERERE)

2025 2024

s TS —EZMEF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year AEAD 254 3,921

Net unrealised loss recognised in other REEREMEEREERN
comprehensive income during the year RSB EIBTEE - 3,667
At end of the year REXR 254 254

Note: Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement of the
Group's financial asset at FVOCI held for strategic purposes
is recognised in the investment revaluation reserve (non-
recycling) in other comprehensive income. Upon disposal
of the equity investment, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income/loss is transferred directly to
accumulated losses.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from

their fair values at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

M - AEEFERRAR 2 EBAMEE RS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

36.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

BMETBFEENRBEER

TRHELMAEEREZTDMELENEES
B BERENFRTEE  MEFTHE
ENEBEEAREGESHERERPRER
ERESIERAIRRRERES I EARE
EBMEENRSRENERE -

Lease
liabilities Borrowing Total
HEaE B8 L]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T
At 1 April 2024 R-ZE-MFMA—H - 37,864 37,864
Payments of lease liabilities XNHEEEERANE
and interest (2,868) (3,200) (6,068)
Total changes from financing AEEREREREZEH
cash flows for the year HBE (2,868) (3,200) (6,068)
Other changes: HAtu g :
New leases s 8,705 - 8,705
Finance costs BE AR 720 5,244 5,964
At 31 March 2025 R-ZE-AF=A=+—H 6,557 39,908 46,465

WAR S HRAF) @
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continved)

36. EEBMEEANEBYHR®E)

Interest
payable
included
in other
payables and lease
accruals liobilities  Borrowings Total
EPN:
FER
B
EARIES HEafE L ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BB BT
At T April 2023 RZEZ=FMA-H 18 2,619 64,057 66,694
Payment of lease liabilities and interest IHHEEEBERAE (1,801) (2,777) (2,400) (6,978)
Proceeds from borrowing EEFELE - - 40,000 40,000
Repayment of borrowing BEEE - - (30,000) (30,000)
Total changes from financing FEERERSREX A
cash flows for the year - (2,777) 7,600 3,022
Other changes: Hibg8
Recognition of equity component of BO-ETRRIEY
a convertible insfrument ERDH - - (3,942) (3,942)
Reclassification of loan from the BHOBEEERAAZ
immediate holding company fo equity BHREER - - (35,826) (35,826
Finance costs BERAK 1,783 158 5,975 7916
At 31 March 2024 R-B-mE=A=+-H - - 37,864 37,864

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
financial asset at FVOCI, investments at FVTPL, accounts
receivable, loan receivable, deposits and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, accounts payable, other payables

and accruals, borrowing and lease liabilities.

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37.
POLICIES (Continued)
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price
risk and currency risk. Management reviews and establishes
policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarised below.

(a) Interest ratfe risk
The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its interestbearing financial assets. Interest-
bearing financial assets are mainly bank deposits
primarily at floating interest rates which are mostly short-
term in nature. The Group's policy is to obtain the most
favourable interest rate available.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to borrowing, loan receivable and bank time
deposits. Management considers the Group’s exposure
to fair value interest rate risk is not significant due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table detailed the interest rate profile

B EE B ZEBR )

rEBzERTAREE 2T ERBATR
Rz - FERR - RBESRER - REER
Rk E¥ER - EEENEESEELR
A RHFERR - BERREMNT

(a) FEER
FEEEHEAEGTEERNEERRANR
EREFNEAR - FHEEHEETES
FTEUZBFIET R ZRITFER (K
TEBERME) AREZBRSEE
HMBEEFRR -

FEEHHBBEER - BRERRET
EMFERZDAFENERRE - EEER
B HRZETAZIHSELERSE
HAKEN QA FENERBIEKX

(i)  FIEEXR
TRALFEDRAEHEERE

of the Group's assets and liabilities at the end of BEOFIEER
the reporting period:
2025 2024
bt S -3 —EmEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fixed interest rate & & Fl =
Financial assets TREE
Time deposits EHER 1,500 1,500
Loan receivable PR & =k - 5,000
1,500 6,500
Financial liability TREE
Borrowing BE (40,000) (40,000)
Net fixed interest rate financial EENZSHMI EFHE
instruments (38,500) (33,500)

WAR S HRAF) @a
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. R RERE B EEEK @)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (Continued) (o) FIREERE)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) (i)  FIEERE)
2025 2024
—E-RE —ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Variable interest rates ] 8 Rl
Financial assets TREE
Cash at bank RITHES 53,017 88,005
Net variable interest rate financial AEFRER T BEE
instruments 53,017 88,005

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) SEmESH
The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Directors monitor interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arises.
The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk of bank deposits is not

ZRES A A REPER o AT
EXEENREAR  UTEEEFE
REZRETEAFRER - EFR
B AEEEERNRTERRER
EFNERARETEKR - BtAE2

anif o L SIBRBEDH
significant, no sensitivity analysis is presented
accordingly.

(b) Credit risk b) EEAR

The Group’s major exposure to credit risk relates to
accounts receivable, loan receivable, deposits and other
receivables and cash and bank balances from default
by the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

FEERERSGHFHENELEZEERE
EREpREEWART - BWER - BER
HtBERAREUARRERBITHESRE
B HEReSRBRERZEIAZERE
o

The Group's accounts receivable and loan receivable
(the “Receivables”) arise from the ordinary course of
business of the Group and are closely monitored by the
management on an ongoing basis.

REEE 2 R BRR I B R E R ([ R U R
BNEAREREXRBBRETEEL - I
HEEEREREESR

@ ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk arising from the Receivables

The Group has taken measures to identify credit
risks arising from the Receivables. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage of the risk
management system, including pre-approval,
review and credit approval and posttransaction
monitoring processes. The Group conducts
customer acceptance and due diligence by business
department and risk management department
during the pre-approval process. A transaction
may be subject to the review and approval officer
and the executive directors depending on the
transaction size.

During the posttransaction monitoring process,
the Group performs credit evaluations on each
and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, forward-looking information, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on the loan
receivable individually or based on a provision
matrix for accounts receivables excluding accounts
receivables from margin clients which were by
reference to the LTV. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

(b) EERKE)

(i)

ERFIBRELIEERE

62 (B © BREVHE e 38 B PR LR IR 72
ENEERR - AREREREE
ZENEEKREZEERR &
EREY  BEREERAEURR
SRETEF - REMBES K
SEMERDAREEBETE
FEMARERRAL - RTFRXZHRE
ME  RZAVEAHEERNITE
EEERHE -

REREFRFT  AEEEHRY
BEIBRRFPETRENM - 25
AHEETFREFBENZMNARE
EREFHEEEIRAELER
TEREFBERBEEFEEMN
REEBRENER © tHh - REM
BEMBRELAFEIRE - NE
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Credit risk arising from the Receivables (Continued)

In determining the recoverability of the loan
receivable, the Group considers any change in the
credit quality of the loan receivable from the date
the credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. This includes assessing the credit status of the
borrower such as financial difficulties or default in
payments, and current market conditions.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customer operates and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers.

At the end of reporting period, 95% (2024: 91%)
of the total accounts receivable were due from the
Group's five largest debtors while 59% (2024:
57%) were due from the Groups’ largest debtor.
Loan receivable at 31 March 2024 was due from
a single borrower.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure fo credit risk arising from the Receivables
are disclosed in notes 20 and 21 to these financial
statements.

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other credit risk

In respect of deposits and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
debtors requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Directors make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The Directors believe that there is no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12-month ECL. The Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on outstanding balances individually by reference
to the Group's internal credit rating. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances and
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international creditrating agencies.

Impairment assessment

Accounts receivable from margin clients

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on LTV
unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification at
31 March 2025 and 2024.

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE
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(b)
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(iii)
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025  EHZE-Z-_FAF=A=+—HItFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. R RERE B EEEK @)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE)
(iii) Impairment assessment (Continued) (i) BB S ()
Accounts receivable from margin clients (Continued) JEWFFIRE R (4)
2025 —E-RHE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A a5
REFE FENERSEEES
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RR ER EIER o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT RETT RETT BET T

Margin clients FREF
- LTV between 80% and 100%* - &2 5Bt Z580%Z 100%* 9 - - 9
— LTV between 70% and 79% - BEEERLZEE70%E79% - - - -
~ LTV between 60% and 69% - SEEEERLZE60%Z69% 6 - -
~ LTV less than 60% - B EERELZER60% 12 - - 12
27 - - 27
2024 —ENE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 785
FEBE RENBRNEESE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
&R YL EIER L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT
Margin clients ﬁli:é%)g
- LTV between 80% and 100%* - &z S(E (&t Z580%Z 100%* 12 - - 12
- LTV between 70% and 79% ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁf‘{attﬂ-’ﬂo%im% - - - -
- [TV between 60% and 69% - B EERELZ560%Z69% - - - -
- [TV less than 60% - BHEEELZER0% 2 - -
14 - - 14
*  The Directors considered all available material ¥ HEHBEUETREFBZHAABD
information including forward-looking information BV AT S MR E XA R (B
without undue cost or effort and determined these EHER)  YEELZSRBD
exposures fo be classified as stage 1. BRBIER -

202) ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii) Impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

(b) EERKE)

Accounts receivables
excluding accounts
receivables from

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

(iii) RETE ()
75 £2 8 o R S L T AR T (8
TR -

Internal credit rating Description margin clients Other items
FEU AR
(FEEEK
A EER it FREFRR) HiEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of  Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
default and does not have any - not creditimpaired
past-due amounts
RmER XEHFHNENERE - BIE FEDERESEEFE 12EAEIEERE
AR -BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due  Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
dates but usually settles after due - not creditimpaired
date
BxgE BERALERIBERER FEDERESEEFE 12EAEEEERE
EREREHAREE -BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
increases in credit risk since - not creditimpaired - not creditimpaired
initial recognition through
information developed internally
or external resources
RER ABERENIIRERBRENS FEEBENEESE HFEUBRNEESE
BRAUREERBCEE LH -BiEERE -BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
asset is credit impaired - creditimpaired - credit-impaired
BB ARERPEECEERE FESAERAEEFR FEIBESRCESE
—EERE —FERHE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
L E BRERPEBAERBENBERSE - FECHE HIEEMEE

BASE I EEE T REKE IR

HWEMEER AT
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

For accounts receivable (excluding accounts receivable
from margin clients), the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
|iﬁatime ECL.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers because these customers consist of
a large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms.

The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable (excluding
accounts receivable from cash clients, margin clients
and clearing houses) which were assessed based on a
provision matrix at 31 March 2025 and 2024 within
lifetime ECL (not creditimpaired).

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

(b) EERB#E)
(iii) Impairment assessment (Continued) 1B T (45)
The tables below detailed the credit risk exposures TR RAEBEEEITESE
of the Group’s financial assets, which were subject EFETILNEREENEER
to ECL assessment: [
External Internal 12-month or
creditrating  credit rating lifetime ECL ~ Gross carrying amounts
128 A EAH
HBEETR  ABEETR BHREEE BEEE
2025 2024
“ECRE —EC-ME
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i BRI BRI
Financial assets at amorfised cost
REHRRIIR SHER
Accounts receivable - margin clients 21 N/A N/A  12-month ECL (LTV) 27 14
RUES -FREF TER TER 12BAESRERE
(EREEENE)
Accounts receivable - cash clients, 21 N/A note Lifetime ECL 5,624 3,289
clearing houses, asset management, Provision matrix)
insurance brokerage, wealth
management and consulting services and
others
RUEH-REEF G5 EEER- TEA iz FEAREESEEEE
RBEL  HEERRERRE R (BRER)
Loan receivable 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL - 5,000
FWER TER ERR 12BRBHEEER
Other receivables and deposits 18 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 5,599 3,366
Btk ERES TER EER 12BARSHEESE
Cash and bank balances 23 AA+ N/A 12-month ECL 54,517 89,505
RERBEH TER 12BAEBRERE
Note: BIEE

PEWERR (T EERERFTRE P RN
s AEBECEAEBYBHREEL
B NE A EFENBREE
BEENEERE -

ERAAEBEERRERN -2 &
EEEAEBARRTGEET P NE
B RARZSEFEEEERERR
1 E (BERMRE P IR RA NN A
BEMFURNEE D) B REBNEF ©

TREfER-ZZAFR-TNF=
B=1+—-BEEPHEEHEEEE (&
EERE) AEREBEERTE N ER
R TEEEWRESEF - FREF
REEMRFDNVEERBHER -
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

The estimated loss rates were estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EEREE)
(iii) Impairment assessment (Continued) (i) - BB S ()

Note: (Continued) MiE : (48)

2025 —E-RHE
Average Accounts
Gross carrying amount loss rate receivable
HEREE FiERE FEBRSR
HK$'000
BT T
Current (not past due) BNER (Ragsn) - -
1-30 days past due B 1 ZE30R 3.41% 2,758
31-60 days past due BEA31Z60R - -
61-90 days past due BE61EQ0H 4.44% 1,238
More than 90 days past due ek ifhislelol= 23.30% 1,618
5,614

2024 —EPE
Average Accounts
Gross carrying amount loss rate receivable
HEREE FHEEE FEU R X
HK$'000
BT T
Current (not past due) BNER (Ragsn) - -
1-30 days past due B 1 ZE30R 6.18% 3,091
31-60 days past due BEA31Z60R - -
61-90 days past due BE61EQ0H - -
More than 90 days past due ek ifhislelol= 61.73% 191
3,282

B ERRERANES FHRNER
BETHEENORME  UREFBES
A S BN AT SR AT ERE T

FEE o
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s liquidity position is critical to its continuing
existing and measures are formulated to improve its
liquidity and solvency position. The Group's policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

() RBESEMRE
FEEzRBESHRBESETES
BHEE  MAKECHRIERUARES
REMEREERDMRRL - AREZBE
REMEZRBERAENRDESTERNU
REEHRZNBREER - ABERERFRE
HRERBENEPRRIZABES

RBEDRR - ERMEEREORERN

MZEHERMT -

2025 —ECRE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AHABRAERE
Within one One Carrying
year or on fo five Over amount
demand years five years Totdl ot 31 March
R-%FR R=B=t-H
BER -ERf BFLE b ZIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETT ARTT ERTT BRI
Non-derivative financial liobilities: 3744 BERE

Accounts payable ERER 11,057 - - 11,057 11,057
Other payables and accruals HiEREEREER 11,439 750 - 12,189 12,189
Borrowing & 40,800 - - 40,800 39,908
Lease liabilities HEERE 4,416 2,99 - 7,407 6,557
67,712 3,741 - 71,453 69,711

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

() REBESEMR )

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

(d)

2024 —ECNE
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AHAERRERE
Within one One Carrying
year or on fo five Over amount
demand years five years Total ot 31 March
R—F R R=A=1-8
BEX it RENE an ZSREfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BB BRI BETR AYTT
Non-derivative financial liabilifies: FTESHEE:
Accounts payable EHED 2,100 - - 2,100 2,100
Other payables and accruals HitENTERETER 11,541 - - 11,541 11,541
Borrowings & 3,200 48,000 - 51,200 37,864
16841 48,000 S sagal 51,505
Equity price risk (d) REEERRE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equities change as a result of changes in the price of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from certain equity investments.
The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and were valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of the individual security compared with
the relevant industry indicators, as well as the Group’s
liquidity needs. Equity investments at FVOCI were held
for strategic rather than trading purposes. The Group
does not actively trade these investments.

IREERREREHRMER R FEREE
BYRENTFEER 2RER - AKEE
HREETREREZREBRRR -
REEz EHREABR T £ IR
EHARUATSHENE  EERZHSF
HURETIER B E B {E R R 2808
BITEEENREARAEERDESE
ZEH - BB HMEE WU D FES
ReBREREFFEREMIEERE -
FEEIAREBREEZERE -

Management considers that the effect of equity price EEERAREEREHZELARYHE
change does not have significant impact on the Group EEEREAFE  HABRRBRE

and no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

DA e
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¢ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the year ended 31 March 2025

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Currency risk

(f)

Certain cash and cash equivalents, financial asset at
FVTPL and financial asset at FVOCI were denominated
in US$ and RMB, currencies other than functional
currencies of respective group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group will
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

With transactions in the US$, the currency risk is
insignificant as the HK$ is pegged to US$. Therefore,
no sensitivity analysis is presented.

No sensitivity analysis for the currency risk of RMB is
prepared as the Directors considered the net impact of
such foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements except for certain
subsidiaries engaged in the securities and futures
broking businesses and the provision of corporate
finance advisory services, which are regulated entities
under the SFC and a subsidiary, which is registered
under the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance
(the “ICO"), are required to comply with the respective
minimum capital requirements of the SFC and the ICO.
During the financial year, all the licensed subsidiaries
complied with the minimum capital requirements of the
SFC and the ICO respectively. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and
2024.

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

(e)

(f)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

(f)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is borrowings divided by the total equity of the
Company. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

37. MR EE B ZHBUR @)

(f)

BEXEE®)
REBEFEREELRERER  BEL
RREERUA QR ESZRETE - B
WREHR - EELRNT ¢

2025 2024

—E-RE —ETOE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Borrowing VN 39,908 37,864
Total equity of the Company RN FERAE 29,444 76,829
Gearing ratio BELExR 135.54% 49.28%

HWEMEER AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 #HE-Z-H4=A=+—HI-4E

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. "D AP &K

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the REEHARERAARDRMERRRE 2GR
Company at the end of the reporting period was as follows: LU
2025 2024
—E_RF —ZT_mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARZRE 4,000 4,000
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERRE 11,717 4,983
Intangible asset BEE 2,655 2,513
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 18,372 11,496
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{3E - &R H WA 2,875 3,047
Due from subsidiaries FEUL I B A B ZhE 11,827 12,002
Cash and bank balances B RIBITHE 5,011 31,986
Total current assets REEERE 19,713 47,035
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAREMA AR BT ER 5,700 1,887
Due to su{)sidiories FEAS B 2 RIS 59,110 107,814
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,334 -
Total current liabilities REEERE 68,144 109,701
Net current liabilities REEEFE (48,431) (62,666)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE (30,059) (51,170
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 2,491 -
NET LIABILITIES & 5 E (32,550) (51,170)
DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS EEEA
Issued capital B BITIRA 216,219 191,432
Reserves ] (248,769) (242,602)
Net deficiency in assets BEEBMEE (32,550) (51,170)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30 June

2025 and were signed on its behalf by:

Xu Hao
R
Director

EZE

ARTA TECHFIN CORPORATION LIMITED

REFEN-"Z-AFAAZTHMELR
RETIEE - YANT ALTRRESSHE

Li Chuchu, Tracy
EX

Director

EZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39.

COMPANY (Continued)

HE-_Z-_RAF=A=1+—HILEFE

38. QB M HEAR R T (%)

Note: MfEE
A summary of the Company’s reserves was as follows: RRATFERLOT
Equity
atiributable Equity
fothe attributable
immediate fo the
holding  immediate
company holding
in respect of company
Share  Convertible o perpetual in respect
premium instrument ~ convertible  of perpetual  Accumulated
account  equity reserve instrument locins losses Total
ERERAT
B-EKA  ERERAR
TRRIE  TRRIAE  HAXEXR
ROBER REfE FEfh R FEdb i itEE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETTL BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2023 R-Z-=FMA—-H 119,686 7,617 - - (417,195) (289,892)
Loss and tofal comprehensive loss ~ AEEFER2AEELEE
for the year - - - 917 (59,453 (58,536
Reclassification of loan from the EFHEEREERAAZ
immediate holding company £ - - 35,826 - - 35,826
Issuance of perpetual loans ROKAER - - - 70,000 - 70,000
At 31 March 2024 R-Z-mE=A=1-H 119,686 7,617 35,826 70917 (476,648 (242,602)
At 1 April 2024 R-ZZ-MEMA—A 119,686 7617 35,826 70,917 (476,648) (242,602)
Loss and tofal comprehensive loss ~ AEEFER2AFELE
for the year - - - 4,550 14,070 18,620
Issue of shares BITRA 15213 (7,617) (32,383) - - (24,787)
At 31 March 2025 R=Z-RF=R=1-H 134,899 - 3,443 75,467 (462,578) (248,769)

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 May 2025, the Company and the immediate
holding company of the Company entered into a perpetual
shareholder’s loan agreement, pursuant to which the
immediate holding company of the Company shall make
available to the Company an unsecured term loan facility
of a total principal amount up to HK$40,800,000 at 6.5%
interest rate per annum, which is on normal commercial
terms or better. The Company may at its sole discretion,
repay the outstanding amount of the loan in full or in part
together with all interest accruing on the loans or such part
of the loans as of the date of repayment.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other significant events after
reporting period.

39. MEWKREE

R-ZZB-HFHAAZ+TIA  RARFHEELD
AIEHEER AR L KARRER R
Bl AAREEERAFAUEERHERE
BAERRAFARARBERCHERSBY
40,800,000t 2 B EHENRBE - &
FRIERSE.5%TE » AR BER ZREBE
REZBRMAEEERREESER » EF
HEEXAHMNERNERBs EXAEE
FHARIE o

BRAGRENBRREMEHAIWEEN » K
EENBERRILEBH B AEIE o
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e FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY e

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ZAEERARBEHBFEZEEUREE - 8F
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years — RIFIZERER ZBEHIWMT o
was set out below.

RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 March

BE=A=1t—-HLEE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E-HE ZZ-WE  ZE-=f C"T--F ZT--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT T BT

REVENUE S 63,846 23,329 12,792 43,649 26,173
(Loss)/profit before tax BBEET (B518) /A (47,485)  (62,941)  (89,910) 2,776,804 (701,787
Income tax credit/ (expense) FrERiER,/ (%) - 20 - (7,088) 95
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE(EHR) 57 (47,485) (62,921) (89,910) 2,769,716 (701,692
Attributable fo: THIA LR
The Shareholders R (51,826) (63,838) (89,915) 2,769,719 (701,690)
Perpetual loan holder KAERFAA 4,550 917 - - -
Non-controlling inferests FERER (209) - S 3) (2)

(47.485)  (62,921)  (89,910) 2,769716  (701,692)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ¥E - BEURIFERELS

As at 31 March

R=A=+-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—ECHF —E-ME —EC=F —ECCF —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BET T BETT

TOTAL ASSETS EEAE 101,697 130,876 117,482 133,278 1,418,303
TOTAL LIABILITIES aERE (72,253 (54,047) (83,833) (68,597) (4,393,12¢6)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS gk piss (109) - - 5 2

29,335 76,829 33,649 64,686 (2,974,821)
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